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OPERATION IS THE KEY
REPUTATION COMES FIRST

Leading Property
’ Management Enterprise in the
Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis

BESE OMEL
E-AEnnELE

BUSINESS MODEL

Service alignment, Business
modularisation, Modules specialisation
and Management digitalisation

BUSINESS MOTTO

Surpassing Customers'
Expectation and Creating Values
with Quality Services
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CORPORATE VISION ' ‘ CORE VALUES

Service provider for - Virtue - Integrity
the community and industry - Creativity - Kind-heartedness
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COMPANY PROFILE
NS

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd. (1922.HK) is a leading property
management service provider in Nanjing and the Jiangsu Province
in the PRC. The Group ranked 18th and 3rd among China's Top
100 Property Management Companies and the Jiangsu Province's
Top 50 Property Management Companies in 2021, respectively.

The Group was established in 1997. Throughout the past 24 years of
development, the Group has always adhered to its business motto of
“operation is the key, reputation comes first” for its business operation.
Leveraging on the high quality services and sound management
system the Group possesses and the “Living+" and "Industry+" service
model it adopts, the Group has integrated resources to provide owners
and customers with professional, diversified and caring property
management services. Not only could this fulfil the owners’ pursuit of a
better life, but there would also be an increase in the value of the owners'
immovable assets, as well as building strong support for non-residential
customers such that they could focus on their respective core business.

The Group mainly provides diversified property management
services and value-added services. The Group's business covers
a wide spectrum of properties, including residential properties
and non-residential properties covering government facilities,
financial institutions, property sales offices, medical institutions,
commercial complex, parks, transportation facilities, industrial parks,
mixed-use properties, education institutions and office buildings.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's business covers 21 cities in the
PRC, of which 17 cities are in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
with its contracted GFA and GFA under management reaching
approximately 61.9 million sq.m. and 58.8 million sq.m., respectively.
The Group managed 837 properties, including 525 residential
properties and 312 non-residential properties, and served over 500,000
households covering over 1.6 million people as at 31 December 2021.

iy

RIMEERBBARAT (1922 HK) 2T E
RURIHEERE e EEERFEMHE
o REBMR2021EFEYETRAOLEHZ
MERATREEDDRBT]E18MU KRB

REBMII997F > (KB FE R K&
B RATEE /T OME L) AIKEE
SETEREE UAEEFMEBNEERN
BRBMTENEERR  REPMRMBITER
+HIMIEFR  RBE BEER BXEK
ERREEXE - ZERMONYEETER
B BAOREFTEREFEEREEMNE
B BREIZAPESERERE BIF
FERRBREROEFRHEBRFRRE

KREBFERBLTENYEEIERTE MIE
EBERF AERNEBRELEYWE B1F
FEEMERFEEME AUNBERE =
BHIS B EHE S BEEE BERS
B AESBE - REXRE EXEE -ESH
bt/ = m&?ﬂlm&#}#@ﬁ%"

2021128310 AEBBERREFE
21@E > EP 1 7EAM R EI=ZAMNE T
Bleot2021F12HA31H AEBRNESHNEE
HWEVIBBEA K TE@ENIESSSH
BYYHK SE83TEYE ) BE525EEE

MERIIEEFTEYE RBBBESIELRK
EEEBA

1608 A0-




CONTENTS
B &k

Corporate Information 4 Directors' Report 66

REER EFERS

Results Highlights 6 Investor Relations Report 90

FESRS REEBGERS

Financial and Business Summary 8 Independent Auditor's Report 91

B REBRE I BEN RS

Awards 11 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and 97

215 Other Comprehensive Income

: rEBnREMEE KD R

Milestones 12

KE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 99
V=P N

Chairman’s Statement 16 mEMBRRE

FESHE Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 101
o A 436 2L Ak

President's Statement 20 EH B

MRS Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 103
SERSTE

Management Discussion and Analysis 25 rERERER

BIRE AT Notes to Financial Statements 106

Biographical Details of Directors 46 PABSRRIIE

and Senior Management Properties Held for Investment Purposes 212

EEREREEBY BESES RERERNYE

Corporate Governance Report 52 Definitions 213

TEERRE =5

r <! i
e
P
l--hl-;-h-
1 -
ReseE
]
- -
= 'hz::::
.""'_“—.—-L__..._—._-_;
o ) A B ]
T—_—--:LI._.____
o
- — —— —p Lt
= —_——————— :
2 5 o TTT [:r_——J-—.-_L: —
ST mEEE) = -
i JITTTTTITTY T ] 4




CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors

HUANG Qingping

XIE Chenguang (Chairman)
MA Baohua

ZHU Li

Executive Directors

LI Chunling
HUANG Xuemei

Independent non-executive Directors

CHOW Siu Hang
LI Yougen
MAOQ Ning

AUDIT COMMITTEE

CHOW Siu Hang (Chairman)
MAO Ning
XIE Chenguang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

MAOQ Ning (Chairman)
XIE Chenguang
LI Yougen

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

XIE Chenguang (Chairman)
MAO Ning
LI Yougen

REGISTERED OFFICE

Sertus Chambers, Governors Square
Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue
P.0. Box 2547

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN THE PRC

5" Floor, Block A Yincheng Plaza
289 Jiangdong Avenue North
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4502, 45" Floor
Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road
Admiralty

Hong Kong
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

P.C. Woo & Co.

12 Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
YIM Lok Kwan

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

HUANG Xuemei
YIM Lok Kwan

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrialand Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Chengxi Branch

COMPANY'S INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Tel: (852) 3107 0066

Fax: (852) 3107 0898

Email: ir@yincheng.hk
COMPANY'S WEBSITE

www.yinchenglife.hk

LISTING INFORMATION
Equity Securities

The Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1922).

Financial Calendar
Annual results announcement: Wednesday, 30 March 2022

Annual General Meeting: Friday, Wednesday, 1 June 2022
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
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Performance Maintained at A Rapid Growth

FERFSEER

Revenue Gross profit Profit for the year

el F AT

1,351.3: 219.2: 94.8:
54054 7350, 3504

2017-2021 CAGR 45.0% 2017-2021 CAGR 43.9% 2017-2021 CAGR 47.9%

2017E22021FR S FIERZE45.0% 2017E2021FEAFIEREA3.9% 2017TE2021F S FIBERETAT.9%
Gross profit margin Profit margin Basic earnings per share
EFE FF=x SREARZEF

1 6.20/0 7.0°/o 033 %

S o B B AR e P st e “ . I w0 s SR sl

The Two Main Businesses Have Grown Substantially

MAEEXZHIKXEER

Property
management
services 48.1%

MEEIERYS

19.9% Residential
properties

[E=y/ES

Property

Totaz:glF:l;venue 1 ! 0 82 . 1 masr‘;siec'::“t 5 6 1 . 4
Value-added NN Million HETT Million BHE T
i YR ESIRIRS
R 1,351.3 § @0 o 47599
2 68 8 Million BE 7T FHEEME ity
. Million &7t
Million B& 7T 5 2 0 . 7 .
~ 41.6% g01% illon B85 o

MAINTAIN A HIGH DIVIDEND RATE TO SHAREHOLDERS #1555k 8 E LU EIEEIR R

FINAL DIVIDEND OF HK$ 1.26 PER TEN SHARES DIVIDEND RATE OF 30%
REKRES1081.268 T KEX30%

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

EIRR
Continue with the Advantages on its Scale;
Substantial Growth in GFA under Management
IEERIRED TEEmEXIRER
Million sq.m. Contracted GFA CAGR a 61.9
SRR svpmammasss  400%
d . GFAund [
T remmEREA R R  528% ewemmm 50.1%
30.8
Contracted GFA 4
223 cwengs  44.8%
14.0
15.5
10.8 ‘

External expansion quickly
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 converted contracted GFA to
GFA under management
LUMREE A RRE( AT EREER
B GFAunder Management [l Contracted GFA
EEREEE BHEEEE

% Y% * #
S o B i T SN i B shiin . A Nl i " A w0 e i SN s e

The Number of Managed Projects Continues to Increase

EREEREREEH

Managed properties Increased by

525:  312:

83 7 Unit 1 2 6 8 Residential Properties Non-residential Properties
«J % EEEE JFEEEE

ot i . I i, s s A N i N 3 M b o

Operating Indicators were Maintained at a High Industry Level

BIEERRERITESKE

Residential Property Non-residential Property
management fee collection rate Pre-collection rate Management fee collection rate
EEMESEE = SEIES EEFEYESEERIE

91.02% 41.19% 93.0%

Comprehensive management fee

clearance rate Customer Satisfaction rate Renewal rate
BEERFEARE ERRMEE BHI=

- 88e 93.0¢
51.6% /o .U%
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY

R CYSE S

TABLE 1: COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE
"ig— . RERR

For the year ended 31 December (audited)

HZE12831A L EE (BER)

RMB'000 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ARETTT 20215 20205 20195 20184 20174
Revenue ON 1,351,329 962,017 695,765 467,666 305,901
Growth rate WRX 40.5% 38.3% 48.8% 52.9% 34.5%
Gross profit EF 219,246 162,385 111,882 67,928 51,096
Growth rate BRE 35.0% 45.1% 64.7% 32.9% 3.5%
Profit for the period/year B,/ ERiEF 94,798 70,215 33,227 27,090 19,821
Growth rate BRE 35.0% 111.3% 22.7% 36.7% (14.5%)
Profit attributable to the parent ~ BAB)#EE AFEMEEF 88,694 67,286 33,121 27,331 20,591
Growth rate WRX 31.8% 103.2% 21.2% 32.7% (12.7%)
Gross profit margin ETIES 16.2% 16.9% 16.1% 14.5% 16.7%
Net profit margin pEF D B 7.0% 7.3% 4.8% 5.8% 6.5%
Core net profit* TR 97,798 N/ATRERA 45,700 N/ARER N/ATEHR
Core net profit margin* A ESy 1.2% N/ATER 6.6% N/ARER N/ATER
EBITDA BRI EE i Al ) 163,326 122,647 65,764 50,561 37,680
Earings per share (RMB) sREAN AR 0.33 0.25 0.16 N/ATER N/ATEHR
* Before deduction of listing expenses or management fee arising from share incentives
* AR LR S RE BN EEEA
EBITDA= Earnings before tax + financial expenses + depreciation and amortisation
BMITER RIS = AR BH+7 75 B B+ 8 B i 5
TABLE 2: RESULTS BY SEGMENTS
RIEZ I HEWEM
For the year ended 31 December (audited)
HE12A310LLEE EF1%)

RMB'000 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ARETT 20205 20194 2018% 20175
Revenue from property MEBERBEWA 1,082,123 771,917 553,091 367,641 232,737

management services
Growth rate BRE 40.2% 39.6% 50.4% 58.0% 37.8%
Revenue from value-added B ERBUIA

services 268,760 189,830 142,674 100,025 73,164
Growth rate WRX 41.6% 33.1% 42.6% 36.7% 25.2%
Gross profit from property MESERBEN

management services 107,797 82,056 54,175 28,460 23,690
Gross profit margin EHE 10.0% 10.6% 9.8% 7.7% 10.2%
Gross profit from value-added ~ HE{ERRFSEF

service 111,003 80,059 57,707 39,468 27,406
Gross profit margin EFIE 41.3% 42.2% 40.4% 39.5% 37.5%

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



TABLE 3: SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET
®E= . HERRREE

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY
MBREHEE

For the year ended 31 December (audited)
BENANALEE (BER)

RMB'000 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
AREEF T 20215 20205 20194 20185 20175
Trade receivables B 5 fElRa 231,037 127,836 70,761 55,530 30,291
Total current assets MENEERE 954,128 861,873 637,052 317,955 260,574
Total assets BEERE 1,135,361 981,052 694,711 387,236 300,402
Contract liabilities aHaE 295,835 233,982 193,489 115,869 89,301
Trade and other payables, B 5 R EHAN S RIE

deposits received and accruals ~ BUIZERIETER 291,516 218,864 276,521 119,675 90,434
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t 8 R1T1ER 209,000 280,000 50,000 30,000 40,000
Total liabilities & B4R 862,425 785,481 572,909 314,067 248,176
Net assets EESE 272,936 195,571 121,802 73,169 52,226
Financial ratios BATSEEE
Return on equity(ROE) RAERR 40.5% 44.2% 34.1% 43.2% 47.1%
Excluding the impact of listing expenses 5% F b B /.2 & & 46.9%
Current ratio RENEE 1.1x 1.1x 1.1x 1.1x 1.3x
Average turnover days of trade B ZEWRIBTHFERY

receivables 48.5 37.7 33.1 335 28.8
Average turnover days of trade BB EMRIEFEEERH

payables 11.1 7.9 0.4 8.5 54
Interest coverage ratio FRBELX 13.9x 11.4x 20.9x 22.1x 13.1x
TABLE 4: SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT
KiEM  RERERBE

For the year ended 31 December (audited)
HE12A31ALLEE 8E1R)

RMB'000 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ARBTT 20215 20205 20195 20184 20174
Net cash generated from REFPMERTMPE

operating activities 120,358 68,000 105,781 35,714 45172
Net cash (used)/generated from &R ZEE) (FIA) /

investing activities PSR E M (59,315)  (3,000,960) 71,318 (104,509) 24,748
Net cash (used)/generated from BREEE) (FTA) /

financing activities PIEIRE R (89,827) 352,056 149,352 (12,369) (12,124)
Net (decrease)/increase BeRREEEY L) /

in cash and cash equivalents E0FER (28,784) 119,096 326,451 (81,164) 57,796
Cash and cash equivalents FXRFERREEEY

atend of year 538,131 566,915 447,819 121,368 202,532

R ERIERRATE

2021 FERS 7
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY
MBREHEE

TABLE 5: BREAKDOWN OF PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

RIRE  MEEERFHA

For the year ended 31 December (audited)

HZE12A310LLEE EFR)
2021 2020
2021 20204
GFA under GFA under
management management
RMB'000 % $q.m.'000 RMB'000 % sg.m.'000 %
7E TE
BERRE BRERR
ARBF 5 FEBK ARBF5 FEBK
By property types REERE S
Residential properties FEYE 561,395 51.9% 46,406 79.0% 397,856 51.5% 30,621 78.2%
Non-residential properties JEFEMZE 520,728 48.1% 12,355 21.0% 374,061 48.5% 8,523 21.8%
By geographic region &R 2
Nanjing MR 822,914 76.0% 34,969 59.5% 638,316 82.7% 26,257 67.1%
Districts outside Nanjing BRUIME 259,209 24.0% 23,792 40.5% 133,601 17.3% 12,887 32.9%
By project sources RIER KRS S
Fromindependentthird ~ ZREBIE=F
parties 974,472 90.1% 52,759 89.8% 689,322 89.3% 34,895 89.1%
From Yincheng Group RERNER 107,651 9.9% 6,002 10.2% 82,595 10.7% 4,249 10.9%
TABLE 6: SUMMARY OF BUSINESS DATA
RIEN  EBEERE
As at 31 December
”®12831H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 20184 20174
Contracted GFA (1000 sq.m) SHREERE (FFHH 61,944 42,768 30,761 22,296 14,018
Growth rate BREX 44.8% 39.0% 38.0% 59.1% 40.6%
GFA under management TEREERE (FTEAR)

(1000 sq.m) 58,761 39,144 26,077 15,463 10,769
Growth rate WRX 50.1% 50.1% 68.6% 43.6% 62.8%
Number of managed properties HEEEB#HE 837 369 239 162 102
Growth rate WRXE 126.8% 54.4% 47.5% 58.8% 61.9%
Customer satisfaction rate” ERmEEN 88% 86% 84% 88% 93%
Renewal rate FRES 93.0% 94.1% 90.4% 100.0% 99.1%
Collection rate of residential FEYEWHEE

properties 91.0% 91.3% 91.1% 89.4% 90.8%
Pre-collection rate of residential X4 TBE=*

properties® 41.1% 39.2% 38.1% 35.4% 32.7%
Collection rate of non-residential FE{EEH Ol =K

properties 93.0% 93.0% 95.0% 93.5% 94.4%

HEWEEE T FERKERE
Accordmg to Beijing Saiwei Consulting

R REIEARDERAT

> > o %

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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Mana ement fee% e-collected this year/ management fee receivable for the year after
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The 18th among the China Top 100 Property
Management Companies®

2021 FREIYD AR S B SR 1 3 55 1811

Huiren HengAn Property was selected for the first
time as "China Top Hundred Property Management
Companies"*

ETECEZYEERAETEERT BRiEE

2021 China Leading Property Management Companies
in terms of Marketisation of Business*

2021 HEIY) X BIRITENHBLEE

The 3rd among the 2020 Top 50 Property Service
Industry in Integrated Strength in Jiangsu Province
20200F VI BB EIRBITRES B IBIR50 1
FEIEEE3ML

“Best Capital Market Communication Award" of the
fourth China IR Excellence Awards

BENESHRREEATIZ BB

Investor Relations Awards — Certificate of Excellence

KEEMFRAERR
Golden Hong Kong Stock - Best Property Management

é%ﬁ%&%%@j

The Tst among the credit ranking of Nanjing Property
Management Industry in 2021

2021 EEE R IR TECRRE—

9 projects under management were assessed as the
2020 Jiangsu Property Management Model Projects
VEEEEE BT R2020F B IHE B R RBYEE

6.

7.
Company

8.

BitihE 9.
BIEH

10.

7 projects under management were assessed as
Property Management Model Projects in Nanjing,
Suzhou and Xuzhou, respectively in 2021

TETEEEE DT A2021FER R D N
RN AR RS X EERR

RN ERIBAEIRAE)
021 EERS
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MILESTONES
ANEAC

JANUARY

1A

We held the annual management committee meeting
of the Group to summarise the year of 2020 with
“stable development” and re-divided seven business
divisions to make the organisational structure more
efficient, as well as setting a new three-year plan
BHAEBRFEEETEG RETRTAEIDN
20205 ERBI D CAF XS EBRBESN
=% E M = F 518

We convened an extraordinary general meeting and
approved the proposed adoption of the Share Option
Scheme

ARKRRRHIAE  BEERRMBRES S

FEBRUARY

2H

We jointly established two companies with Yincheng
Business Management, namely Nanjing Yincheng
Commercial Property services Co., Ltd.* and Nanjing
Yincheng Hui Technology Network Co., Ltd.*, to
enter into the large-scale commercial property
management sector

BRI A E S EM UM RIRMEEYERBAIR
NERIBHERMKEERRATMR AR EEXR
HEEYE R

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

We won the title of "Outstanding Certified
Organisation of 2020 Energy Management System
Certificate and Energy Saving Certificate” and
received the 2020 Jiangsu Quality Rewards and
Subsidies" amounting to RMB100,000. As of the
date of this annual report, the Group has passed the
certification of 9 systems including 1ISO50001:2018
RET2020F EAERE IR R 5058  BIEE MR
BFEBAM > WET 20205 T#H 2 MERE 1M
HEES | 10B B -BEAFRHE AEEE
BB EEIS050001:20187E Y IERE R 5058

< o
RATHARLEEE llll.ﬁlllkllﬂ

A TR i o

e e

MARCH

3R

We established two joint ventures, namely Nanjing
Yincheng Yijia Elderly Healthcare Services Co., Ltd.*
and Nanjing Xinhongju Property Services Co., Ltd*,
so as to commence the community-based elderly
care business and property management service
business in old communities
MIMRGERAFERBHEREERBZERA
BINEREBAENERGARLAR UHERTESR
EEBREELRYECERBES




We published the 2020 annual results, of which our
revenue increased by nearly 40%, profit of the year
increased significantly by approximately 111% and
GFA under management increased by approximately
50%. We held a conference to report our results and
future prospects to Shareholders, investors and the
media

BEM2020F 2 F G WG RITTIRL > AN F)
RIERFAAIN11% > EEEABIEMNAI50% > 16 A2 2
EERR - REA GREREGEBERNRKREKE
=4

L] "

VEBCHIN) LY SRTICH O LT
P

The 2021 China Property Service Top 100
Enterprises Research Results Conference and the
14th Summit for the Top 100 China Property Services
Entrepreneurs took place in Beijing, the Group and
Huiren HengAn, its hospital property service expert,
were both admitted as top 100 enterprises

202V PEMERB EREEMITMREMETES
THEFEYERTABEEREBEEILRES
BT AEEARETERYERBERECRZE
SRETHR

We won the bidding of projects in Hebei and
Shandong, which further expanded our business
layout

PRI RIIRRIER » %R BEK

MILESTONES
REC

MAY
5H

o We successfully convened an annual general
meeting and passed the resolution of declaring final
dividend, as well as having in-depth discussions with
attending Shareholders
RINARRRBERG  BEBRKRARESFZ
8 I B R AY AR BRR A S

. We successfully organised an investor reverse
roadshow and visited five of our typical projects,
namely Keya Industrial Park and Ninghai Road,
Nanjing
ABRREE RO E ) 28R T AEE IR AR
WRDEXE BEREBESEHRNAR

. Granted the first batch of 1.6 million share options in
aggregate to 16 employees

RHEMBRESSIOBERTIHET

RN SERISARAR
20201 EERE
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MILESTONES

KEL

1R

8H

JULY

During the sudden outbreak of pandemic in Nanjing,
we provided assistance in respect of site layout,
equipment handling and order maintenance to 24
projects under management that were selected as
nucleic acid testing sites, and assisted in nucleic acid
testings for more than 460,000 people
ERENEREBEHRRE Tﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ%ff’;ﬁa R
UEEEEEETHMME RBERE K FEE
FIE HEhBBLEA AE’H?E&&,E'J

AUGUST

We published the 2021 interim results, of which
our revenue and profit increased significantly by
over 40% and the proportion of third-party projects
increased again. We held a conference on the
following day to report our results of the first half of
the year and prospects of the second half of the year
to Shareholders, investors and the media
52021 RHR 8 > Ik BRI B AR 1 BIALY
F=HEEMGLEBREA - BEEREMIMRKRER
REN RERER ¥ FREBRIATHERE

F
f

;;é SRS A )
ESfE: 1922 HE

R XA
Interim Results £ Juncement = )

SEPTEMBER
Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.

Annual Report 2021

98

. We convened the interim management committee
meeting with the theme of "awakening”, during
which we reviewed the performance in the first half
of the year and further clarify the return to service
and adhere to our long-term values
BRIER(BE)NTREENES B8 L¥F
T E—PRRELORRBRETRAGE

. Our GFA under management reached 54 million
sg.m. and achieved our full-year goal in advance

EEBRES 4008 F A K RAITHREFER

OCTOBER
102

. We held a traditional activity for owners of Yincheng
Life Services - the Parent-child Charity Festival.
By organising the parent-child run and a series of
activities under the 11th Yincheng Happy Community
Arts Festival*, we connected our property owner,
partners and staff to spread health and positive
energy
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NOVEMBER
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We jointly established Nanjing Xinxin Property
Service* with Nanjing Yinzi Property Operation
Management Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of Nanjing
Bank, which established a new platform in the
financial business sector for the Group, especially
for providing asset service for the entire system of
Nanjing Bank
BFERBETFRAEImRREYELEEERR
BERAE RUMRBEVERD SEEETE
MEGRELEEZERTERBOTRERANEE
B HEERT —EHRFa

r

We held a cooperation signing ceremony with Xi'An
Hecheng Life Technology* and established Yincheng
Life Service (Xi'An) Co., Ltd., so as to expand
markets outside the province with an aim to enlarge
our manageable distance and seek for bigger
development opportunities

EAP 2 M VAR T B ERAVET > I IR
£ERT (%) ARAR ETEINTIHHIMNG
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We successfully organised an investor reverse
roadshow in Suzhou city and visited a few projects
there including Zhihuigu industrial park and Xing'’Ang
Garden, etc.

BRI EE R M E > 28 7 AEE R EMN
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MILESTONES
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DECEMBER
12H

We held the annual "Appreciation Event for Veteran
Employees” to express our gratitude to veterans
with over 10 years of service. Currently, Yincheng
Life Service has 356 staff who have over 10 years of
service , 31 of whom have served the company for
over 20 years.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

The pine tree stands proudly and leisurely on the cliff in the deepening
dusk regardless of the riotous clouds sweeping past swiftly. In 2021,
the property management industry in the PRC has been facing great
changes, in particular, the changes in the real estate industry fostered
the property management services to return to the way of marketisation.
Tapping into businesses with substance and returning to rationalisation
has become the consensus in the industry. At the same time, more
than 50 listed companies engaging in property management also
witnessed several rounds of ups and downs. Externally, we made
changes in response to changes, while internally, we remained the same
that we clearly understood the position of Yincheng Life Service and
our strengths and weaknesses, maintained our focus in Nanjing and
intensively developed our business in the Yangtze River Delta, adopted
the centralised regional development strategy, and adhered to the
operation principle of "operation is the key, reputation comes first".

ESESE

Being fully concentrated and well prepared, our
Group is confident in creating a path for development
with Yincheng's characteristics notwithstanding the
immense changes of the industry.

DEEE - EEER AEERREOETEES
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XIE Chenguang # 2 3t
Chairman I /&
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The social value of property management is proven. With the
implementation of the "Circular on Strengthening and Improving the
Administration of Residential Property” (BRI CEETYES
E T FR93850)) jointly promulgated by ten governmental authorities,
including the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development, at
the beginning of 2021, supportive administrative policies have been
gradually rolled out to support the establishment of property owners
associations, the expansion of property management coverage and the
enhancement of value-added services such as home-based elderly care
so as to encourage property management companies to support the
redevelopment of old urban communities, which will help the industry
to develop towards a healthier and more sustainable path with higher
service quality. Year 2021 marks the start of the 14th Five-Year Plan.
Property management was formally included in the Outline of the 14th
Five-Year Plan issued by the State Council, which pinpointed the need
to, under the guiding principle of uplifting convenience and improving
service experience, foster the upgrade to high-quality and diversified
life-catering services. It also clearly stated the need to accelerate the
development of property management service industries, improve the
supply of public utilities basic services industries as well as expand the
supply of various services covering a full life-cycle. This will drive the
property management industry to return to the basics of service and
enhance service awareness and brand awareness, which promotes
the further upgrade of the mode of "property management services
+ life services”. Along with the implementation of more detailed
provisions issued by governmental authorities of all levels, such as the
“Development Plan of Property Management of the "T4th Five-Year
Plan” of Jiangsu province” (CLEF&" "+ A" YERFBEEEREN)), the
standardisation of property management services, the establishment of
credit system, the implementation of a star rating mechanism, the orderly
competition in the industry and the survival of the fittest will enable high-
quality property management companies with strength and recognition
from property owners to stand out and maintain organic growth.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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Looking forward to 2022, with regards to our overall strategies, being
the largest property management service provider in Nanjing and one of
the top-3 in Jiangsu Province, our Group will continue to give full play to
our advantages in terms of professionalism and marketisation, so as to
venture forward in highflying aspirations and siege. For our operation and
management, my message to the management team is to "stay true to our
roots” and "be innovative". “Stay true to our roots"” has three persistence
insist to be customer-focused to provide high-quality products and high-
quality services; insist to be problem-oriented to improve deficiencies
discovered in our services; and insist on the win-win principle covering
our customers, employees, partners, social responsibilities and
shareholders, as a company will not enjoy sustainable and stable
development without win-win cooperation. “Be innovative" means along
with the extension of the range of services our Group, not only do we
need to have continual adjustment and optimisation of organisation, we
also need to strive for excellence in operation and management, which is
the intended meaning of “operation is the key". In the future, our Group
will proactively explore and discover new sectors and provide services
like community elderly care and others. Being fully concentrated and well
prepared, our Group is confident in creating a path for development with
Yincheng's characteristics notwithstanding the immense changes of the
industry.

XIE Chenguang
Chairman
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PRESIDENT'S STATEMENT
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Dear Board of Directors and Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the results of Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd. for
the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and share the outlook of the

Company in the coming year with you.

By adhering to the concept of “operation is the key,
reputation comes first”, establishing presence in the
Yangtze River Delta to give full play to the strategic
advantages of regional centralisation and adopting
a multi-pronged management approach, the Group
will be able to seize the favourable policy and market
opportunities, thus maintaining sustainable and
stable development.

FAMEERAT -OEEL NES - RER=AILE
BERERCBRREDR - ETEELZTER T &H
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BERERE-

LI Chunling =&
President 48 %
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2021 was the beginning year of the Group's new three-year plan. Thanks
to the dedication and hard work of all our staff, we achieved the annual
target of the size of GFA under management in advance in the third
quarter and the proportion of the GFA under management from third-
party developers further increased to a record high. Various operational
metrics continued to improve. Our management team is highly motivated,
and our talented teams have been expanding in a steady and orderly
manner. Qur income and profitability both reached the targets set at the
beginning of the year and we maintained a stable dividend payout ratio to
share with our shareholders, so as to fulfil the commitment of the Group
in our long-term value by outstanding results.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (the "Period under Review"),
the Group recorded an operating income of approximately RMB1,351.3
million (2020: approximately RMB962.0 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 40.5%. Net profit amounted
to approximately RMB94.8 million (2020: approximately RMB70.2
million), representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 35.0%.
Gross profit margin and net profit margin were approximately 16.2%
and 7.0% respectively. Among which, income from the provision of
property management services amounted to approximately RMB1,082.1
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 40.2%,
and income from provision of value-added services amounted to
approximately RMB268.8 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 41.6%.

As at 31 December 2021, the contracted GFA and GFA under
management were approximately 61.9 million sq.m. and 58.8 million
sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 44.6%
and 50.4%, respectively, far exceeding the growth target of 35% set
by the Group at the beginning of the year. In particular, among the GFA
under management of approximately 20 million sq.m. which were newly
expanded during the year, more than 91% came from third parties,
therefore, the proportion of the overall GFA under management of the
Group which was derived from third-party projects increased to a high
level of approximately 89.8% and the majority of which came from
second-hand projects (i.e. the contracts secured from the property
owners' associations in the market by the Group actively). For second-
hand projects, the whole process, ranging from securing, improving and
fulfilling the Group's service standards of realising profits and improving
gross profit margin, presented a big challenge to the integrated
capability of property management enterprises. Thanks to the Group's
business model featuring detailed management, modularisation and
professionalisation as well as the persistence and commitment of our
staff to providing quality services, the Group managed to stand out from
the intense market competition and satisfied all the requirements of
demanding customers. This demonstrated that property owners' trust
in our brand of "Yincheng Life", their recognition of our works and the
willingness to offer an opportunity to the Group to be the long-term
property management partners of property owners, so as to preserve
and add value to the properties.
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During the Period under Review, the Group insisted on having a
centralised regional development strategy. While having increased
our presence in cities, we strived for a stable growth with high quality.
The Group has solidified its leading position in Nanjing by actively
implementing the strategy of "increasing its presence in Nanjing,
expanding the market in the southern part of Jiangsu Province and
exploring the market in Huaihai district” on one hand and securing
footholds in more markets with promising potential on the other hand.
During the Period under Review, the Group pioneered to cities like
Nantong to further expand its presence.

With respect to Nanjing as our base market, as at 31 December 2021,
the Group managed a total of 643 projects in Nanjing and the GFA under
management was approximately 35 million sq.m., representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 33.2%. The wide presence of Nanjing's
projects facilitated the Group to use dense network and customer
resources of projects, not only to enhance operational efficiency and
increase value created per headcount of employees by better cost
control, but also to introduce traffic for the Groups' various community
value-added services and city value-added services, such as electric
scooter battery swap, so as to bring considerable and sustainable
revenue to the Group. During the Period under Review, the development
of regions other than Nanjing secured commendable results, of which
the newly-added GFA under management exceeded 10 million sgq.m.
and the total GFA under management reached approximately 24 million
sqg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 84.6%
and accounting for approximately 40.5% of the Group's total GFA under
management. This has once again verified the Group's ability to replicate
its success in Nanjing to other regions.

The two-pronged strategy of "keep existing clients” and “gain new
clients” ensured the stability and orderly growth of our businesses. For
keeping existing clients, leveraging the Group's quality services and
sound operation capability, the renewal rate of existing clients of the
Group remained at a high level at approximately 93%. General customer
satisfaction was approximately 88%.The integrated collection rate of our
residential properties customers was approximately 91.0% and the pre-
collection rate (i.e. pre-payment of management fees for the coming year
in the current year) reached approximately 41.1%.

For gaining new clients, the Group secured new contracts through four
channels, including direct engagement by customers, winning public
tenders, acquisition of property management companies and projects
referred from the parent group. During the Period under Review, the
Group had a net increase of 468 new projects under management, the
proportion of new projects secured through the above four channels was
approximately 62%, 29%, 5% and 4%, respectively.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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For residential properties, the Group was honoured to participate in
urban renewal management and newly expanded the product line
of old urban communities, which 281 engagements were received
from such projects. Being one of the first batch of pilot cities of urban
renewal across the country in 2027, Nanjing started the renovation of
old communities. The measures included highlighting the importance of
reconstruction of common areas at residential communities, promoting
the addition of elevators to existing residential buildings, and providing
proactive supports for residents to withdraw housing provident funds for
the renovation of old communities, etc. This could not only bring stable
property management fee income to the Group, but also bring about
a large customer base, which was beneficial for the penetration of the
Group's value-added services in the future. Besides, Jingdian Technology,
a professional company of the Group, also gave full play of its advantages
and obtained a number of elevator installation and maintenance projects
for such communities, which broadened the income stream of the Group.

For non-residential properties, the Group secured a number of
projects in sub-sectors like hospitals, debut venues, industrial parks
and transportation facilities, and accumulated extensive management
experience therefrom. During the year, the Group expanded into the
management of commercial complex and was contracted for 6 projects.
During the Period under Review, the GFA under management of non-
residential projects only accounted for approximately 21%, but the
proportion of property management income contributed by them already
reached approximately 48.1%, representing the enormous potential of
non-residential projects, and this will be one of the Group's key areas of
development.

With maintaining customer satisfaction being our core, the Group is
determined to provide sustainable value-added services only where
there is a strong demand from customers with high using frequency,
of which successful examples include fitness training (which has
already expanded to services like team building, training and summer
camps), pick-up lockers and electric vehicle charging. Among which,
the newly-added group catering and decoration services have been on
the right track after operating for one year, which together contributed
approximately RMB50.0 million to the revenue during the Period under
Review. Benefitting from the wide presence of our projects in Nanjing,
the new electric scooter battery swap service of the Group has been
developing rapidly. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has built more
than 500 smart battery swapping stations with more than 10,000
registered riders, which contributed approximately RMB10.0 million to
the revenue during the Period under Review. In the meantime, the Group
launched home-based elderly care services in response to the favourable
“property+ elderly care” policy and the needs of property owners, and has
become a pilot entity in Nanjing.
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For years, the Group insisted on our way of marketisation. Despite all the
hardships, the management firmly believes that industry competition in
the future will be focused on the existing markets. Evidencing from the
adjustments and promotion of property management policies in recent
two years, we are pleased to see that it has become a trend for property
management companies to provide high-quality services in exchange
for market-oriented revenue as returns to achieve "matching quality and
price”. After years of attempts and practices, the Group has established a
comprehensive and unique external expansion and operation model and
become a "second-hand property management expert”. We are confident
that we will continue to stand out in the broad market and gain more
market share.

A good start has already laid down a solid foundation. Looking forward,
the Group will endeavour to achieve our three-year goals according to
our existing strategies. In terms of business development, the Group will
still continue to focus on market expansion and also identify high-quality
merger and acquisition targets that can bring along real synergies as and
when appropriate, so as to expand our scale or enrich our business lines.
While increasing our presence in Nanjing, we will further develop the
Yangtze River Delta areas, so as to develop economies of scale and brand
impact in regions outside Nanjing. In terms of residential projects, we will
also explore diversified value-added services to enhance the residents'
well-being and loyalty, while different types of “Industry+" services for
non-residential projects are sought to be offered to non-residential
customers in order to provide protection for customers and allow them
to realise greater business value. With the rapid increase in the number
of projects, the Group has established a comprehensive talent training
and incentive system, so as to reserve high-quality talents for sustainable
development in the future.

The Group believes that, by adhering to the concept of “"operation is
the key, reputation comes first”, establishing presence in the Yangtze
River Delta to give full play to the strategic advantages of regional
centralisation and adopting a multi-pronged management approach,
the Group will be able to seize the favourable policy and market
opportunities, thus maintaining sustainable and stable development and
delivering long-term returns to the shareholders of the Company.

LI Chunling
President

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE R

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

The Group is an established property management service provider in
the PRC with over 20 years of industry experience that engages in the
provision of diversified property management services and value-added
services. As at 31 December 2021, the Group's property management
services covered 21 PRC cities, of which 17 cities are in the Yangtze
River Delta Megalopolis, with the GFA under management reaching
approximately 58.8 million sq.m. The Group managed 837 properties,
including 525 residential properties and 312 non-residential properties,
serving over 500,000 households which covers over 1.6 million people as
at 31 December 2021.

The Group's business covers a wide spectrum of properties, including
residential properties and 11 types of non-residential properties. The
Group operates its business along two main business lines, namely
the provision of (i) property management services; and (ii) value-
added services. Leveraging on the Group's business scale, operational
efficiency, excellent service quality, development potential and social
responsibility, the Group obtained various awards in 2021 including
ranking the 18th among the China Top 100 Property Management
Companies®, ranking the 3rd among the Top 50 Property Management
Companies of Jiangsu Province* and ranking the 1st again in the Nanjing
Property Management Industry Credit Handbook Directory*.

The Group adheres to its business motto of "Operation is the Key,
Reputation Comes First” and service concept of “Living™ and “Industry™,
and has adopted the special business model of “Service alignment,
Business modularisation, Modules specialisation and Management
digitalisation” to serve and create value for its customers with quality
property management services.
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New old urban community project in 2021: Ninghai Road, Nanjing
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The Group provides a wide range of property management services that
comprises security services, cleaning services, car park management,
repair and maintenance of specialised elevators, escalators and
mechanical car park equipment, gardening and landscaping services,
daily repair and maintenance of equipment and machinery and ancillary
customer services.

The contracted GFA and GFA under management

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's contracted GFA was approximately
61.9 million sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 44.6% as
compared to its contracted GFA at approximately 42.8 million sg.m. as at
31 December 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to an increase in
the number of projects undertaken by the Group from its new customers
and existing customers leveraging on the Group's solid reputation,
customers' recognition and market strength.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's GFA under management was
approximately 58.8 million sq. m., representing an increase of
approximately 50.4% as compared to its GFA under management
at approximately 39.1 million sq.m. as at 31 December 2020. The
increase was mainly attributable to the Group's solid and high quality
services and market reputation which enables the Group to have
a competitive advantage in the industry, leading to it being able to
secure the engagement as the property management service provider
for properties that are pending delivery to the owners during its
preliminary stage from property developers and completed properties
from property owners' associations and property developers by
replacing the then existing property management service providers.

In view of the Group's strong market expansion capabilities, the
number of new contracted projects undertaken from property owners’
associations accounted for a larger proportion as compared to those
undertaken from property developers, and such contracted projects
have quickly become the Group's projects under management a few
months after the Group has been engaged as the property management
service provider. As such, the Group's contracted GFA and GFA under
management in 2021 were similar.

The Group had 837 managed properties as at 31 December 2021,
representing an increase of approximately 126.8% or 468 managed
properties as compared to its 369 managed properties as at 31 December
2020.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERE SRR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The table below sets out the Group's (i) contracted GFA; (ii) GFA under
management; (iii) number of contracted properties; and (iv) number of
managed properties, as at the dates indicated:

TREJINAATARAEREN()SHNERE
B (NEEREER ; (I GAMEHRE &
(VEEMEHE

As at 31 December

AHIRBER 1
(FTHH)

7 RS
(FTHK)

SYRLIES (=

EEYEUE

Contracted GFA™et) ('000 sg.m.)
GFA under management®™et) ('000 sq.m.)

Number of contracted properties
Number of managed properties

128318
2020 2021 Increase
20204 20214 1N
42,768 61,944 44.8%
39,144 58,761 50.1%
392 863 120.2%
369 837 126.8%

Note: The above GFA excludes service engagements solely for the provision of repair
and maintenance of specialised elevators, escalators and mechanical car park
equipment and gardening and landscaping services, without engaging the Group
for other property management services.

Misf: LHREEEACEAEERERER 8
IR R MM B (R B A E R R B LU EM
ML RGEERERBMEREAFERREHE

) EEERBHIRB T

CONTINUOUS SCALE EXPANSION RiEiHEIER

Contracted GFA
SHEEER

million sq.m. BEBFHK

GFA under management
TEREER

million sq.m. BEF K

-~
Growthrate 12E%: +44.6%

2020 2021
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Geographic Coverage

The Group has grown from a local property management service
provider in Nanjing to one of the leading property management service
providers in both Nanjing and the Jiangsu Province. As at 31 December
2021, our property management services covered 21 PRC cities, of
which 17 cities are in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis. The Group
has actively expanded its business to cities outside Nanjing and have
made rapid progress, in particular in Sunan and Huaihai districts.
As at 31 December 2021, the GFA under management in districts
outside Nanjing had a huge increase by approximately 84.6%, reaching
approximately 40.5% of the Group's total GFA under management,
and representing an increase of 7.6 percentage points as compared to
the proportion of approximately 32.9% of the Group's total GFA under
management as at 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERE SRR

WIZEEEE
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‘ Further develop the market of wealthy cities in
the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis with Nanjing as the regional centre
Increase Presence in Nanjing, Expand the market in the Southern part of Jiangsu
Explore the market in Huaihai District

UBRABEEZOEHR=AERNT

* Data from Nanjing Bureau Of Statistics, Nanjing has a usual resident
population of 9.4 million as of the end of 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B wmAD

The table below sets out the breakdown of (i) the Group's GFA under R FHFr~E AL MIBE GBI DA9() &
management; and (ii) the number of the Group's managed propertiesby EBMNEEERREE ; L) EBNEEY
geographic region as at the dates indicated:

FHERM :

As at 31 December

®12B318
2020 2021
20205 20215
Number of Number of
GFAunder managed GFA under managed
management e properties  [uENENE LR Increase properties Increase
TERRE TENME TERRE HENE
Efg =) B E R %E 1&m = 1&m
('000sq.m.) (‘000 sq.m.) % ('000 sq.m.) %
FERH (FE5H) (FE5H)
Nanjing BR 26,257 277 34,969 33.2 643 (o2 132.1
% % 67.1 59.5 (Hz£2)
Districts outside BRUSMIHE
Nanjing 12,887 92 23,792 84.6 194 110.9
% % 329 40.5
Total wast 39,144 369 58,761 50.1 837 126.8
Notes: Fts

1. The above GFA excludes service engagements solely for the provision of repair 1. it EmEmAEN SRR HEEER B8k

and maintenance of specialised elevators, escalators and mechanical car park 18 R M8 1Al BB 111 582 R A 1B e (R B DA B AR T e
equipment and gardening and landscaping services, without engaging the Group EEERBMEBEFAEEREE GRS
for other property management services. EBRFBHARF T/E-

2. Thisincludes 281 old urban communities that were newly added.

2. WCEEWRER281EEE/ M-

The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's property  FER#EI PRI AE B G IE @8 o
management services revenue by geographic region for the periods A2 EIERFE U AN

indicated:
For the year ended 31 December
HE12B3MHILEE
2020 2021
20204 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARET
Nanjing R 638,316 82.7 822,914 76.0
Districts outside Nanjing RSNV E 133,601 17.3 259,209 24.0
Total “Et 771,917 100.0 1,082,123 100.0

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



Types of Property Management Services

The Group provides property management services in respect of both
residential and non-residential properties. As at 31 December 2021,
the non-residential properties managed by the Group comprised 11
types of properties, namely government facilities, financial institutions,
property sales offices, medical institutions, commercial complex,
parks, transportation facilities, industrial parks, mixed-use properties,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERE SRR

MEEERBER

FEBAFTTRIIEETYERHYESIER
o2021FE1283 1B AEBEEENIEE
TYIERVVEYEAR > BDBAFRIE - £/
B YEHESH BEREE BELRS
B ABESE -RXERm - EXEEE-ESH
RYPE r“i&%m&%@ﬂ%o

s

B AN
i IT0E

education institutions and office buildings.

Government Facilities Financial Institutions Property Sales Offices
BTaRHE TR LES I

¢
o

Parks Medical Institutions
NEBE BRI

£

CommerualComp[ex
[EE=ta=y

Non-residential properties JE{X 4%

ik ok

Office Buildings Education Institutions

AN BREE

Transportatlon Facilities
BRI

(&

f=

Mixed-use Properties

RERRYZE

Industrial Parks

EXEE

While the provision of property management services in respect of
residential properties is the foundation of the Group's revenue generation
and scale expansion, the Group is actively seeking to improve its brand
awareness in the non-residential sector by diversifying its services
offerings to include other types of non-residential properties, optimising
its project portfolio and adjusting its business structure. The Group's
provision of property management services in respect of non-residential
properties has grown rapidly and reached a total of 312 projects as at
31 December 2021, representing an increase of approximately 50.7% as
compared to thatas at 31 December 2020.

BEATEYERHYESERBENAKRE
EERKEMRIEERERENRE  AEFLES
KRBBBGEMBENIEETYEMAREE
BEUZHREERBEL - BLEBHHEGK
HEHERGHE IR ETIEFEEEN
FERIBE o ﬁ%@&t#ﬁ%%%%ﬁ%@
X EERBFPVERDRERE > 1720215128
3JTEEHA312EEE > 8&2020F12831H
HAN4950.7% ©

Newly entered oty in 2021: Hai'an Hospital, Nantong
202V EHEART | mAETEZARER

2021 R R E R EAL

2021 Nanjing Property Management Model Project: Yueshan Mansion
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

The table below sets out the breakdown of (i) the Group's GFA under R EHF P~ B AR EER B D) &
management; and (ii) the number of the Group's managed propertiesby EBMNEEERREE ; R EBETEEYE

property types as at the dates indicated: HEPRM
As at 31 December
®12B318
2020 2021
20204 20215

Number of Number of

GFAunder managed GFA under managed
management (e properties [uELEL [ EEA Increase properties  Increase

TEERE TENE EERE EEME
= #E - i 1&m Y8 1&m
('000sq.m.) (‘000 sq.m.) % Y

(FEFK) (FFHXK)

Residential properties ~ ET#% 30,621 162 46,406 51.5 525 224, (ote2)(32)

Non-residential properties JE{E £ 8,523 207 12,355 45.0 312 50.7

Total 4t 39144 369 58,761 50.1 837 126.8

Notes: st :

1. The above GFA excludes service engagements solely for the provision of repair 1. iR mAE N AR RS EER B8k
and maintenance of specialised elevators, escalators and mechanical car park 165 J52 1% 1 BB (AL 5% 18 M 18 e (R B DA e B M L e
equipment and gardening and landscaping services, without engaging the Group EEERBMERESASEREEGYESE
for other property management services. EBARBHIRFS LIE

2. The increase in the number of managed residential properties includes the newly 2. EEFEEYEHERNEMEENILMN281EEE
added 281 old urban communities. If such old urban communities were not taken INE oA R ERE NG 122021812831
into account, there were 244 managed residential properties as at 31 December BHREB2ULIBEEFEYE  R2021412831H
2021, representing an increase of approximately 50.6% as compared to that as at 18 IN%950.6% ©

31 December 2020.

The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's revenue and gross ~ RZ 5| R Fi AR A £ B R W) 55 B 2 5

profit margin from property management services by property types for g4 &SRR I 25 & EF) ZBB4T :
the periods indicated:

For the year ended 31 December

BE12B3HLEE
2020 2021
20204 20215
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue margin Revenue Increase margin
Wz ERx 6 1 EFE
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
ARBFT AREFT
Residential properties FEME 397,856 7.1 561,395 41.1 1.0
% % 515 51.9
Non-residential FEEEME
properties 374,061 14.4 520,728 39.2 13.1
% % 48.5 48.1
Total 4zt 771,917 10.6 1,082,123 40.2 10.0

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



Revenue Model

For the year ended 31 December 2021, all of the Group's property
management fees were charged on a lump sum basis.

Project Sources

The Group is known for its market-oriented model and has strong
external expansion capabilities. As at 31 December 2021, over 89.8%
of the Group's GFA under management were obtained from the market,
either from property owners associations or independent third party
property developers. At the same time, the Group has also been providing
property management services to Yincheng Group and has been
generating stable income from such property projects at their preliminary
stage.

The table below sets out the breakdown of (i) the Group's GFA under
management; and (i) the number of the Group's managed properties by
project sources as at the dates indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEEHHREIT 4
st
HZE2021F12B31BLEEE  XEBEFREY
¥ S IPE RO H I UER o
HE KR

AEBUHBFEEXNER  AF R85
ERHREAE 1o 120214128310 AEREB
B8 BN EEEREBERTS LESE
REESTERBUE=AYEBEEF ML
[, AEET—EHRENEFRRHYES
BRF Ut ZERHEENYEBERRE
EBTEWA

TR BREB RS DY) A
SENEERREER ; (i) XEENEEY
EEEPM

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2020 2021
20204 2021
GFA (Note) Number GFA (Note) Increase
BEmEE BEEE
) = 2 184
('000sg.m.) (000 sq.m.) %
(FERK (FERXK
Projects from independent ZREBIHE=FH
third parties HNIEE 34,895 343 52,759 51.2 807
% % 89.1 89.8
Projects from Yincheng RERIMER
Group HNIEE 4,249 26 6,002 413 30
% % 10.9 10.2
Total Mt 39,144 369 58,761 50.1 837

Note: The above GFA excludes service engagements solely for the provision of repair
and maintenance of specialised elevators, escalators and mechanical car park
equipment and gardening and landscaping services, without engaging the Group
for other property management services.

MizE: LtHREEEACEMEREHEEER 8
BB RN E (R B S R R B LU EM
i TR A CEERFMEREAEREHRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue generated from the
Group's property management services by project sources for the periods
indicated:

TREJAEBRFTRAE S ERRIEE R
RERRIE DY) R EIEARES W B AR

For the year ended 31 December

HE12RHILEE
2020 2021
20204 20215
Revenue Revenue Increase
W W #1n
RMB'000 RMB'000 %
ARETF T AREFT
Projects from independent third parties REBIE=HNIEE 689,322 974,472 41.4
% % 89.3 90.1
Projects from Yincheng Group RERMERNIER 82,595 107,651 303
% % 10.7 9.9
Total MmE 771,917 1,082,123 40.2
Value-added Services 1R ERRTS

The Group provides value-added services to property owners and
residents of its managed properties with an aim to enhance the level
of convenience at its managed communities and customer experience,
satisfaction and royalty.

The Group's value-added services mainly include (i) common area value-
added services; and (ii) community convenience services. The Group's
common area value-added services include rental of advertising space
and the provision of management services of the community's common
area and spaces. The Group's community convenience services refer to
the comprehensive and diversified convenience services provided by the
Group in response to the owners' needs, including but not limited to rental
of gym and membership services, the use of express delivery cabinets,
home renovation, housekeeping, home and elderly care, charging of
electric vehicles and operation of staff canteens for non-residential
properties owners. In recent years, the Group has introduced other value-
added services through intensive project deployment to provide services
to owners in the communities managed by the Group and residents living
in the surrounding communities, including the rider battery swap service
the Group currently provides.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue generated
from the provision of value-added services amounted to approximately
RMB268.8 million, representing an increase of approximately 41.6% as
compared to that of RMB189.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. Such increase was mainly attributable to an increase in the number
of projects undertaken by the Group and the diversification of the scope
of services provided by the Group following its continuous business
development.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's revenue and gross
profit margin of value-added services for the periods indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD

TREICPATABE A EEEERBHNWD
R B ZEAAE

For the year ended 31 December

HEN2RNALEE
2020 2021
20204 20214
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue margin Revenue Increase ET]
Wi ERX 623 1&m eIk
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
ANRBFT AEBFRT
Value-added services BERY
(i) Commonareavalue-added (i) HFEZERIIL(ERH
service 142,108 49.6 199,102 40.1 46.6
(i) Community convenience (i) EEHEER R
services 47,722 200 69,658 46.0 26.3
Total 1mst 189,830 422 268,760 41.6 413
Impact on the COVID-19 Pandemic MERBEINEE

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has brought great challenges to
the property management industry in 2021, but has also highlighted the
value and contribution of the industry to the society. Notwithstanding the
increase in costs of approximately RMBO.4 million incurred in purchasing
pandemic prevention materials during the year ended 31 December 2021,
there was no material adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
Group's operations, financial performance and financial position, as well
as liquidity positions and working capital sufficiency with reference to the
Group's operations and capital commitment.

In response to the needs of property owners and residents and for their
convenience during the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group launched a
number of new value-added services in 2021. As a result of the increasing
demand for these services during the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had
in fact generated more revenue in its provision of value-added services as
compared to 2020.

The Group also foresee the increasing demand for property management
services in the future as the government and property owners residing in
old residential communities realise the importance and value of engaging
property management companies to provide comprehensive property
management and value-added services during the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group will keep paying close attention to the development of the
COVID-19 pandemic and evaluate its impact on the Group's financial
position and operating results in order to make timely response and
adjustments as appropriate going forward.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 40.5% from
approximately RMB962.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB1,351.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 as a result of (i) an increase in the number of residential and non-
residential projects undertaken by the Group which led to an increase
in the income from the provision of property management services; (ii)
the diversification of the scope of value-added services provided by
the Group following its continuous business development and (iii) the
revenue received by the Group after completion of the acquisition of 51%
equity interest in Nanjing Huiren HengAn Property Management Co.,
Ltd.* in March 2020, which only has a 9-month combined effect on the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 but a 12-month combined
effect on the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's revenue by
business segments for the periods indicated:

Bt %% o] g8

g
AEBEBNKRFBHEE2020F12831HLE
EHARKI62. 0B B Tl MAL0.5%EEHE
20211283 B EEENARK1,351.35
B DHR)VAERAZENEERIEET
HEHEMEN B REYESERBHE
WABFIEE (I )BEZEEE IR A&
B ML ERBSEEEFFEA ; K4
EEMR2020FE38 B RECIEZY
EEIWEIR QTS %M 5 % Fr U B A IR &
HE#HFE2020FE12831BIEEENKHES
VEBM G HEE EHEZE2021F12831
HIEFEEMKRGZABENESNEGHEE-

TREJINAAITHARAEEREBDEHE D
By U o BRAR

For the year ended 31 December

BHENANHLEE
2020 2021
20204 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT
Property management services MEBIERE 771,917 80.24 1,082,123 80.08
Value-added services 1B E RS 189,830 19.73 268,760 19.89
Others Mot Hih 6 270 0.03 446 0.03
Total 45t 962,017 100.00 1,351,329 100.00
Note: Representing gross rentalincome from investment property operating leases MisE . IEREYELSERENERSIWA

Revenue from the provision of property management services increased
by approximately 40.2% from approximately RMB771.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB1,082.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Such increase was primarily due to
the continuous increase in (i) the Group's GFA under management in
residential properties projects; and (i) the number of non-residential
properties projects undertaken by the Group.

Revenue from the provision of value-added services increased by
approximately 41.6% from approximately RMB189.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB268.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Such increase was primarily due to an increase
n (i) the number of projects under management; (ii) increase in value-
added services provided to the projects under management due to the
optimisation of the property management environment; and (iii) the
diversification of the scope of services provided by the Group.
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The Group's cost of sales consists of labour costs, subcontracting costs,
equipment operation and facility maintenance costs, material costs,
depreciation of right-of-use assets, office expenses and others.

The Group's cost of sales increased by approximately 41.6% from
approximately RMB799.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMBT1,132.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
primarily due to an increase in the number of staff and subcontracting
costs as a result of the expansion of the Group's business.

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's gross profit increased by
approximately 35.0% from approximately RMB162.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB219.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The gross profit margin decreased
slightly from approximately 16.9% for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately 16.2% for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such
decrease was primarily due to (i) the absence of policies and measures
in 20217 to reduce taxes and fees as implemented by the State Taxation
Administration in 2020 due to the impact of the COVID-19; and (ii) the
fact that the social security base and minimum wage level in the Jiangsu
Province has increased since July 2021, resulting in an increase in the
expenses of social insurance payable by the Group.

The Group's other income and gains mainly represents interests income,
investment income, government grants, gain on disposal of items of
property, plantand equipment and others.

The Group's other income and gains decreased by approximately 16.6%
from approximately RMB15.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB12.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, primarily due to a decrease in interests income during the year.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses consist primarily of staff
costs, advertising and promotional expenses, office expenses, business
development expenses, travelling expenses and others.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
7.4% from approximately RMB5.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB5.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, primarily due to a continuous increase in the Group's business
expansion.

The Group's administrative expenses primarily include staff costs,
professional fees, office expenses, business development expenses,
rental expenses, travelling expenses, depreciation and amortisation,
bank charges, taxes and others.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group's administrative expenses increased by approximately 21.1%
from approximately RMB60.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB73.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, primarily due to an increase in staff costs as a result of the Group's
business expansion.

The Group's loss on disposal of investment property increased by 100%
from nil for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB3.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily due to the loss
incurred in disposing of an investment property.

The Group's impairment losses on financial assets, net increased by
approximately 194.7% from approximately RMB3.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB11.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, primarily due to a significant increase in the
amount of accounts receivable due to the Group’s expansion of business,
which has led to the accrual of impairment losses.

The Group's finance costs mainly include interest on bank borrowings and
other loans and interest on lease liabilities in relation to lease liabilities
recorded for properties leased by the Group for operation of its offices
and fitness centres.

The Group's finance costs remained relatively stable at approximately
RMB10.0 million for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021.

The Group's share of profits and losses of associates decreased by
approximately 751.2% from having a profit of approximately RMB86,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to having a loss of approximately
RMB560,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily due to
the losses recorded from two newly established associated companies,
namely Nanjing Yincheng Hui Technology Network Co. Ltd.* and Taizhou
Runze Life Service Co., Ltd.* as both of their businesses are still in the
early investment and development stage.

The Group's share of profits of joint ventures increased by approximately
600% from approximately RMBO0.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB1.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, primarily due to the profits generated as a result of the
business growth of the joint ventures.
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The Group's income tax refers to PRC enterprises income tax at a tax
rate of 25% on taxable profits of its subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC. Some subsidiaries of the Group are qualified as small-low-profit
enterprises and thus are subject to a preferential tax rate of 5% to 10% for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group's income tax expense increased by approximately 19.9% from
approximately RMB28.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB34.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
primarily due to an increase in the profit before tax.

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's profit increased by approximately
35.0% from approximately RMB70.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB94.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2021. Profits attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB88.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 31.8% as
compared to the corresponding period in 2020. The net profit margin
was approximately 7.0% for the year ended 31 December 2021, down 0.3
percentage points from approximately 7.3% in the corresponding period
in 2020. While the net profit margin decreased slightly, it was still at a
normal level. The decrease is due to the decrease in gross profit margin
and the increase in the impairment loss of financial assets.

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy and maintained
a healthy financial position during the year ended 31 December 2021.
The Group's current assets amounted to approximately RMB954.1 million
as at 31 December 2021, representing an increase of approximately
10.7% as compared to that of approximately RMB861.9 million as at 31
December 2020. The Group's cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately RMB538.1 million as at 31 December 2021, representing a
decrease of approximately 5.1% as compared to that of RMB566.9 million
as at 31 December 2020, primarily due to the decrease in short-term
loans of approximately RMB71.0 million.

The Group's total equity amounted to approximately RMB272.9 million
as at 31 December 2021, representing an increase of approximately
39.5% as compared to that of approximately RMB195.6 million as at 31
December 2020. Such increase was mainly due to an increase in the profit
of approximately RMB94.8 million during the year and the distribution of
dividends of approximately RMB20.0 million.
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The Group's property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
RMB75.2 million as at 31 December 2021, representing an increase of
approximately 216.0% as compared to that of approximately RMB23.8
million as at 31 December 2020. This was primarily due to (i) the
purchase of office buildings by the Group during the year for daily office
use in light of the Group's business expansion and increase in the number
of staff; (ii) an increase in office equipment, electronic devices and
other devices and leasehold improvements as a result of the expansion
in the Group's business; and (iii) the renovation of the existing business
equipment and venues during the year.

The Group's trade receivables primarily consist of receivables for its
property management services and value-added services from its
customers. The Group's trade receivables amounted to approximately
RMB231.0 million as at 31 December 2021, representing an increase of
approximately 80.8% as compared to that of approximately RMB127.8
million as at 31 December 2020. This was primarily due to (i) the increase
in the Group's revenue in 2021; and (ii) the fact that the Group agreed
to extend the repayment date for part of the payments for certain non-
residential customers in light of the impact of the COVID-19 and the
long-term cooperative relationship with these customers. The Group is
confident to receive these outstanding payments in the first half of 2022.

The Group's prepayments, deposits and other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB76.7 million as at 31 December 2021, representing an
increase of approximately 24.3% as compared to that of approximately
RMB61.7 million as at 31 December 2020. This was mainly due to an
increase in other deposits including bid bond and performance bond as
a result of an increase in the number of property management projects
undertaken by the Group.

The Group's trade payables primarily consist of payables to suppliers and
subcontractors. The Group's trade payables amounted to approximately
RMB44.5 million as at 31 December 2021, representing an increase of
approximately 83.9% as compared to that of approximately RMB24.2
million as at 31 December 2020. This was mainly due to an increase in the
number of property management projects undertaken by the Group.

The Group's other payables, deposits received and accruals amounted to
approximately RMB247.0 million as at 31 December 2021, representing
an increase of approximately 26.9% as compared to that of approximately
RMB194.7 million as at 31 December 2020. This was mainly due to (i)
an increase in the collection and remittance of public expenses resulted
from the increase in the number of property management projects
undertaken by the Group; and (ii) an increase in the remuneration
payable to staff as a result of the increase in the number of staff brought
by the business expansion of the Group.
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Contract Liabilities

The Group receives payments from its customers based on billing
schedules as provided in the property management agreements.
A portion of the payments are usually received in advance of the
performance under the contracts which are mainly from property
management services. According to the Group's business model, for
revenue recognised from the provision of property management services,
all such revenue are carried forward from contract liabilities during the
year ended 31 December 2021. Most of the Group's contract liabilities are
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year as at 31 December
2021.

The Group's contract liabilities amounted to approximately RMB295.8
million as at 31 December 2021, representing an increase of
approximately 26.4% as compared to that of approximately RMB234.0
million as at 31 December 2020. This was mainly due to the Group's
practice of collecting part of the property management fees for the
upcoming year in advance during the previous year, and therefore, the
increase in the scale of the Group's projects has led to an increase in the
amount of property management fees received in advance.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had interest-bearing bank
borrowings of RMB209.0 million, as compared to RMB280.0 million as at
31 December 2020. The Group's borrowings are all denominated in RMB.

The table below sets out the Group's total debts as at the dates indicated:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The table below sets out the repayment schedule of the Group's
borrowings as at the dates indicated:

TR B AR EE B R E R RE
E

As at 31 December

ERERERER

Repayable within one year

®12831H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ABEF T
209,000 280,000

The table below sets out the effective interest rates for the Group's
borrowings as at the dates indicated:

TEREIINFAREREEREROERT
SK .

=
As at 31 December
®128318
2020
20204
%
Current: ENHA :
Bank loans - secured RITEF—FER 4.20-4.35 4.35
Financial Risks BA % bR

The Group is exposed to risks arising from its financial instruments such
as interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Interest Rate Risk
The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest
rate risk, and obtains all bank borrowings with a fixed rate.

Credit Risk

The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics, such as instrument types and credit risk ratings
for the purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and
calculation of impairment.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, the fair values
of pledged deposits, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, and amounts due from
related companies included in the statement of financial position
represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, all cash and cash equivalents were deposited in
high-credit-quality financial institutions without significant credit risk.
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Liguidity Risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank
borrowings. Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

As all of the Group's businesses are conducted in the PRC, revenue
and profits for the year ended 31 December 2021 were denominated in
RMB. The major foreign currency source for the Group is the fundraising
following the successful listing on the Stock Exchange in 2019, all of
which were in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December 2021, the Group did
not have significant foreign currency exposure from its operations. The
Group currently has not used derivative financial instruments to hedge
its foreign exchange risk. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The Group's gearing ratio is calculated based on net debt divided by
total capital plus net debt. The Group includes, within net debt, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, amounts due to related companies and lease
liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents. The Group's capital represents
equity attributable to owners of the Company. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group's gearing ratio was not applicable.

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 6 November 2019 with the issue of 66,680,000 new shares.
The total net proceeds from the listing of the shares of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (including the exercise of
the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus) amounted to
approximately HK$131.4 million after deducting the underwriting fees
and commissions and other expenses in connection with the Global
Offering (as defined in the Prospectus), which will be used for the
intended purposes as set out in the section headed "Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds" of the Prospectus.
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EEERAD N

Set out below is the actual utilisation of the net proceeds as at 31
December 2021, which is consistent with the proposed allocation
disclosed in the Prospectus:

T X EHIFTSRIE RN 2021F12831HY
ERAR EBRRERAMKENES DK
HE) :

Remaining Expected
balance of timeline for
Actual use net proceeds utilising the
Planneduse  of proceeds as at asat remaining
of proceeds 31 December 31 December net proceeds
in total 2021 2021 (Note)
#20215 20215 F B RER
FRigRIA 128318 12A318 FRfSmIEREE
ez RIS FIR BT RIE HTBHRRI R R
HERE BRAR PG e
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET FER FER
Continue to expand the Group's business by mergers ~ EBHBERRERERE 78,853 40,261 38,592 By 31 December
and acquisitions or investments in order to expand its ~ AEEEH» LUBAERPE 2022
market shares in the property management service MEEERBITENTSNE 122022512831HA0
industry in the PRC
Invest in intelligent systems to improve the Group's REBERRRURE A ERRT 19,713 19,713 - Not applicable
service quality and enhance its customers' experience  EEIRAHEFER B
Upgrade the Group's internalinformation technology ~ FHERAEEREE SR AK 13,142 13,142 - Not applicable
system to enhance operational efficiency DURFAEEYE TER
Continue to recruit more technical and managerial BERREIRITREEAL 6,571 6,571 - Not applicable
talents and, at the same time, provide training to ARATER RS R TER
the Group's employees for the expansion of DURBEER
its operations
General working capital —REEEE 13,142 13,142 - Not applicable
TER

Note: The expected timeline for utilising the remaining proceeds is based on the best
estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group. It will be subject to
changes based on the current and future development of the market conditions.

The original expected timeline for utilising the remaining net proceeds
in respect of the expansion of the Group's business by mergers and
acquisitions or investments in order to expand its market shares in the
property management service industry in the PRC was by 31 December
2021.

The Group has always been taking a proactive yet cautious approach
towards expanding its business scale and enhancing its overall strength
through mergers and acquisitions, and ultimately proceeding from the
overallinterests of the Shareholders. Due to the violent turmoilin the real
estate industry in the PRC in 2021, property management companies in
the PRC have also undergone major changes in their business operations
and market valuations.

Although the Group has been striving to seek merger and acquisition
targets that can bring synergies and offer reasonable acquisition
consideration to the Group, the Group was unable to identify suitable
acquisition target(s) after several rounds of evaluation during the year,
hence leading to the delay in the use of the remaining net proceeds
in respect of the expansion of the Group's business by mergers and
acquisitions or investments.
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In 2022, the Group will continue to work hard to find excellent mergers
and acquisitions targets through various channels, hoping to put the
remaining net proceeds in good use and bring returns to the long-term
interests of the Shareholders.

The Group will continue to utilise the remaining net proceeds as shown
above and expects to fully utilise such amount by 31 December 2022.

The Group had no pledge of assets as at 31 December 2021.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities or guarantees as at 31
December 2021.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not hold any significant
investment during the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 6,930 employees. The
Group offers employees competitive remuneration packages that include
fees, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind, bonuses and pension
scheme contribution, equity-settled and share option scheme and social
welfare. The Group contributes to social insurance for its employees,
including medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, retirement
insurance, maternity insurance, unemployment insurance and housing
funds.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government, and are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to this retirement benefits scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution under this retirement benefits scheme is available to reduce
the contribution payable in future years.

The Group will continue to focus on its existing property management
services and value-added services. Save as disclosed in the Prospectus,
no concrete plan for future investment is in place as at the date of this
report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, the Group did not perform any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and associates.

On 14 April 2022, the Company granted 20 eligible participants, subject to
the acceptance of such eligible participants, a total of 1,600,000 options
to subscribe for 1,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company with a nominal
value of HKS0.01 each under the Share Option Scheme. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 14 April 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any material
events undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEhEREEBZ BEHE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG Qingping, aged 58, is a non-executive Director of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for the provision of guidance for
the overall development of the Group. Mr. Huang joined the Group in
September 1992. He was appointed as a Director on 3 April 2019 and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director on 18 June 2019. Mr. Huang
is currently also the chairman and a non-executive director of Yincheng
International, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1902).

Mr. Huang obtained his diploma in industrial and civil engineering from
Nanjing Jinling Vocational University* in the PRC in August 1983. He has
over 30 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Mr. XIE Chenguang, aged 59, is the chairman of the Board and a non-
executive Director of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the
formulation and provision of guidance and development strategies
for the overall development of the Group. Mr. Xie joined the Group in
December 1998. He was appointed as a Director on 13 June 2019 and
was re-designated as a non-executive Director on 18 June 2019. Mr. Xie
is currently also a non-executive director of Yincheng International, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1902).

Mr. Xie obtained a diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Nanjing
Jinling Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983 and obtained
professional qualification as a senior engineer in November 2020. He
then obtained his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
degree from China Europe International Business School in the PRC
in September 2007. He was more than 30 years of experience in the
engineering and real estate industry in the PRC.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. MA Baohua, aged 60, is a non-executive Director of the Company.
He is primarily responsible for the provision of guidance for the overall
development of the Group. Mr. Ma joined the Group in February 2004. He
was appointed as a Director on 13 June 2019 and was re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 18 June 2019. Mr. Ma is currently also the
president and an executive director of Yincheng International, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1902).

Mr. Ma received his diploma in industrial and civil engineering from
Jinling Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983. He obtained his
bachelor's degree in urban and rural planning and land management
from Nanjing University in the PRC in July 2001 and obtained professional
qualification as a registered urban planner since May 2001. He then
received his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
degree from China Europe International Business School in the PRC in
September 2007. He has over 30 years of experience in the real estate or
real estate-related industry in the PRC.

In 2017, Mr. Ma was recognised as one of the top 100 property managers
co-awarded by Sina Finance, Leju, China Real Estate Association,
Shanghai Securities News and China Entrepreneur Magazine.

Mr. ZHU Li, aged 48, is a non-executive Director of the Company. He
is primarily responsible for the provision of guidance for the overall
development of the Group. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in July 1995. He was
appointed as a Director on 13 June 2019 and was re-designated as a
non-executive Director on 18 June 2019. Mr. Zhu is currently also the vice
president and an executive director of Yincheng International, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1902).

Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor's degree in construction engineering from
Southeast University in the PRC in July 1999. Mr. Zhu received his
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from China
Europe International Business School in the PRC in September 2010. He
has over 25 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEBZBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Chunling, aged 46, is an executive Director and the president of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall strategic decision,
business planning and daily management and operation of the Group. Mr,
Li joined the Group in February 2014. He was appointed as a Director on
13 June 2019 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 18 June
2019.

Mr. Li received his bachelor's degree in law from the Renmin University
of China in the PRC in September 2008, and his Executive Master of
Business Administration (EMBA) degree from China Europe International
Business School in the PRC in November 2018. He has obtained
professional qualification as a certified property manager from the
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC* since
February 2014, and was granted the award of Model Worker of Nanjing by
the Nanjing Municipal People's Government of the PRC in 2006. Mr. Li has
more than 24 years of experience in the hotel and real estate industry in
the PRC.

Ms. HUANG Xuemei, aged 53, is an executive Director, the vice president
and CFO of the Company. She is primarily responsible for the overall
administration, audit supervision and the public building department
of the Group. Ms. Huang joined the Group in December 2004. She was
appointed as a Director on 13 June 2019 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 18 June 2019.

Ms. Huang received her diploma in business administration under
the Jiangsu Province Higher Education Self-study Examination* from
the Nanjing University in the PRC in June 1989, and obtained her
qualification as an intermediate accountant from the Ministry of Finance
of the People's Republic of China in May 1999. She then completed her
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) course in Nanjing
University Business School in the PRC in October 2018. She has more
than 30 years of experience in financial management and accounting.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOW Siu Hang, aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 October 2019. He is primarily
responsible for supervision and provision of independent advice to the
Board. Mr. Chow has extensive knowledge and expertise on capital
market transactions including initial public offerings, financial advisory
and merger and acquisitions.

Mr. Chow is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Chow obtained his bachelor's degree in accountancy
from the City University of Hong Kong in November 1998. He has over 20
years of experience in the investment banking and financial auditing field.

Since June 2018, Mr. Chow has been an independent non-executive
director of Ziyuanyuan Holdings Group Limited, a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8223) which principally engages
in provision of equipment-based finance leasing services to small and
medium-sized enterprises customers in the printing, logistics and
medical device industries in the PRC.

Mr. LI Yougen, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 15 October 2019. He is primarily responsible
for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of laws degree from Nanjing University in July
1987 and obtained a master degree in laws from Nanjing University in
April 1990. Subsequently, he obtained a PhD degree in Economic Law
from the Renmin University of China in July 2002. He has over 30 years of
experience in teaching PRC law in China.

Since May 2016, Mr. Li has been an independent non-executive director
of Nanjing Quanxin Cable Technology Co. Ltd., a company that is
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300447) which
principally engages in the development and production of military
lighting and electric transmission products. From 2016 to 2021, he was an
independent non-executive director of Luculent Smart Technologies Co.,
Ltd., a company that principally engages in intelligence construction.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEBZBEFE

Mr. MAO Ning, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 15 October 2019. He is primarily responsible
for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Mao obtained his bachelor degree in engineering (automatic control
systems) from the National University of Defense Technology in January
1982 and obtained a master degree in engineering (automatic control
systems) from the National University of Defense Technology in July
1984. Subsequently, he also obtained a PhD degree in engineering from
Nanjing University in December 1988. He has over 35 years of experience
in teaching management scientific.

Since January 2020, Mr. Mao has been an independent non-executive
director of Meter Instruments Co., Limited, a company that is listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 301006) which principally engages in the production of ultrasonic
water watches and electric watches. Since December 2021, he has also
been an independent non-executive director of Sumec Corporation
Limited, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600710) which principally engages in trade and services and engineering
contracting. Previously from 2015 to 2021, he served and resigned as
an independent non-executive director of Jinling Hotel Corp Ltd., CTS
International Logistics Corp Ltd. and Nanjing Qixia Development Co., Ltd.,
all of which were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code
601007, 603128 and 600533, respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. YIN Xiaoli, aged 41, is the Group's vice president. She is in charge of
the Group's operation management centre and branding department. Ms.
Yin joined the Group in July 2002 and was appointed as a vice president
subsequently.

Ms. Yin received her bachelor's degree in information management from
the School of Government of Nanjing University in the PRC in July 2002
and has obtained her professional qualification as a corporate human
resources manager (Grade 2) from the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security of the PRC in July 2012. She then obtained her
qualification as a security (Grade 3) from the Jiangsu Human Resources
and Social Security Department™ of the PRC in December 2016. She has
over 20 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Ms. FAN Xingxia, aged 42, is the Group's vice president. She is in charge
of the Group's Jiangnan business unit. Ms. Fan joined the Group in August
2003 and was appointed as a vice president subsequently.

Ms. Fan received her diploma in administration management from the
Southwest University of Science and Technology in the PRC (which
was a long distance learning course) in July 2013. She has obtained
her professional qualification as property manager from the Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security Department® of the PRC in
September 2011. She has over 17 years of experience in the real estate
industry in the PRC.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JIANG Zubai, aged 36, is the Group's vice president. He is in charge of
the Group's Sunan business unit. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in April 2018
and was appointed as a vice president subsequently.

Mr. Jiang received his diploma in human resources management from
the Guangxi Guilin Aerospace School* in the PRC in June 2009, and
his bachelor's degree in human resources under the Jiangxi Province
Higher Education Self-study Examination from the Jiangxi University
of Technology in the PRC in December 2074. He then obtained his
professional qualification as a corporate human resources manager
(Grade 1) from the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of
the PRC in December 2017. He has over 12 years of experience in human
resources and in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Ms. Zhou Guihua, aged 44, is the Group's vice president. She is in charge
of the Group's Xincheng business unit. Ms. Zhou joined the Group in July
2019 and was appointed as the vice president subsequently.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhou worked as the general manager in
Nanjing Baishi Property Management Co., Ltd.* from May 2014 to July
2019 where she was responsible for the overall business planning and
daily management and operation.

Ms. Zhou received her master's degree in business administration from
the Southeast University in the PRC in July 2011. She obtained her
professional qualifications from the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the PRC as a corporate human resources manager
(Grade 2) in 2008, a certified property managerin 2013, and an economic
professionalin 2019. She has accumulated over 14 years of experience in
business management and real estate industry in the PRC.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YIM Lok Kwan is the company secretary of the Company and was
appointed on 13 June 2019. Mr. Yim is a manager of SWCS Corporate
Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited and he has over 8 years of
experience in the corporate services field.

Mr. Yim is an associate member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators),
and he holds a bachelor's degree in accounting and a master's degree in
corporate governance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEER/RS

The Group is committed to ensure that its business operations and
affairs are conducted in accordance with high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company's corporate
governance practices are based on the principles of good corporate
governance as set out in the CG Code effective as at 31 December 2021.
The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company will continue
to review and enhance its corporate governance practices, and identify
and formalise measures and policies to ensure compliance with the CG
Code.

CHAIRMAN AND PRESIDENT

The Board's chairman throughout the year is Mr. Xie Chenguang, being
a non-executive Director. Mr. Li Chunling is the Group's president. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are currently delegated to the executive Directors and the Group's senior
management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the
success of the Company by providing effective leadership and direction
to its business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of its
operations. The Board is responsible for all decision-making in respect of
all major matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
systems, risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those which may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
change of Directors, ad hoc projects and other significant financial
and operational matters. The Board has the full support of the Group's
management to discharge its responsibilities.

The Company's day-to-day management, administration and operation
are currently delegated to the executive Directors and the Group's senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions. All Directors have full and timely access to all
relevant information of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each
Director may seek independent advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board Committees. Further details of the Board Committees are set out
below in this corporate governance report.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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COMPOSITION

The Nomination Committee ensures that the composition of the Board
has a balance of skills, experiences, qualifications and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business
and development. The current composition of the Board consists of four
(4) non-executive Directors, two (2) executive Directors and three (3)
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors are responsible for exercising independent judgement on
various Board decisions. The Directors during the year ended 31
December 2021 were set out below:

HUANG Qingping

XIE Chenguang (Chairman)
MA Baohua

ZHU Li

LI Chunling (President)
HUANG Xuemei (Vice President)

CHOW Siu Hang
LI Yougen
MAO Ning

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract, and
each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into an appointment letter, with our Company for
an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, subject
to the retirement and re-election in accordance with the Articles and the
Listing Rules, which may be terminated by (i) not less than three months'
notice in writing served by either the executive Director or the Company;
or (ii) not less than two months' notice in writing served by either the
non-executive Director, the independent non-executive Director or the
Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. Li Chunling, Mr. Li Yougen
and Mr. Mao Ning will retire from the office of Director and shall, being
eligible for re-election at the forthcoming AGM to be held on Wednesday,
1 June 2022, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRS

The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board
brings a diverse range of expertise, skills and independent judgement
on issues relating to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts
of interests and management process to ensure that the interests
of all of the Shareholders have been duly considered. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing regarding
his independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Board and the Nomination Committee considered that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

There is a balance of skills and experiences in the Board, which is
appropriate for the requirements of the Company's business. The
Directors' biographical information is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

Each of the Board members has no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other.

The list of current Directors (by category) is also disclosed in this
annual report and all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time. The Company also
maintains on its website (www.yinchenglife.hk) and on the Stock
Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) an updated list of current
Directors (by category) identifying their role and function.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing different aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board Committees have been established with defined written
terms of reference, which are posted on the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's website (www.yinchenglife.
hk). All Board Committees should report to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations made. All Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company's expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 15 October 2019 with
written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company's website. The Audit Committee is delegated
with the authority from the Board to provide independent oversight of
the Group's financial reporting and internal control systems, and the
adequacy of the external audits.
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The Audit Committee currently consists of two (2) independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chow Siu Hang and Mr. Mao Ning, and
one (1) non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Xie Chenguang. Mr. Chow Siu
Hang currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee, who holds
the appropriate professional qualifications as required under the Listing
Rules. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and
the code provision D.3.3 (previous code provision C.3.3) of the CG Code,
the members of the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a year
to consider the budget, revised budget, interim report and annual report
before submission to the Board and meet with the external auditors at
least twice a year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee has held
three (3) meetings which were also with the presence of the external
auditor. During the said meetings, the following major tasks were
performed:

a. reviewed and had discussion on the (i) annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020,
annual results announcement and the annual report; (ii) interim
condensed consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2021, interim results announcement and interim
report; (i) the audit plan and scope for the annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021; and
(iv) the related accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the relevant audit findings;

b.  reviewed and had discussion on the risk management and Group's
internal control systems; and

c. had discussion and recommendation on the re-appointment of the
external auditor.

The Audit Committee has recommended the re-appointment of the
external auditor, Ernst & Young.

The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has properly
discharged its duties and responsibilities during the year ended 31
December 2021.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees paid/payable to the
auditor in respect of the services provided by the auditor to the Group
were as follows:
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RMB
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 15 October
2019 with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website. The Nomination
Committee is delegated with the authority from the Board to formulate
and implement the policy for nominating the Board's candidates for
election by the Shareholders and to assess the independent non-
executive Directors'independence and commitment.

The Company also has the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy in place. The Nomination Policy aims at improving the
transparency around the process by setting out the criteria and factors
to be taken into account by the Nomination Committee in selecting
and recommending candidates as Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors).

In identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members of the
Board, the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy. A number of factors
will be taken into account, including but not limited to age, skills, regional
and industry experience, cultural and educational background, race,
gender and other qualities. In forming its perspective on diversity, the
Nomination Committee will also take into account factors based on the
Company's own business model and specific needs from time to time.

The Board currently has one female Director and as such has achieved
gender diversity in respect of the Board. We will continue to strive to
enhance female representation and achieve an appropriate balance of
gender diversity with reference to the shareholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices. We will also ensure
that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to senior level
and we are committed to provide career development opportunities for
female staff so that we will have a pipeline of female senior management
and potential successors to the Board in near future.

The Company plans to offer all-rounded trainings to female employees
whom we consider to have the suitable experience, skills and knowledge
of our operation and business, including but not limited to, business
operation, management, accounting and finance, legal and compliance
and research and development.

The Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy have been reviewed
and shall continue to be reviewed on a regular basis.

Both the Directors and the Shareholders have the right to nominate a
person(s) to be appointed as a Director. Upon assessing the merits and,
for independent non-executive Directors, their independence to the
Company, the Nomination Committee will make recommendations to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of two (2) independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Yougen and Mr. Mao Ning, and one (1)
non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Xie Chenguang. Mr. Xie Chenguang
currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
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primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, among other
things, making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company's corporate strategies.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
has held one (1) meeting. During the said meeting, the Nomination
Committee has mainly performed the following duties:

. reviewed the annual confirmations of independence submitted
by the independent non-executive Directors and assessed their
independence;

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board during

the reporting period and whether the composition of the Board
complied with the requirements of the Board Diversity Policy; and

o reviewed the background of the retiring Directors and determined
whether the retiring Directors continues to meet the criteria to be
re-elected at the forthcoming AGM, and made recommendations to
the Board on the re-election of retiring Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 15 October
2019 with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated with the authority from the
Board to establish, review, and make recommendations to the Board
on the Group's remuneration policy and practices. The Remuneration
Committee ensures that all employees and Directors are appropriately
remunerated in accordance with the Group's strategy as well as its long-
term and short-term performance.

The Remuneration Committee consists of two (2) independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Yougen and Mr. Mao Ning, and one
(1) non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Xie Chenguang. Mr. Mao Ning
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among other
things, making recommendations to the Board on the Group's policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management's remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy and on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for assessing the performance of the
Directors and approving the terms of their service contracts.
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The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, allowances
and benefits in kind,performance-related bonuses, pension scheme
contributions and social welfare) payable to the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB3.5 million (2020:
approximately RMB2.9 million).

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group. Pursuant
to the code provision E.1.5 (previous code provision B.1.5) of the CG
Code, the annual remuneration of the Company's senior management
(non-director and non-chief executive) by band for the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out below:

BE2021F12B31HILEFE  BNEENH
xage (BEEE - 2 KREYEF
BACAL RARE BRI EREH) B4
ARMISEET (20205 | YARK29E R

7T) ©

EEFNL2ETELBRATFAZAE
S EEFENBERARBSUAETERNE
HET RECESATINTINEXSE
E.1.50& (RISTEMESCEB.1.51%) » RAB S HR
BIEE FEFEMIETEBTHAL) & E2021
F12E3HLEEENFEEHMNESEESY W
T

Number of employees
BEAH
2020
Remuneration band HriNEEE 20204
HK$500,000 to HKS$1,000,000 500,000 751,000,008 7T 1
HKS$1,000,001 to HKS1,500,000 1,000,0017&75%1,500,00078 7 2

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2) of them
(2020: two) are executive Directors and none of them (2020: none) is a
non-executive Director. Details of the remuneration of each Director and
the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee
has held one (1) meeting. During the said meeting, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed the Group's remuneration policy and reviewed
the remuneration package of the executive Directors and senior
management for the reporting period.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 (previous code provision A.6.5) of the
CG Code, all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All Directors had received during the year ended 31 December
2021 comprehensive, formal and tailored training, so as to ensure that
he/she has appropriate understanding of the Group structure, the Board
and Board Committee meetings procedures, and the Group's business,
management and operations etc., and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and applicable
regulatory requirements.
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The table below summarises the participation of each of the Directors
in continuous professional development during the year ended 31
December 2021:
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TREMEE2021F12A3MHEFESES
SNFEBEXERERNFBER

Reading Legal
and Regulatory

Updates and
Attending  other Reference
Training Courses Materials
R RE Y
EERMENRK
Name of Director EENR HEIEIRE Hth2E i
Non-executive Directors FFHITESE
HUANG Qingping 25T v v
XIE Chenguang Eil = v v
MA Baohua BIRE v 4
ZHU Li K7 v v
Executive Directors HITEE
LI Chunling FE® v v
HUANG Xuemei =21 v v
Independent non-executive Directors BIIFHITEE
CHOW Siu Hang RISl v v
LI Yougen FRIR 4 v
MAO Ning FE v v

Besides, the Company will keep providing information and materials
to develop and update the Directors' knowledge and skills as and
when appropriate. Such information and materials are relevant to
the Group's business, corporate governance, rules and regulations,
accounting, financial or professional skills and/or directors' duties and
responsibilities. There are also arrangements in place for providing
continuing professional development to each Director. All Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company's
expense. The company secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping records of training taken by each Director.

BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Pursuant to the code provision C.5.3 (previous code provision A.1.1) of
the CG Code, the Board should meet regularly and the Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year for reviewing and approving
financial statements, operating performance, budgets, rules and
regulations, announcements and circulars issued by the Company
and considering and approving the progress of the Company's various
on-going projects, and the overall strategies and policies. Additional
meetings would be arranged if and when required.
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Annual meeting schedules of each meeting of the Board and for the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee are made available to the Directors in advance. The Board
members are provided with all agenda and adequate information for
their review before the meetings. The Board and the Board Committee
members are provided with comprehensive meeting papers and relevant
materials within a reasonable period of time in advance of the intended
meeting date. All Directors and the Board Committee members are
given opportunities to include matters in the agenda for regular Board
and Board Committee meetings and/or their meetings, if required. To
facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors and the Board
Committee members are free to have access to the management for
enquiries and to obtain further information, when required.

The Directors and Board Committee members may participate in the
meeting either in person or through electronic means of communications.
The Directors and Board Committee members are free to contribute and
share their views at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after
deliberation at meetings. The Directors and Board Committee members
who are considered to have conflict of interests or material interests in
the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed will not be counted
in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, four (4) Board meetings was held,
to consider and approve, among other things, the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report. The individual attendance records of
each Director at such Board meetings and other meetings held during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below:

BREZERBEZZEG RLEET  #H
ZECEERNEFERRIRENHESH
BE-E=gMENERRTAMERMHEMER
BEAEEHUHKNEERN -EFTIRES
ZEEMENREGRAMAMAN KRS
BHER > BRMHFEN G E X AR
He-FrEEEhEFEZEENEEAKEIR
HENFEIASEERERTZETEHNE
ER/HEGE WMER) HE - BHERK
BRENET EENEFLEGMNERNEHA
EHREERUEAANGE-—TEN WF

2)-°

EXNEFZEENENRIUBBETR
NMHhESHER - EEZNEFEZEGNET
REZLERERKDERR MEKXRE
RENRSEZLBZRB D AUFH - RESHN
BEXSUNREEREFENDERIEK
MNEHNEEREFEZEGMEN ST ATEH
EENER AR BRRZRNRERE

BE2021F12831HILEFE > BRTH4)R
EFggR UTERME HPER) ~F
BPRaMHERET -BE2021F12831H
LEE REERMETHNERESFE T EH
REMEZLER L FCEEIWNT

Attendance record of Directors at the Board meetings and other meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2021 .
BE0NF12RN AL FEREENM|TESTTRRAMERONRTE

Audit Nomination Remuneration Chairman and
Committee Committee Committee General INED
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
IER
BT
Name of Director BEfY X988 BhLEE9eE RE%ZE8eE HHNZEeEE RRAE -
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
HUANG Qingping BET L4 N/ATER N/ATER NARER 33 N/ARER
XIE Chenguang HEN L4 33 n mn 33 n
MA Baohua BfRE L4 N/ATER N/ATER NARER 313 N/ARER
IHULi KN L4 NATEA NIATER NATEBA 33 N/ARER
Executive Directors HiTEZ
LI Chunling e L4 N/ATER N/ATER NARER 33 N/ARER
HUANG Xuemei el L4 NATEA NIATER NATEBA 33 N/ARER
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BLFH{TEE
CHOW Siu Hang BikE L4 313 N/ATER NARER 313 n
L Yougen ZRIR L4 NATEA n mn 33 n
MAONing FE L4 33 n mn 313 n
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After the meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors and
Board Committee members for comments. Apart from the said meetings,
matters requiring the Board's approval may be arranged by means of
circulation of written resolutions to all Board members.

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions
were well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings, Board
Committee meetings and written resolutions are kept by the company
secretary of the Company and are available for inspection by the
Directors at all times.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 (previous code provision D.3.1) of the CG Code. The Board
reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management, the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model
Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company's compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this corporate governance report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, an external service provider, and appointed Mr. Yim Lok
Kwan as the company secretary of the Company. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the company secretary of the Company had taken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group's state
of affairs and of the results and cash flow during the reporting period.
A statement from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 91 to 96 of this annual report. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in the Model Code as the code
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiries, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the Securities Dealing Code during the year ended 31
December 2021.

No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code was noted
by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has the responsibility to ensure that the
Company establishes and maintains sound risk management and internal
control systems within the Group and to review the effectiveness of the
systems.

Such systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks inherent in the
Group's business to an acceptable level, but not eliminating the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the responsibility to
oversee the Group's risk management and internal control systems on an
on-going basis and to review the effectiveness of the systems annually.
The review covers all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls. Under the Group's risk management and
internal control structure, the management is responsible for the design,
implementation and maintenance of risk management and internal
control systems to ensure that, among others, (i) appropriate policies
and control procedures have been designed and established to safeguard
the Group's assets against improper use or disposal; (ii) relevant laws,
rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with; and (iii) reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements.

The Company has an internal audit function which aims at helping
the Company to accomplish its objectives by applying a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems.
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The Group's internal control system includes a well-established
organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department's business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly
adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed of
material developments of the department’s business and implementation
of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company has adopted
the Inside Information Policy which governs the disclosure of inside
information and strictly prohibit unauthorised use of inside information
and has communicated that to all relevant staff. The Board is aware of its
obligations to announce any inside information in accordance with the
Listing Rules and conducts the affairs with reference to the "Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission in June 2012. In addition, only the Directors and delegated
officers can act as the Group's spokesperson and respond to external
enquiries about the Group's affairs. No incident of non-compliance of
the procedure, and internal controls in the Inside Information Policy was
noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management
systems to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards.
The review covered all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions. In particular,
the Board considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The review
was made by having discussions with the Company's management and
its external internal control consultant and the assessment conducted by
the Board. The Board believes that the existing internal control system is
adequate and effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing
Rule's compliance.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders'interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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Pursuant to the Articles, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call for
extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more members of the
Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the Company's paid up capital carrying the right of voting at
Company's general meetings (the "Eligible Shareholder(s)") shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
("EGM") to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the purpose
of making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit
a written requisition (the "Requisition”) signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Room 4502, 45th Floor, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
company secretary of the Company.

The Requisition must state clearly the name, the contact information of
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, the reason(s) for convening an
EGM, the agenda proposed to be included, the details of the business(es)
proposed to be transacted in the EGM, and signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned. The Eligible Shareholder(s) must prove
his/her/their shareholding in the Company to the satisfaction of the
Company.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and the
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder will be verified by the Company's
Hong Kong share registrar. If the Requisition is found to be proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board to
convene an EGM within 2 months and/or include the proposal or the
resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder at the EGM after the
deposit of the Requisition. On the contrary, if the Requisition has been
verified as not in order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call for an
EGM and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed by the
Eligible Shareholder at the EGM.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the Company's website.

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to its principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 4502, 45th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong or such other means of contact as set out in the
Company's website from time to time.
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For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address, and provide the Company with
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. The Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with its
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. The chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee or, in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings to meet with the Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a dividend policy in effect. The Dividend Policy sets
out the factors that the Board will take into account in deciding the
declaration of interim dividends, special dividends and final dividends.
The Dividend Policy aims at enhancing transparency of the Company and
facilitating the Shareholders and investors to make informed investment
decisions relating to the Company.

The dividend that the Directors may recommend or declare in respect
of any particular financial year or period will be subject to the Group's
operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions, capital expenditure and
future development requirements, shareholders' interests and other
factors which the Directors may deem relevant at such time.

No arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividends was made by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The existing Articles were passed on 15 October 2019 and became
effective on 6 November 2019.

A copy of the Articles is posted on the designated website of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.yinchenglife.hk).

There had been no change to the Articles during the year ended 31
December 2021.

On behalf of the Board
Xie Chenguang
Chairman and non-executive Director
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Shares were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 6 November 2019. The
Company and its subsidiaries now comprising the Group underwent
the Reorganisation (as defined in the Prospectus) as set out in the
Prospectus. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group were involved in the provision of property
management services and value-added services.

Details of the principal activities of the Company's principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. A review
and analysis of the Group's performance for the year ended 31 December
2021, a discussion on the Group's future business development and
prospect, and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group faces are set out in the "Chairman’s Statement”, the
"President’s Statement” and "Management Discussion and Analysis”
sections in this annual report. Save as disclosed in the section headed
“Directors’ Report - Subsequent Events” in this annual report, the
Company has no significant event after the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

For details of the financial risks and the related risk management policies
and practices used by the Company, please refer to note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of this annual report. A financial and business summary of the
Group for the five years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020
and 2021, respectively, have been set out on pages 8 to 10 in this annual
report.

The Board recommended the payment of final dividend of HK$1.26 per
ten ordinary shares of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021. The final dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders
at the AGM and the final dividend is expected to be paid on or about 18
July 2022 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 15 June 2022.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group did not perform any material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries and associates.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 14 April 2022, the Company granted 20 eligible participants, subject to
the acceptance of such eligible participants, a total of 1,600,000 options
to subscribe for 1,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company with a nominal
value of HKS0.01 each under the Share Option Scheme. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 14 April 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any material
events undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group's properties held for investment purpose is set
out on page 212 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2021 in
the Company's share capital are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman lIslands which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of the amounts and movements in the Company's reserves are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders with an aggregate amount approximately
RMB150.9 million (2020: approximately RMB72.4 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue derived from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers was less
than 30% of the Group's total revenue for the year, and accounted for
approximately 5.9% and 10.6% (2020: approximately 7.8% and 13.8%) of
the Group's total revenue for the year, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases from the Group's
largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
39.7% and 58.9% (2020: approximately 38.9% and 56.7%) of the Group's
total purchases for the year, respectively.

Save for the Group's largest customer and largest supplier, at no time
during the year under review, that any of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholder (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors who owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital), has any interest in any of the above five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group for the year.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals. The Company
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Company and its employees, suppliers,
customers and/or other stakeholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance practices as adopted by
the Company are set out in the section headed "Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 52 to 65 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the applicable
environmental laws as well as protecting the environment by minimising
the negative impact of the Group's existing business activities on the
environment and complying with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

The Company's compliance with the relevant provisions as set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
environmental, social and governance report which is to be issued within
five months after the end of the year ended 31 December 2021 and will be
available on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. To
the best of the Directors' knowledge, information and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, the Directors are not aware of any non-
compliance in any material respect with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group's business and operations for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Details of the Company's compliance with the code provisions in the CG
Code are set out in the corporate governance report of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Non-executive Directors

HUANG Qingping

XIE Chenguang (Chairman)
MA Baohua

ZHU Li

Executive Directors

LI Chunling
HUANG Xuemei

Independent non-executive Directors

CHOW Siu Hang
LI Yougen
MAO Ning
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In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting, at least
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Pursuant
to Article 108(a) of the Articles, three of the Directors will retire from the
office of Director and shall, being eligible for re-election at the AGM, offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of all the Directors and the Company's senior
management are set out on pages 46 to 51 in this annual report.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors as independent.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract, and
each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into an appointment letter, with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, which may
be terminated by (i) not less than three months' notice in writing served
by either the executive Director or the Company; or (ii) not less than two
months' notice in writing served by either the non-executive Director, the
independent non-executive Director or the Company.

Pursuant to the individual service contracts or, as the case may be,
appointment letters, each of the executive Directors and the non-
executive Directors is entitled to a fixed amount of emolument and
discretionary bonus to be determined by the Board. For the independent
non-executive Directors, pursuant to the then individual appointment
letters, each of them is entitled to a fixed director’s fee.

All of the executive Directors' service contracts and the non-executive
Director's and independent non-executive Director's letters of
appointment entered into between the Company and the respective
Director have been reviewed and ratified by the Nomination Committee.
None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 6,930 employees. The
emolument policy of the Group's employees is formulated by the
Remuneration Committee based on their merit, qualifications and
competence. It is the Group's policy to compensate each employee
fairly and equitably. The Group has a system for measuring employees'
performance against agreed-upon goals with specific performance
standards. Performance discussion is carried out on an ongoing basis and
a formal evaluation is conducted at least once a year to review employees'
overall performance, achievements, and areas in need of improvement.
Salary review will be based on both the Group's performance and
individual performance and subject to the Group's discretion.

The Group enter into labour contracts with all of its employees. The
Group offer to its employees competitive remuneration packages that
include fees, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind, bonuses and
pension scheme contribution, equity-settled and share option scheme
and social welfare.

The emoluments of the Directors are generally decided by the
Remuneration Committee and then recommended to the Board, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. All the emoluments of Directors have been
reviewed and approved or ratified by the Remuneration Committee.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, no amount was paid
to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals, as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group. In addition, no compensation was paid to
the Directors or past Directors for the same period in connection with
the loss of office as a director of any member of the Group or of any other
office in connection with the management of the affairs of any member of
the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 25 January 2021, a share option scheme with terms complying with
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules was conditionally approved and adopted
by the then shareholders of the Company. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to incentivise and reward participants of the Share
Option Scheme who have contributed to the Group, and encourage
such participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as a
whole. The participants of the Share Option Scheme are the directors and
employees of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group. Details of the principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular issued by the
Company on 6 January 2021.
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The total number of shares of the Company that could be issued upon
exercise of (i) all outstanding share options and (ii) all share options that
could be granted under the then available scheme mandate limit as at 31
December 2021 was 1,600,000 shares and 3,743,040 shares respectively,
which represented approximately 0.60% and 1.40% of the number of
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2021, respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, there were a total of 1,600,000 outstanding
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme. Details of
movements during the year ended 31 December 2021 of share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

R2021FE12831H  ZABR()FABRITHE
BEAGHE ; K (i) IR Z 05 0] Bt 2R EREE
BREZFEBRERETERTFETZRGD
4B B #51,600,0000% 523,743,0400% > HE
R2021F12B831H AR B EEITRIDEE D
B1)490.60% % 1.40% °

7202146128318 - RIEF R 8 & 18
{11,600, 00017 15 5 17 16258 Rt < 202168
128318 1F 1B 5 B A0 5t 21 2 th B0 BB R
> BEEEDT

Number of share options
fRlREHE
Closing price
immediately
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding before the
as of Granted Exercised Lapsed asat date of grant
Name or category of Exercise 1January  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 December Exercise of share
participant Date of grant "o period 2021 period period period 2021 price options
R2021% ESESEh
BENE R 128318 faltE
1818 [BF:3 - VANN oF S5ird H A
SHENLHER it B A0 e HAITHE BABRE  BABTE ES i) TEE  HKHE
Directors
Bz
Li Chunling 18 May 2021 5years 320,000 - - 320,000 4722 4,690
FER 2021555188 5E
Huang Xuemei 18 May 2021 5years 160,000 - - 160,000 4722 4.690
e 2021555188 5F
Sub-total 480,000 - - 480,000
gt
Other employees and officers
HitEEREARAR
14 grantees in aggregate 18 May 2021 5years - 1,120,000 - - 1,120,000 4722 4,690
BHRUARERA 202155186 5E
Total 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000
5t
Notes: T

(1) The share options were accepted by participants in a period after the date of
grant.

(2)  Thereis no vesting period of share options.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
December 2021 was RMB2,618,000, and was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomal model with the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted taken into account. For further details, please
refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements set out on pages
184 to 187 of this annual report.

No share options granted under the Share Option Scheme were
exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company's subsidiaries, or their respective associates
had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Huang Qingping, Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Wutong
Holding Limited (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”), have
confirmed to the Company of their compliance with the non-competition
undertakings provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
entered into among the Controlling Shareholders and the Company dated
21 October 2019 during the period under review. Details of such deed
of non-competition are set out in the section headed "Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under such
deed of non-competition have been complied with by the Controlling
Shareholders during the period under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the Directors' service contracts and letters of appointment,
no contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the Company's business were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE FOR PROVISION OF
SERVICES

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and in note 36 to the audited consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, there was no contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Group by any Controlling Shareholder
or substantial Shareholder or any of the subsidiaries or companies
controlled by any Controlling Shareholder or substantial Shareholder,
which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed "Connected Transaction” in
this report and in note 36 to the audited consolidated financial statements
in this annual report, there was no transaction, arrangement, or contract
of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies
was a party and in which any Director or any entities connected with a
Director, the Controlling Shareholders, the substantial Shareholders had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and
its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Company's chief executive in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of SFO) which were (a) required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO; (b) recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (c) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard dealings by directors of listed issuer as
referred to in the Model Code were as follows:

Interests in the Shares or Underlying Shares of the Company

KL EIR17 ZHAERIAR (7 B #E it

EFZREFETHRAERER T&Eﬁﬂup/
B A7 ~ MERARR R B AR M R =

2021128318 EERARBDEBITH
ANERERABRBHEE (E&REFRH
E1RPISEXVER) A (a) IRIFFE T R EIE K
BISEXVER ST 857 BR AN & 7 1 B) Fe Bk 32 Ffy
WEmRXA ; (b)RBEEFRPERHE
R EATHFEZECMAN R XA (B
ERERSRAER WJZE%M\KW\ wE
FRBERERZRER%R) 5 () REBER
ETE'JEE%J:%%*HJ\E%?ET?‘“%E’J%
REMASTHNE R RE) KRBT Em K
MBI

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of interest in the
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held ®ote? Company
FRFRR % i N
EEUY EmME g e Bs9E AL
Mr. Huang Qingping Interest in controlled corporation (Noe?) 103,289,680 (L) 38.66%
BARERE R EE R R
Mr. Xie Chenguang Interest in controlled corporation (Noe3) 14,500,000 (L) 5.43%
Eil=Sres SIEEE R )
Mr. Ma Baohua Interest in controlled corporation (Nete#) 13,440,000 (L) 5.03%
BIRERE R EE R R R
Mr. Zhu Li Interest in controlled corporation (Note3) 6,720,000 (L) 2.52%
KOxAE A E R R )
Mr. Li Chunling Beneficial owner 754,000 (L) 0.28%
THEBREE BmEAA (Note 6) (Hz6)
Interest in controlled corporation (Noe7) 5,343,040 (L) 2.00%
RYEEE R WD
Ms. Huang Xuemei Beneficial owner 190,000 (L) 0.07%
=EEIEL L EREA A (Note 8) (F18)
Interest in controlled corporation (Noe? 1,415,760 (L) 0.53%

SYEEE R 0
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Notes:
1. The letter "L" denotes a long position in the Shares held.
2. Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Huang

Holding Limited and Silver Wutong Holding Limited, respectively. As such, Mr.
Huang Qingping is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by
Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Wutong Holding Limited.

3. Mr. Xie Chenguang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xie Holding
Limited. As such, Mr. Xie Chenguang is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
the Shares held by Silver Xie Holding Limited.

4. Mr. Ma Baohua is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Ma Holding
Limited. As such, Mr. Ma Baohua is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the
Shares held by Silver Ma Holding Limited.

5. Mr. Zhu Liis the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Li Holding Limited. As
such, Mr. Zhu Li is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by
Silver Li Holding Limited.

6. The Company has granted 320,000 share options to Mr. Li Chunling under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2021, details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 May 2021.

7. Mr. Li Chunling is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Chunling
Holding Limited. As such, Mr. Li Chunling is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the Shares held by Silver Chunling Holding Limited.

8. The Company has granted 160,000 share options to Ms. Huang Xuemei under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2021, details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 May 2021.

9. Ms. Huang Xuemei is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xuemei
Holding Limited. As such, Ms. Huang Xuemei is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the Shares held by Silver Xuemei Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or the Company's chief
executive nor their associates had an interest or short position in any
shares or underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or that was required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant
to the Model Code.

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow
Subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangement
which would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRE

P5E
1. FLdEFTR IR BT & ©

2. =BT HEASilver Huang Holding Limited &
Silver Wutong Holding Limitedfyif —E 5 K e
— IR AL IRIFFEF KGR ZHEFE
EWIR AR Silver Huang Holding Limited K Silver
Wutong Holding LimitedF i I 10 P A 14 o

3. HEIIEASilver Xie Holding Limited Ay ME— 2
ERME—RR AL RBEHSRAERG > H
BAHIERIB A Silver Xie Holding LimitedFfr ¥
AP AR -

4. BRELEASilver Ma Holding Limited i — 2
HRME—REFIL RBFESRPAEEG E
{REEJE AR A HSilver Ma Holding Limited
R hEA R

5. R FIFEASilver Li Holding LimitedByME—E 5
FeME— PG R o AL > IRIBFE S REERA > K H
FLAEIR A Silver Li Holding LimitedFFiFA& 15
AR o

6. R20215128318 > AR AIREERE8IEE
HI S ER 320,000 BB BRATHIEEN
AT HEEA2021FE5818HM AL o

7. EHRFEEASilver Chunling Holding Limitedy
M—E R MR - FIL > RIRH S REEE K
B EHL T EW R AR Silver Chunling Holding
Limited T B {0 A A #e i ©

8. F20215128310 A A BIRBHERESEIHRE
TR H160,00010 BB > BRIGEIEHN
AT B ERA20214E5818HM A o

9. =T gL T ASilver Xuemei Holding Limitedfy
M—BERE—REFIL RIBFFFRAER
B> HEEE L TWHR A Silver Xuemei Holding
Limited P AR 1 Fh e A HiE ik o

Br EXFIIBEEINRIRESFTAN > 7220214
12318 BEBEESHARBDFETHAE
W ENBEANR AT B EH L E
(EERIBH RSB EXVIR) EAIRMYN
ARG & HEEED EEIRES

FREAG IR B EXVERE T R8N E BRI G A AT
KB 3P (BIERIE RS RS KA A B
N EBIERIRABEAENERIRE) » RE
BERHEEAEISHEBE LR BREANT
EFEZERM BB EETFABNEEAR
TR 2 RO KA o

SRAFHRAMEMPAREE I REIBEFE
BERRRE AABERB AR ER RN
BRBISNEZER AT BT ML
EFTEBBARABRERMEMENEEE
Z R NEEEMER -

RN SERISARAR
20201 EERE

75



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or the Company's chief executive, as
at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than the Directors or
the Company's chief executive whose interests are disclosed under the
paragraph headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
and its Associated Corporations” above) had an interest or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to

ERRRMNIRD KRR FavE=

BEAEERAATETETHAEMA P
2021F12831H U TFALT (REXTEER

ETHAERNEAAD REBEEBRM
RN REEESNEGERXE —BRIKE
MNESHAATEEBTHAEEFERIN
D EABRE R (D P A BN A AT IRIEE
H R EAEEHIE33618 B BN B LM #E

be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO: mERA
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of interest in the
Name of Substantial Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares held (Note" Company
Fr¥zhg{n i N2
TERRYES LB HEEE & g B4 B S
Silver Huang Holding Limited (Nete?) Beneficial owner 96,120,000 (L) 35.98%
Silver Huang Holding Limited ®#2) Bom#EA A
Silver Dai Holding Limited Mote3) Beneficial owner 31,160,000 (L) 11.66%
Silver Dai Holding Limited ®3) ERnEAA
Mr. Dai Chengshu (Nete?) Interest in controlled corporation 31,160,000 (L) 11.66%
H S o W REEE#ER
Silver Zhu Holding Limited (Nete#) Beneficial owner 18,880,000 (L) 7.07%
Silver Zhu Holding Limited ®#) ERnEAA
Mr. Zhu Linnan (Nete4) Interest in controlled corporation 18,880,000 (L) 7.07%
RARIR S A (a0 REEE#ER
Silver Xie Holding Limited Mete®) Beneficial owner 14,500,000 (L) 5.43%
Silver Xie Holding Limited ®#5) BEnEAA
Silver Ma Holding Limited (Mete®) Beneficial owner 13,440,000 (L) 5.03%

Silver Ma Holding Limited 6 BEmEEA

Notes: LKy

1. The letter "L" denotes a long position in the Shares held. 1. FLEPTRERR D BV EF & o

2. Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and the sole shareholder of each of Silver 2. =BT EASilver Huang Holding Limitedfy R

Huang Holding Limited and he is therefore deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Silver Huang Holding Limited under the SFO.
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3. Mr. Dai Chengshu is the sole director and the sole shareholder of Silver Dai
Holding Limited and he is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Silver Dai Holding Limited under the SFO.

4. Mr. Zhu Linnan is the sole director and the sole shareholder of Silver Zhu Holding
Limited and he is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Silver Zhu Holding Limited under the SFO.

5. Mr. Xie Chenguang is the sole director and the sole shareholder of Silver Xie
Holding Limited and he is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Silver Xie Holding Limited under the SFO.

6. Mr. Ma Baohua is the sole director and the sole shareholder of Silver Ma Holding
Limited and he is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Silver Ma Holding Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors were not
aware of any other person who had or deemed to have an interest or short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which was disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the applicable laws, the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the Company's
assets from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their executors
or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any)
as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty. Such
provision shall be in force from the Listing Date.

COMPETING INTEREST

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed "Interests of Controlling
Shareholders and their Close Associates in Other Businesses” in the
section headed "Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus, during the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or the Controlling Shareholders or their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is interested in any business which competes
or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company's business
nor any conflict of interests which has or may have with the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had interest-bearing borrowings
of RMB209.0 million, as compared with RMB280.0 million as at 31
December 2020. The Group's borrowings are mainly denominated in
RMB.

The details are set out in "Management Discussion and Analysis -
Borrowings"in this annual report.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'S SECURITIES AND
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year end 31 December 2021 was the Company, any
of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or the Company's chief
executive or their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) which has any right to subscribe for the Company's securities or
any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate. No equity- linked agreement was
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained sufficient prescribed public float of not less
than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules from
the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing different aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board Committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which have been posted on the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's website (www.yinchenglife.hk).

All Board Committees should report to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations made. All Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company's expense.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
GLOBAL OFFERING

In connection with the Listing, on 6 November 2019, 66,680,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of
HKS$2.18 per Share and 199,990,000 new Shares were issued pursuant
to the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the Prospectus). The total net
proceeds raised from the Global Offering (including the issuance of
Shares pursuant to the partial exercise of the Qver-allotment Option),
after deducting the underwriting fees and commissions and other
expenses in connection with the Global Offering, was approximately
HK$131.4 million.

Details of the use of proceeds by the Group are set out in "Management
Discussion and Analysis - Use of Proceeds from the Listing” in this annual
report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Yincheng International is owned as to approximately 37.26% by Mr.
Huang Qingping (being one of the Controlling Shareholders and a non-
executive Director) as at 31 December 2021. Yincheng International
is thus an associate of Mr. Huang Qingping and therefore a connected
person of the Company.

Nanjing Mahui is wholly-owned by Yincheng International as at 31
December 2021 and is therefore a connected person of our Company.

Yincheng Real Estate is owned as to approximately 53.11% by Mr. Huang
Qingping (being one of the Controlling Shareholders and a non-executive
Director) as at 31 December 2021. Yincheng Real Estate is thus an
associate of Mr. Huang Qingping and therefore a connected person of the
Company.

Jincheng Jiaye, Yincheng Business Management, Yincheng Kangyang
and Yuangu Ecological Agriculture are wholly-owned by Yincheng Real
Estate as at 31 December 2021 and are therefore connected persons of
the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 1 February 2021, Yincheng Property Services and Yincheng Business
Management entered into an investment agreement to form Nanjing
Yincheng Commercial Property Services Co., Ltd.* for engaging in
commercial properties management in the PRC with RMB3,000,000
registered capital which shall be contributed by Yincheng Property
Services in cash. On the same day, Yincheng Property Services and
Yincheng Business Management entered into another investment
agreement to form Nanjing Yincheng Hui Technology Network Co.,
Ltd.* for the development and provision of value-added services
through online platforms for owners or users of residential and non-
residential properties currently under the management of the Group with
RMBZ2,000,000 registered capital which shall be contributed by Yincheng
Property Services in cash.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) in respect of the
transactions contemplated under the abovementioned investment
agreements are higher than 0.1% but less than 5%, the entering into of
such investment agreements are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements, but are exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders' approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules. For further
details, please refer to the Company's announcement dated 2 February
2021.

On 11 March 2021, Yincheng Property Services and Yincheng Kangyang
entered into a cooperation agreement, pursuant to which the parties
agreed to form Nanjing Yincheng Yijia Elderly Healthcare Services
Co., Ltd.* ("Yincheng Yijia") to principally engage in the provision of
healthcare and comprehensive ancillary services for the elderly in the
PRC with RMB3,000,000 registered capital which shall be contributed by
Yincheng Property Services in cash.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) in respect of the
formation of Yincheng Yijia is higher than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
formation of Yincheng Yijia is subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements, but is exempt from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules. For further details,
please refer to the Company's announcement dated 11 March 2021.

On 30 June 2021, Nanjing Mahui as vendor and Nanjing Zhihui Meijia
Technology Service Co., Ltd.* (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) as purchaser entered into four commercial housing sale
and purchase agreements, pursuant to which Nanjing Mahui agreed
to sell and Nanjing Zhihui Meijia Technology Service Co., Ltd.* agreed
to acquire four commercial properties located in Nanjing, the PRC at
a total consideration of RMB11,617,034 to increase the effectiveness
and efficiency in the overall management, leasing, maintenance and
coordination of tenants within the relevant districts.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) calculated with
reference to the total consideration of RMB11,617,034 is higher than
0.1% but less than 5%, the entering into of the four commercial housing
sale and purchase agreements are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements, but are exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders' approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules. For further
details, please refer to the Company's announcement dated 30 June
2021.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into the following transactions during the years
ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 which constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and had on the dates
indicated in the table below entered into written agreements with the
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relevant party to govern such continuing connected transactions: X5
Transaction amount for
Description of continuing the year ended
No. Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement connected transactions Term Annual cap 31 December 2021
HE0NE
12A318 1t
&% hE =L [EFAEY FEMERS 2 HAR FEELMR EEZRHEH
1. The PRC Trademark TJune 2019 (1) VYicheng Property Yincheng Real Estate agreed to grant ~ From 1June 2019 to N/A. On royalty-free basis. N/A. On royalty-free basis.
Licensing Agreement 20196818 Services; and Yincheng Property Services a 26 July 2023 TER-RENRTEERELE. TER RENETEE
HEBEERFIAR (2)  Yincheng Real Estate non-transferable licence tousea  E2019F6F1HE E%o
(1) SBEMERS, & registered trademarkin the PRC WBETRAA
() sBEE REMERERTRINERS
Tl @ENF )RR ER
=MEE
2. The Deed of HongKong 26 June 2019 (1) The Company; and Yincheng Real Estate agreed to From26June2019to  N/A. Onroyalty-free basis. N/A. On royalty-free basis.
Trademark Licensing 2019568268 (2)  VYincheng Real Estate irrevocably grant the Group a expiryof trademark ~ FBR-REMFFREREE .  TBRE -REMEEE
EABRERTIRE (1) 28k non-transferrable and non- registration o
() sEnE exclusive licence to use a B2019%65260E
registered trademark in BREMERE S
Hong Kong
REMERSTTHENR
FERRUATEERER
fsreD WEEEERERER
3. Master Community Repair 21 October 2019 (1) the Company (foritself ~ The Group agreed to provide repair  From the Listing Dateto  Will not exceed RMB5.6 million, ~ Approximately RMB0.6
and Maintenance 2019108218 and on behalf of its and maintenance services to 31 December 2021 RMBB. T million and RMB10.0 million
Services Agreement subsidiaries); and properties developed by the BITmHEE millionforeachof thethree ~ WARK06BET
HEBEBRRERS (2)  Yincheng Real Estate Yincheng Real Estate Groupwhich 20214128318 years ending 31 December
g (foritselfand on behalf ~ have been subject to wear and tear 2021, respectively

of its subsidiaries)
(1) &A% (BEESR
KRENBAE) ; &
(2) sEhEMEBEESR
REEWELE)

throughout the years since the
completion of construction of such
projects

FEERERRRIIEEE
A% ERERAIRER
REERNMERARER
RERS

REE0NENENBIL=EE

ERERDRTERARYE
56EET ARBSIEET
RAREI00EER

RN ERIBAEIRAE)
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Transaction amount for
Description of continuing the year ended
No. Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement connected transactions Term Annual cap 31 December 2021
BRI LS
12R318 1L
B 3 38 LA [ RAIE] HEMERR M BB FELR FEZRAEE
[3 First Master Property 21 October 2019 (1) the Company (foritself ~ The Group agreed to provide From the Listing Dateto  Will not exceed RMB5.8 million,  Approximately RMB12.2
Management Agreement 20194108218 and on behalf of its to members of the Yincheng 31 December 2021 RMB13.4 millionand RMB20.5  million
E-RNEERERS subsidiaries); and Real Estate Group property BLHHEE millionforeach of the three A ARM1226E
(2)  Vincheng Real Estate (for  management services (including 0015 years ending 31 December
itself and on behalf of its  but not limited to on-site security, 12A318 2021, respectively
subsidiaries) cleaning, gardening, as well as REZANENENBE=BE
(1) A28 BEBFRAR  customerservices) to (i) the EEEBDATRBARS
EWBAR) ; & property sales offices used by S8EET ARH134EET
(2) SRHME BEBSR  Jincheng Jiaye Group forits sale RARBNSEET
AREMBAF) and marketing of first-hand and
second-hand properties in the
PRC; and (ii) the unsold property
units developed by the Yincheng
Real Estate Group
FEBREH T RERBE
EENHEARRMNEER
&% EEEFEREARE
BE EMEIRERRR)
(FHEXERAHBEREH
HE-FROFMENMEHEE
B 5 RODBHAEEARENR
EMEEN
5 Second Master Property 21 October 2019 (1) the Company (foritself ~ The Group agreed to provide property From the Listing Dateto  Will not exceed RMB45.9 million,  Approximately RMB60.5
Management Agreement 2019108218 and on behalf of its management servicesin respect 31 December 2021 RMB75.1 millionand RMB76.8  million
ECRYEERERS subsidiaries); and of (i) the unsold property units B LHRHZE million foreach of the three A ARH60.5EET
(2)  Yincheng International and the sold property units prior 202145128318 years ending 31 December
(foritself and on behalf of  tothe agreed delivery date set out 2021, respectively
its subsidiaries) inthe property purchase contract REZANE1E3BE=BE
(1) &AFAHBESRRE  forprojects developed by the EXRERDNTRBARE
ENBAR) ; & Yincheng International Holding NREEVAYNENEES
(2) SREER(BEBSR  Group;and (i) the sales offices TRARBISEET
AREMBAF) for property projects developed by

the Yincheng International Holding
Group

FEERTH T AR RANE
EERE () nRRuERER
EEFMHEERNRBRAAT
RN ARk E
EIREENEEM ; k(i) H5
EREREEMREYFER
WEENER
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Transaction amount for
Description of continuing the year ended
No. Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement connected transactions Term Annual cap 31 December 2021
BRI ES
12318
EL =L [EFAIESY REMERS 2 IR FELMR FEZRAEH
6. Master Supply Agreement 2 July 2020 (1) The Company; and Yuangu Ecological Agriculture From 2 July 2020 to Will not exceed RMBA4.5 million, ~ Approximately RMB1.3
TGS 2020 (2) Yuangu Ecological agreed to supply and deliver food 31 December 2022 RMB12 millionand RMB16 million
1828 Agriculture products, including vegetables,  E2020F millionforeachof thethree  AARE13EET
(1) %28 & fruits, cereals, meat, seasoning 1A2BE years ending 31 December
) REEEEZ and dried food such as dried meat, 2022 2022, respectively
dried fruits, dried peas, dried 128318 REZNNENANBLEZEE
herbals, dried seasoning etc. to the ERRTeBRARELSE
Group B ARENEERRAR
RREEREFENAEBHRER BUEET
MBR BEHER KE
B8 RE RS
MR R LHT BRER
HRHE
1. 2022 Master Community 11 November2021 (1) the Company (foritself ~ The Group agreed to provide repair  From 1 January2022to  Will not exceed RMB11.3 million, ~ N/A
Repair and Maintenance 2021118118 and on behalf of its and maintenance services to 31 December 2024 RMB12.2 millionand RMB115 A
Services Agreement subsidiaries); and properties previously developed 2022 1518%2024%  million for each of the three
WNEHBEBRIFER (2)  Yincheng Real Estate by the Yincheng Real Estate Group 128318 years ending 31 December
il (foritselfand on behalf  which have been subject to wear 2024, respectively

of its subsidiaries)

(1) A28 REEFRA

and tear throughout the years

FEERENRRIEEE R

EL U N AR A ERNMERE
() BIbE BEXER  AERRERE
AREHEAR)

HEUENENBL=ZAEE

SEENNTEBBARKE
3EET ARIE122EE
TRARBISEET

RN ERIBAEIRAE) 83
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Transaction amount for
Description of continuing the year ended
No. Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement connected transactions Term Annual cap 31 December 2021
BRI LS
12R318 1L
B 3 iRk [ RAIE] HEMERR M BB FELR FEZRAEE
8. 2022 First Master 11 November2021 (1) the Company (foritself ~ The Group shall provide the following ~ From 1January2022to  Will not exceed RMB24.8 million,  N/A
Property Management 2021118118 and on behalf of its property services to the Yincheng 31 December 2024 RMB26.8 millionand RMB26.8 A&
Agreement subsidiaries); and Real Estate Group: 022F181HE2024E  million for each of the three
WFEE—HEEEE (2)  VinchengRealEstate (i)  property management 128318 years ending 31 December
thig (foritself and on behalf services, including but not 2024, respectively
of its subsidiaries) limited to cleaning, gardening, HENUENRNBIL=AEE
(1) &3R8 REEFRA waste disposal, parking, traffic BERDIFERBARE
REMBAT) ;& and security management VR EEVRYNGEIEES
(2) HREHEGBERIR services; TRAREWSEET
REEMBAR) (i) professional services,
including but not limited
to facility installation,
maintenance and renovation
services; and
(iii)  value-added services,

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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Transaction amount for
Description of continuing the year ended
No. Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement connected transactions Term Annual cap 31 December 2021
BRI ES
12318
B BE [ELEE [ RAIE] fEMERR 2 BB FELR FEZRAEE
9. 2022 Second Master 11 November2021 (1) the Company (foritself ~ The Group shall provide the following  From 1 January2022to  Will not exceed RMB126.9 N/A
Property Management and on behalf of its property services to the 31 December 2024 million, RMB151.8 million and
Agreement subsidiaries); and Yincheng International Group: RMB148.5 million for each

WNEE-HNEEE
ans

00FNB1E

)

)

Yincheng International
(foritself and on behalf

of its subsidiaries)

KAF (BHEZRA
FEMBAT) ; &
FHER (BEESR
AREMEAR)

i

property management
services, including but not
limited to cleaning, gardening,
waste disposal, parking, traffic
and security management
services;
(i) professional services,
including but not limited
to facility installation,
maintenance and renovation
services; and
(iii)  value-added services,
including but not limited to
community value-added
services, consultation services
for unsold property units,
and other referral and agency

services.
REERRRHEREBRAUT
MR 128318

i

NEEERY QRETER
BREZ EMEE FE
RERZEEERE,
(i) BEEH QFETRIRIE
TR REREHNRE R
(i) BERE AEETRIHE
SRR REME B
ARBUREMBNRAE
MR

of the three years ending 31
December 2024, respectively

WREIBIREWUE HENUENENAL=AEE FER

SEENITEBBARKE
1269B 87w AR®151.88
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The PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement

As the right to use the licenced trademarks is granted to the Group
on a royalty-free basis, the transaction under the PRC Trademark
Licensing Agreement falls within the de minimus threshold
provided under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules and will be exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Deed of Hong Kong Trademark Licensing

As the right to use the licenced trademarks is granted to the Group
on a royalty-free basis, the transaction under the Deed of Hong
Kong Trademark Licensing falls within the de minimus threshold
provided under Rule T4A.76 of the Listing Rules and will be exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Master Community Repair and Maintenance Services Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios for the Master
Community Repair and Maintenance Services Agreement is
expected to be less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions
under the Master Community Repair and Maintenance Services
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company which will be subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

First Master Property Management Agreement

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the proposed annual caps for the transactions contemplated under
the First Master Property Management Agreement is, on an annual
basis, expected to be more than 5%, the transactions contemplated
under the First Master Property Management Agreement will
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company and
be subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular
and independent shareholders' approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Second Master Property Management Agreement

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
proposed annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
Second Master Property Management Agreement is, on an annual
basis, expected to be more than 5%, the transactions contemplated
under the Second Master Property Management Agreement will
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company and
be subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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Master Supply Agreement

As all applicable percentage ratios in respect of the highest
proposed annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the
Master Supply Agreement are higher than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the transactions contemplated under the Master Supply Agreement
is subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but is exempt from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and shareholders' approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2022 Master Community Repair and Maintenance Services
Agreement

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) calculated
with reference to the highest proposed annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 Master Community
Repair and Maintenance Services Agreement exceed 0.1% but are
less than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Master
Community Repair and Maintenance Services Agreement is subject
to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempt from circular (including independent financial advice)
and Independent Shareholders' approval requirements pursuant to
Rules 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

2022 First Master Property Management Agreement

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) calculated
with reference to the highest proposed annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 First Master Property
Management Agreement exceed 0.1% but are all less than 5%, the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 First Master Property
Management Agreement is subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements but exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and Independent
Shareholders' approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of
the Listing Rules.

2022 Second Master Property Management Agreement

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s)
calculated with reference to the highest proposed annual cap
for the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Second
Master Property Management Agreement exceed 5%, the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 Second Master
Property Management Agreement is subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular, independent financial advice, Independent
Shareholders' approval and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
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In respect of the transactions contemplated under the Master Community
Repair and Maintenance Services Agreement, the First Master Property
Management Agreement and the Second Master Property Management
Agreement, pursuant to Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has granted, a waiver from strict
compliance with the announcement requirement under Chapter T4A
of the Listing Rules relating to the abovementioned partially-exempt
continuing connected transaction, and the announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules relating to the abovementioned non-exempt continuing
connected transactions.

For further details of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions, please refer to the section headed "Continuing Connected
Transactions” in the Prospectus and the Company's announcements
dated 2 July 2020 and 11 November 2021.

The continuing connected transactions (except for the granting of
trademark licence under the PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement and
the Deed of Hong Kong Trademark Licensing) as mentioned above
also constitute related party transactions of the Company under the
IFRS(s), details of which are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report. Save for the transactions
disclosed above, the other related party transactions as set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transaction which require
announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’ approval
under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule T4A.55 of the Listing Rules, all the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that they have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) onnormal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor's letter on the continuing connected transactions of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been audited by Ernst & Young, the auditor of the Company,
who will retire at the conclusion of the AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The AGM will be held on Wednesday, 1 June 2022, the notice of which will
be published and dispatched to the Shareholders as soon as practicable
in accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules.

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

(a) from Friday, 27 May 2022 to Wednesday, 1 June 2022, both days
inclusive and during which period no share transfer will be effected,
for the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders' entitlement
to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company's share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30
p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Thursday, 26 May 2022; and

(b)  from Wednesday, 15 June 2022 to Friday, 17 June 2022, both days
inclusive and during which period no share transfer will be effected,
for the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend. In order to establish entitlements to the
proposed final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company's share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30
p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Tuesday, 14 June 2022.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual
report form part of this annual report.

By order of the Board
Xie Chenguang
Chairman

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EFERS
MBRRRER
EFRWANBERNARRFERATZSM
EENRBRARKRER
2l

HE2021FE1N2A31HIEEE 28 BHRE
ThHEARABZEEMZ kGt EHAE%
MEBFREEFASERFERT T5E
WNEEBT A TBHREBFATIRE
—EREBEUERERZTKIZHMEBMAELR
T AZ BAT o

E%%@Ek@&%ﬁ%?ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁi@ﬁ’é

REBFAGRN202266818 (28=) £
T REBERRFMA R EHRRERT
BWEHFETRR-

RUTHER ZREREEHERDER
TRTFE:

(a) HE202255827H (E8F) £E20224F
6B1H (BH=) (BFEEmA) » #
B HBEEARMDBEFE LR
ERFHEREBFEFAGENG LK
EVRA-ARNGEREEREBEAN
EERNEEEE FAEBRAXHERE
R ERIEBAEN20224E58268 (2487
) TFUR=+59 (8RB £X4
NEWEBRMBREELEEBRRES
BRARAT MUtAFTBEBFERK
EERI1835E SN TIE1712-17165%
) UMEBESLSFE K&

(b) B2022&E68158 (EH =) $£%2022
F£6817H (ER) (BFEEEmMA) »
HARE N Z R E A RMmD B FE S LU
BERREIRESERPARE 2R A
MEEREERFREZER - FFEB
PXHEREBEMBREREBN20225F
6B14H (2D TFOUEF=+%9 (&
BB EXAATRMDBE ERLER
EBTRBEELERAD MtAE
BEFERAEEISIEAMANTIE
1712-17165%88) » URIBERLFE-

EXBBAFHREAMEE RS FERIFR
BRI AFRE—E D -

AEFEMH
Z/E

RN SERISARAR
20201 EERE

89



90

INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT
REEBBRBRS

ACTIVE COMMUNICATION TO INCREASE MARKET
RECOGNITION

The Company attached great importance to communications with its
shareholders, investors, financial institutions, the media and the public
in order to establish a more efficient communication channel between
the Company and the capital market. The Company believes that
effective investor relations will help reduce financial costs and improve
the liquidity of its shares, leading to a more solid shareholder base. The
Company therefore undertakes to maintain high transparency and to
release the financial and operation conditions and the latest news to
the market promptly and accurately in compliance with the principle
of having "accurate, timely, and transparent” information disclosure.
The Company strives to ensure that the market would have a deep
understanding of the Company and maintain high corporate transparency
in order to strengthen the investors’ understanding and confidence in the
Group, thereby creating the maximum value for the Shareholders and
other stakeholders.

In 2021, the Company's investor relations department worked towards
the Group's business development, and maintained close communication
with the capital market and the public by holding investor presentations,
media conference, investor reverse roadshows, and publishing press
releases and articles on the Group's WeChat official account.

The investor relations department will continue to enhance the quality
of communication with investors and maintain corporate transparency
through various channels such as the publication of annual report
and interim report, press release, and announcement, as well as the
Company's website.

To ensure easy access to the Company's updated information, all of
our published information including announcements, interim and
annual reports and press releases, are posted on the Company's
website www.yinchenglife.hk in a timely manner. Interested parties can
also make enquiries by contacting the investor relations department
(email: ir@yincheng.hk).

SHARES PERFORMANCE IN 2021

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had a total of 267,152,000 Shares
and the closing price of the Shares was HK$3.740. Based on the closing
price as at 31 December 2021, the market capitalisation of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$999.1 million.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY:-

To the shareholders of Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AN —E2T1E

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yincheng Life
Service CO., Ltd. (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”)
set out on pages 97 to 211, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended 31 December 2021, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Qur responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters

MEEZER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANERNAEERREZER

Recoverability of trade receivables

B S WA IBA R o]t

At 31 December 2021, the Group had gross trade receivables
of RMB253,051,000, of which mainly arose from the
provision of property management services and value-
added services. Provision for impairment amounting to
RMB22,014,000 was made.
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Management assessed the expected credit losses on
trade receivables based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected credit loss rates. The Group uses
judgements in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs for the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's past history, ageing profile of the receivables,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements and the assessment
of the expected credit losses on trade receivables involved
significant estimates made by management.
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Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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We obtained an understanding of how management
assessed the expected credit losses of trade receivables,
and evaluated the design effectiveness and tested the
operating effectiveness of key internal controls in relation
to impairment assessments;
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We assessed the credit loss provision methodology
adopted by management, and the estimated credit
loss rates by considering historical cash collection
performance and movements of the ageing of trade
receivables, the market conditions and forward-looking
factors;

HABBERBFREOERFKE S BUGRRIRE
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We tested, on a sampling basis, the accuracy of
ageing analysis of trade receivables prepared by the
management, and checked the mathematical accuracy of
the calculation of the provision for loss allowance;
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We assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements in connection with
the impairment of trade receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters
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FEEZEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEZNAEERREZEER

Impairment of goodwill

BE B

The Group recorded goodwill of RMB27,411,000 as at 31
December 2021 arising from the acquisition of business.

SEEN2021F128318#EmE ARTE27,411,0007T
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In accordance with IAS 36, the Group is required to
perform an impairment test for goodwill at least annually
or whenever there is an indication that the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
may be impaired. The process of impairment testing for
goodwill is complex and involves significant judgements
and estimates in relation to the cash flow forecast,
growth rate and discount rate applied, which are based
on assumptions such as expected future market and
economic conditions.
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The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures for goodwill impairment testing are set out in
notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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We obtained an understanding of how management
assessed the goodwill impairment, and evaluated
the design effectiveness and tested the operating
effectiveness of key internal controls in relation to
impairment assessments;
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We evaluated the assumptions used for impairment testing
for goodwill and tested the accuracy by taking into account
the relevant historical evidence supporting the underlying
assumptions and comparing with orders on hand,
contracts signed, operating data and external market
research.
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We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer and
obtained an understanding of the valuation processes
and significant assumptions from the management of the
Group and the valuer; and
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We also involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in reviewing the methodology and certain inputs
(such as the discount rate and growth rate) adopted in
the evaluation of goodwill impairment. We considered the
adequacy of disclosures for goodwill impairment testing in
the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
reportin this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WU RHEERS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
‘I ZHENRS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2022

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rEEmAEMERENT@mR

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12831HIEEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5E AR®TT ARETT
REVENUE g 5 1,351,329 962,017
Cost of sales THE WA 6 (1,132,083) (799,632)
GROSS PROFIT EF 219,246 162,385
Otherincome and gains H A K W & 5 12,584 15,139
Selling and distribution expenses HE kD IHRX (5,810) (5,355)
Administrative expenses TERZ (73,391) (60,594)
Loss on disposal of investment property HEREYENESIR 6 (3,577) -
Fair value gains on investment properties R E¥ENAABERT 14 1,026 988
Impairment losses on financial assets, net  &RYE E B EF1E/F2E (11,233) (3,803)
Finance costs B TS A 7 (9,975) (9,955)
Other expenses Hitfasz (661) (272)
Share of profits and losses of: FEME R F) R E518
Associates = l/NE 18 (560) 86
Joint ventures aEhE 19 1,403 200
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FRIRATEF 6 129,052 98,819
Income tax expense FrisfiBEsz 10 (34,254) (28,604)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERi@F 94,798 70,215
Profit attributable to: DUF AT RE LR
Owners of the parent ISYNSTEZZ= N 88,694 67,286
Non-controlling interests El22) 6,104 2,929
94,798 70,215
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BATREREEZEFAA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EiESRER
THE PARENT 12
Basic (RMB) EX AR 0.33 0.25
Diluted (RMB) e (AR 0.33 0.25
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
el kEMEERER

2021 2020
T % “EBCEH
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BFT AREFTT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HihZ2mi=
Other comprehensive income that will RABHERFTEEN DT
not be reclassified to profit or loss in Bm B M2 E W -
subsequent periods:
Income tax relating to disposal of HArEEMIBENHEERS
revaluated investment property that KREYEARRTER
will not be reclassified 314 -
Exchange differences: ERER
Exchange differences on translation of MEBIEBRNERER
foreign operations (2,127) (6,149)
Net other comprehensive income that HEeREETrEEMOES
will not be reclassified to profit or loss ERNHEM I PR
in subsequent periods (1,813) (6,149)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREMEEESE
FOR THE YEAR (1,813) (6,149)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEWEEE
FOR THE YEAR 92,985 64,066
Total comprehensive income MTFALTEGE2EWNRARZEE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent ISYNCTEZZE DN 86,881 61,137
Non-controlling interests R R 6,104 2,929
92,985 64,066

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR ERMBATR

31 December 2021

20214128318
2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
b5 AR®TT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M BEREE 13 75,198 23,803
Investment properties KREME 14 32,971 29,919
Right-of-use assets FEREESE 15 5,054 1,459
Goodwill Gk 16 27,411 26,179
Intangible assets EBTEE 17 22,399 25,977
Investment in associates REERBENKRE 18 3,855 2,965
Investment in joint ventures REedtENKE 19 4,273 2,870
Deferred tax assets FIETRIEE & 20 10,072 6,007
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 181,233 119,179
CURRENT ASSETS MBIEE
Inventories =78 22 3,547 4,903
Trade receivables B S W IE 23 231,037 127,836
Due from related companies FEWLRREG A B FIE 36 103,355 95,383
Prepayments, deposits FENRIE-ZER
and other receivables HhpEWRIE 24 76,114 61,724
Financial assets at fair value BARBES ARG
through profit or loss (“"FVTPL") G YN EER N ER),
NEMEE 21 - 5,112
Pledged deposits BIRIRER 25 1,344 -
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 25 538,131 566,915
Total current assets MBS EARE 954,128 861,873
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MBRRER

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5E AR®ET ARHEFIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Trade payables B 5 RIE 26 44,514 24,203
Other payables, deposits received HE AR BliRE &
and accruals FESTE A 27 247,002 194,661
Contract liabilities =E =L 28 295,835 233,982
Due to related companies FE(T R EG A B FIE 36 17,121 16,074
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITIEE 29 209,000 280,000
Lease liabilities HEESRE 15 6,984 1,469
Tax payable FEIRIE 16,565 10,634
Total current liabilities BB EAREE 837,021 761,023
NET CURRENT ASSETS MBEERE 117,107 100,850
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEMRERTEEARE
LIABILITIES 298,340 220,029
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREMAE
Lease liabilities HEasd 15 9,640 38
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEEE 20 9,864 10,520
Due to a non-controlling shareholder FEAT— R I B A B
of a subsidiary IFERR IR BRI 5,900 13,900
Total non-current liabilities ERENEELEEE 25,404 24,458
NET ASSETS BEFE 272,936 195,571
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners BATHAE ABGER
of the parent
Share capital 5N 30 2,387 2,387
Reserves #H 32 240,395 171,040
242,782 173,427
Non-controlling interests FEPERR 30,154 22,144
TOTAL EQUITY RER4aEE 272,936 195,571

Mr. Li Chunling
FTHEBREE
Director

EF

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

Ms. Huang Xuemei
BHESXE

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mm

Attributable to owners of the parent

2t

CRWAp
L4zt

BB

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12831HILEEE

BATIRA AL
Investment Statutory Exchange Share Non-
Share Merger Share  revaluation surplus  fluctuation option Retained controlling Total
capital reserve*  premium* reserve* reserve reserve reserve profits* Total interests equity
K& EERS  EREH
Rx  ofidk  ROEE  EfERE it fifer EREGE  R@EA* i FEREE  ER4B
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEWTRE ABEBTR ABBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTn ARRTR ABRTR ARET:R ARETR
(note30)  (note32) (note32) (note32) (note31)
(Ma30)  (Mas2) (W) (Ff3k32) (Hz231)
A1 January 2021 RaEIRIR W (BB %N W6 18 (6,149) 41 TS BT w1955
Profit for the year Fpgfl - - - - - - - 88,694 88,694 6,104 94,198
Other comprehensive income forthe year: ~ EAE M2 ENE
Foreign currency translation differences  SMEREZHR = = = S = (2121) - - (2121) - 2121)
Income tax relating o disposal of revaluated (B fEREHEIERE
investment property SR = = = 314 = = = = 314 - 314
Total comprehensive income forthe year ~ FRZENERE = - - 314 - (2121) - 88,69 86,881 6,104 92,985
Appropriations to statutory surplus reserve  BRE A TR = - - - 11,49 - - (11,494) - - -
Disposal ofinvestment property HERENE = - - (1,256) - - - 1,256 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) WERBARE (H534) - - - - - - - - - 30 30
Capttal contribution from non-controlling  JEFERREE
shareholders = = o o o o o o o 1,876 1,876
Equity-settled share-based payment ~ WEREEMNK(RA
ERBAH - - - - - - 2,976 - 2976 - 2976
Final 2020 dividend declared BERONERERE = - (20,502) - - - - - (20,502) - (20,502)
Asat31 December 2021 R0NE
128318 28 (1326 4% KB BN 626 33 oM 20 s 21293

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB240,395,000

(2020: RMB171,040,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

* Z LB IRIEN T

171,040,0007T) ©

EHMHBRARARANES
i AR15240,395,0007T (20204 : AR

RN ERIBAEIRAE)
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‘ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
raEmEER

Attributable to owners of the parent

SATEE AR
Investment Statutory Exchange Share Non-
Share Merger Share  revaluation surplus fluctuation option Retained controlling Total
capital reserve®  premium* reserve® reserve reserve reserve profits* Total interests equity

RE  iEER  ER&Y
kx o AGERT RMGEE  EEEE B B RRERAT  REE 5t HEREE  ERRE
RMBODD  RMBOOD  RMBODD  RMBODD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBON  RMBODD  RMBOWD
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARRTR ARHTR ARBTR  ARRTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR

(note 30) (nate 32) (note32) (note32) (note31)
(H&#30)  (H&32)  (E32) (&32) (a31)
11 Janeary 2020 RINEIRIE W BB W W 105 - - negm 1m0 (T TiE: )
Profit for the year ERiH - - - - - - - 67,86 67,286 2929 70215
Other comprehensive income forthe year: A2 ENE
Foreign currency translation differences  SMEHREZE - - - - - (6,149) - - (6,149) - (6,149)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FAZENGEE - - - - - (6,149) - 67,286 61137 2929 04,066
Acquisition of non-controlling Interests ~ WESEERiER - (59) - - - - - - (55) (275) (330)
Appropriations tostatutory surplus reserve  BEE A TR - - - - 8,728 - - (6,726) - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-EHEAT - - - - - - - - - 18948 18948
Capital contribution from non-controling ~ —EHBAZEER
sharefolders of a subsidiary EtE - - - - - - - - - 980 980
Equity-settled share-based payment NesGEMRNA
BRI - - - - - - 31 - k1] - 3%
Final 2019 dividend declared EERNIEXERE - - (10,236) - - - - - (10,238) - (10,238)
Asat 31 December 2020 R00E
18318 2 (3 95 Wy 1 (6,149) 4l B Mm@ D %]

1 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEIREAER

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12831HILEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B EE ARETT AREFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZHMRRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PRIR A=A 129,052 98,819
Adjustments for: MTIRIEFHAE
Depreciation of items of property, ME -BEEREEBRNE
plant and equipment 6&13 16,965 1,924
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6&15 3,656 2,878
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEE 6&17 3,678 3,071
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME -BER
plant and equipment R BIE B Wi 5 (31) (25)
Impairment losses on financial assets, ERMEERESIETE
net 6 11,233 3,803
Finance costs RGN 7 9,975 9,955
Equity-settled share-based expense MigmtEEBURMN 7
e=2ndiahg 6 2,976 341
Loss on disposal of investment property HEREYZERE 6 3,577 -
Investment income KERA 5 (295) (344)
Share of profits and losses of associates A B A Blim | e E5 18 560 (86)
Share of profits and losses of joint fE(h & & 2 E N
ventures 518 (1,403) (200)
Expense on acquisition of subsidiaries WHEM B A B 463 -
Interest income FIE U A 5 (1,029) (3,409)
Fair value gains on investment BEMEN R AEBEWTE
properties 14 (1,026) (988)
178,351 121,739
Decrease/(increase) in inventories EFERLD (M) 1,356 (3,967)
Increase in pledged deposits EARIRERIE M (1,344) -
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FERIAIE 0 (108,665) (39,600)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FEMTIE e REM
other receivables JE W E AR D (10,633) (8,120)
(Increase)/decrease in due from FE U BRI B 75 7k18 (Gn)
related parties oA (16,615) 210,977
Increase in trade payables B 5 eI RIEIE D 20,001 13,047
Increase in other payables, deposits HMPEMRIE  BliZE &
received and accruals FEST & BIE D 39,273 32,654
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 60,646 40,495
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to e RAB A B R IEIE 0,
related companies GRZb 1,047 (264,323)
Cash generated from operations REMRRRE 163,417 102,902
Interest received BUHE 1,029 3,409
Interest paid BHE (9,486) (14,459)
Tax paid BIRIE (34,602) (23,852)
Net cash flows from operating activities & ;EBFISRESNEFE 120,358 68,000

RN ERIBAEIRAE) 103

20201 EERE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FARERER
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B EE ARETFT ARHEFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBFMSRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plantand ~ BEYZ -BWERREEE
equipment 13 (68,401) (12,116)
Purchases of intangible assets EERTEE 17 (100) (10)
Purchase in investment properties BEREYE (3,051) -
Disposal of investment properties HEREYE 4,954 -
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BERAANEBETABRN
TRIEE (78,500) (45,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ~ HERAABET ABZH
at FVTPL SREEMNENIE 83,907 40,231
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EE B A B 34 (1,759) (42,114)
Investment in joint ventures REeEgEhENKRE = (2,670)
Advances to related companies B E QBB (652,164) (241,294)
Recovery of advances to related U] m B A B BN
companies 657,152 1,881
Investment in associates REBEATRE (1,450) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Idii-Elediog: = (330)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HE¥E -HERZHE
and equipment FriSsIa 97 462
Net cash flows used in investing KREREBFMAREREFEE
activities (59,315) (300,960)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MESZBRRFRERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid ERE (20,502) (10,236)
Capital contribution by the non- JEERRREE
controlling shareholders 1,876 980
Repayment of advances from a third party A5 = S {EEEB®R = (115,000)
Advances from related companies kNI e - 766,699
Repayment of advances from related BIERAB A B BN
companies = (516,471)
Principle portion of lease payments MEMRNAEED 15 (201) (3,916)
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank st RIBTTERPIISRUIA
borrowings 209,000 280,000
Repayment of interest-bearing bank BESEIRITEN
borrowings (280,000) (50,000)

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER
2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

PEE ARBFT ARETTT

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing  FUE ;&) (FRA) . Frfs

activities HEMEF5 (89,827) 352,056
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH HERBFEEEEY GRL)

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EnFEEE (28,784) 119,096
Cash and cash equivalents at REVIRERIBEEEY

beginning of year 566,915 447,819
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REXRRERIREEEY

END OF YEAR 538,131 566,915
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEEBMEGRI N

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances & MIRTTAEER 25 539,475 566,915
Less: Pledged deposits A BIERER 1,344 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS FEMBRRARKIRERER

STATED IN THE CONSOLIDATED R RERIREEEY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 538,131 566,915
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA TR R MIEE

31 December 2021
20218128310

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The registered office address of the Company is Sertus
Chambers, Governors Square, Suite # 5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay
Avenue, P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, the Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the subsidiaries now comprising the
Group were involved in the provision of property management
services and value-added services.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the

ultimate holding company of the Company is YINCHENG LIFE
SERVICE CO., LTD., whichis incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

REKREEEHR

rABlR—BERHEEeHEETMAIL
NERRAB - R RBINFEMMEE
it Z&Sertus Chambers, Governors
Square, Suite # 5-204, 23 Lime Tree
Bay Avenue, P.O. Box 2547, Grand
Cayman KY1-1104, the Cayman
Islands

BRABA—BEREZERQAB -REHE
2021F12831HIEFE » KEEHIRBKE
THEBABRNRFRHEYESERE R
BER

EERR ARANERAT RREE

RABIZBIRMEZRBBERAE > /R
MENSEMMIBAT -

FABEEMBATFBENT -

Nominal  Percentage of
value of equity interest
Place and date of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries establishment and place of operations share capital ~ the Company Principalactivities
SEMBLIL, PRSIt R FRFIEML
MEAR B BB 2 3t B ERAEE REBDL FBEH
Directly held:
BHERA:
Yincheng Property Service British Virgin Islands/ 11 April 2019 Usb50,000 100% Investment holding
Holding Limited** REEMRES 2019F4811H 50,000%7T REER
Indirectly held:
RREE
BRBERBARAT Hong Kong of China/ 30 April 2019 HKD1 100%  Investment holding
REEE, 2019548308 BT S EER
BRABCEEEZNERAT Peaple's Republic of China ("PRC")/ UsD1,000,000 100%  Investment holding
("ERAE* Mainland China/ 14 May 2019 1,000,000% 7T REER
HhEE \RIME (THhE))
REIFYH, 2019458 148
ARBHYERBERAT PRC/Mainland China/26 December 1997 RMB100,000,000 100% Property management
e, HRERH, AR MEERE
19974E12826H 100,000,0007%

AREEEERERBERAT

ARRMESARAT

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

PRC/Mainland China/20 March 2013
FE HEI R, 201343820H

PRC/Mainland China/10 January 2012
REL/HREIRH, 2012461 108

RMB11,000,000

100%

Housekeeping services

AR BEHRH
11,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000 100% Fitness services
NG ’E R
1,000,0007T



1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date of incorporation/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R AR IYEE

1. QAFKREEEH @
BERMBATINER (@

Nominal
value of
registered

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

Subsidiaries establishment and place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
SEMRARIL,FR It B R FAFEG

MEAR H BB 2 3t B HERRAEE REBDLE FEEH

Indirectly held: (continued)

EEE (@

BRRBEMEARAR PRC/Mainland China/8 November 2000 RMB11,000,000 100% Elevator maintenance
TE,/REIR, 2000511585 AR Bk

11,000,0007T

FRERZBEMERBERAT PRC/Mainland China/11 December 2002 RMB5,000,000 100% Property management
L RERM, AR YEEE
200221281180 5,000,0007%

BRAKRCEBEZANGR AT PRC/Mainland China/21 September 2017 RMB600,000 100%  Investment holding
R BRI, AR REER
2017898215 600,0007%

FARIBYEERERAF PRC/Mainland China/25 December 2012 RMB500,000 70%  Property management
HE HERH, AR YEER
20124128250 500,0007%

BRAREMGEIRERAT™ PRC/Mainland China/15 August 2016 RMB11,000,000 100% Landscaping services
HEREIRH, 2016585158 AR i EERT

11,000,0007T

BREBHNEBERRAT ™ PRC/Mainland China/30 May 2007 RMB500,000 100% Property management
FEL/FREIR I, 20074558308 AR MEEE

500,0007%

IR EREH TRBEARAT*  PRC/Mainland China/23 March 2017 RMB4,000,000 100% Decoration services
HE HERH, AR HAERRYS
2017%3823H 4,000,0007T

BRREERIEARAT PRC/Mainland China/28 May 2018 RMB8,000,000 100% Engineering services
HEL HERM, AR TREmR%
2018%5528H 8,000,0007¢

16X (&7 MERBERAT PRC/Mainland China/23 May 2007 RMB3,229,600 100% Property management
R BRI, AR MEER
200745823H 3,229,6007%

AREAEERIEARAE

ARRAERREBRAE

PRC/Mainland China/6 December 2019
FRE HEI R, 201941286

PRC/Mainland China/10 March 2020
R,/ TREIR 2020538108

RMB10,000,000
NG
10,000,0007%

RMBS5,000,000
AR
5,000,0007%

100%

100%

Engineering services

TR

Catering services

BRI

RN SERISARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PATSERARMTEE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date of incorporation/

1. QAFREEEHR @
BRMBATNER (@

Nominal
value of
registered

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

Subsidiaries establishment and place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
SEMRARIL, B Lt B R FAFIEM

MEAR BB B 2 3th B HERRAEE REBDLE FEEH

Indirectly held: (continued)

ERE (@

ERIREMERBB R LB PRC/Mainland China/25 May 2020 RMB5,000,000 100%  Property management
HEL/ R E R, AR MEEE
20204F5825H 5,000,0007t

ERECEZYEEEERAR PRC/Mainland China/15 January 2009 RMB12,000,000 51% Property management
L ThE P, 200961 A 158 N MEERE

12,000,0007T

FERIR R REMR AR AR PRC/Mainland China/19 February 2020 RMB5,000,000 51% Decoration services
B R, 2020628198 AR RIERT

5,000,000t

LRI ERBB R LB PRC/Mainland China/9 September 2020 RMB10,000,000 100%  Property management
HE/ R ER 202059 598 AR MEEE

10,000,0007T

BINR B EEERR AT PRC/Mainland China/11 November 2020 RMB10,000,000 51% Property management
HEL/RE R, AR MEERE
2020118118 10,000,0007%

LR AR RRFB B R AT PRC/Mainland China/7 January 2021 RMB20,000,000 51% Engineering services
i RE R, 2021 F187H ARE TERS

20,000,000

LB IRIAIR A E BB R A B PRC/Mainland China/11 January 2021 RMB10,000,000 51% Property management
i hE R, 202118118 AR MEEE

10,000,0007T

AREEXBERBARAB PRC/Mainland China/15 January 2021 RMB3,000,000 51% Housekeeping services
EL/FER, 2021515158 AR BB

3,000,0007T

BARIBHEEYEBEEBR AT PRC/Mainland China/10 March 2021 RMB5,000,000 60% Property management
hEThE P, 2021438108 N MEEE

5,000,000t

BREABMERBBRAR PRC/Mainland China/30 March 2021 RMB2,000,000 51% Property management
e, FREIRH, 2021435308 N WEEE

2,000,0007T

FNIRFAERBER AT PRC/Mainland China/8 July 2021 RMB10,010,000 100% Property management
HE/FREIR 202147 B8H AR MEEE

10,010,0007%

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date of incorporation/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

1. QAFKREEEH @
BERMBATINER (@

Nominal
value of
registered

Percentage of

equity interest
attributable to

Subsidiaries establishment and place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
SEMRARIL, BRIt B R FATFIEM
MEASE B HA L R i 5 3 2 MR AEE REFSLE FEEH
Indirectly held: (continued)
MERE (@
ARIENZENERTBRAT* PRC/Mainland China/3 September 2021 RMB5,000,000 100%  Property management
HEL/FREIR 202149 838 AR MEEE
5,000,0007¢
AR A EEEEERAR PRC/Mainland China/25 October 2021 RMB10,000,000 51% Property management
HEL/ R ER AR MEERE
20214E10825H 10,000,0007T
WINAEERD (B BRAR PRC/Mainland China/9 November 2021 RMB10,000,000 51% Property management
HEL/FREIR I, 2021411 B9H AR MEER
10,000,0007T
TLERIRIBEE AR SR ST B R A B> PRC/Mainland China/22 October 2021 RMBT10,000,000 40% Decoration services
HEL/ RE R, AR EER
20218108228 10,000,0007T
WINIRIFIR R BRFE A RA T PRC/Mainland China/27 January 2021 RMB500,000 51% Property management
HEL/ R ER AR MEERE
2021418278 500,0007%
MMNEBZ R ERBE R AT PRC/Mainland China/24 October 2014 RMB5,000,000 100% Property management
HEL/ FRE R, AR MEEE
20145108241 5,000,000t
IERMESERRAF PRC/Mainland China/7 July 2016 RMB1,000,000 51% Property management
HEL/FREIR 201657878 AR MEEE
1,000,0007%
EATIETEEMESEARSMEAE* PRC/Mainland China/10 April 1997 RMB500,000 100% Property management
B,/ REIRM, 1997845108 AR MEERE
500,000
* B A is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC * MR ARBERE AR MO EE
law. Bibo
**  These companies which registered under the PRC laws are wholly-owned o ZERBREEEAMN A AEAT
subsidiaries of the Company. ENES=NIEYNCIE
*k%k *kk

These companies which registered under the PRC laws are subsidiaries
of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company and, accordingly, are
accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company's control over
them.

ZERBEPEZREMO QR B A AT
NIE2EWBABNNEAR  FtAR
BN E R B A R ARSI M
BRE-

RN SERISARAR
20201 EERE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 HEREE

110

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"),
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards ("IASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

ZEUBHRRDIRBEER S5t ERE
SEMEBDABERNERMBRS
R (TEIRMB|EER) (BIERER
S ERNEEE (HREHERESR
) EMBFTABRM B REER
REst 2 (TRREsH2R)) RaEfE)
URBEBABDHROBIRBRERR &
EMBWMRIDIRBE LA AR M
ERANEBEEFENREMERER
ABESABENEMEERI RS
BERN ZFMHBREUARE (TA
R 27 BFfAEENEERE
BT ALE

rEEMBBRERBRBEARTRENE
NE) (B TAEE)) B E20215F128
B LEFENMBHRE - WEBASREA
NEEERNEFEGNER (SEEHE
MHEE) EXEEBEBSARKKER
B9 48 BE 7 & T 2K 3 B & B [0] 3R 79 & B
NAEREAREHOR TEAENE
RAHERRETNED BREAEEE
AIAKENETERKREDNERIZHH
RARRN) REZFRRE  BEEE
4 o

EARDEERNBEERVIRKE
ARZHEBRORBBUEF] FFEHE
ELHBEHRRESNE R &R
CEEMRAEMEBEEMBR 85

(a) ERREHHMERREFTAEN
arEHE;

(b) HAthSHRHEELRERN ; K
() AEBERNRRERBERRE

MEBABDMBRENKRSBBEALEL
EIAE [ W ERANE E — B 5T EBER AR
83 oy NSIESES =R SENEEER
REQEGEAR TH#HERS AKRE
EZERERILEERAL-

o fe HoAh 2 W am B9 & A8 BB D R
BRAEESNEHEE AN RIFZERE
m B e SR R ER N IRE
Mo-FTEEERNRATREERER #
m WA X H AR B AR EE NS AT
ZERSABNBETRENNESRK
B R R HR N o



2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time
for the current year's financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2

Amendmentsto IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

(early adopted)

2.1

2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described
below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest
rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-
free rate ("RFR"). The amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets
and liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements
of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform
on an entity's financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments did not have any significant impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below: (continued)

(b)  Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30
June 2022, provided the other conditions for applying the
practical expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendment recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits at the beginning of the current
accounting period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

2.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PATSERARMTEE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to |IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards
2018-2020

11 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?®

Insurance Contracts?

Insurance Contracts?*

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plantand Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use’

Initial Application of IFRS 17
and IFRS 9 - Comparative
Information?

Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’
Amendmentsto IFRS 1,
IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 417
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

7

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020,
IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS
37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS
3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of
the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a
downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the
IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if
an entity's right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to
the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(d)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity's financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application
is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments
to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective
date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the
Group's accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(f)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits or other component
of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only
to items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(h)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract
as well as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly
to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at the
date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3 55 1 >R A SRV B PR B F5 3R o5

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(i) Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

o IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.

. IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements
in Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annualimpairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXEFTEEHME @

(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates orjoint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposalis recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXEFTEEHME @

(continued)

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
foridentical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified
as held for sale), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss
in the period in which it arises (only if there are revalued assets in
the financial statements), unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 EXRGHEREME @

BEE - AMNEE - EENBEE %
MEE -REVMERFRBEE D
HEFHEZHEEER i HIRERR
B RN AT E EETFERERR
B> st EEMN A REIEEE - EER
A blEEREENREEEEMUYN
EREBEEEARBEMENRSE
RMHERASE UEBREBYEEM
B MUEEAGEEAR LEBIRN
HithSENEEMBRNRERARR
LB R T AT B EE L E EFT AT
BeETBUMBE RYRTEES
UETRENSF  HEXEE (A
HWBF) ZHDREENZSE Y —
BEENE ADEEERARSELS
i SN EER/N—HRETELE
fiL o

EEMNREEBEHE LRI SR > 5
BERLD THEB FEEREER i
STHBRBESRET AT RMRE LR
BEENRETSILAZEERE
BB BRI AT B IR R MG IR EIRE o
BEEZEZAEEENERTHME
SRR EERE BRI P

RERSHREEI GRS ENRE
BTSSR BERERETBEFA
KB EEER L MR FHREFE H
e FTUR Bl 28 - E N EE B E R A I
O] & FEBY (5t IR E BB > oAl FESERY
BEE (BERIN BERBE AR
ERTFETEMEERDNESRE
By fii BJ ULl 28R & AR UL 1B TP E
EREREE GORRERITE, #H) B
AEED - RERBBRRES AEE
B ED (EMYBEREPEELE
) BRIFEENBMESEAR TIE
nT REEERERREELEENE
B 5t R AR

RN ERIBAEIRAE) 125

20201 EERE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PATSERARMTEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued

)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person's family

and that person

(i)

(ii)
(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)

(ii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, orany member of a group of which itis a part,
provides key management personnel services to Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for
in accordance with IFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale".
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location forits intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 4.75%
Office equipment, electronic devices 9.5%-
and other devices 32.33%
Over the shorter of the lease
Leasehold improvements terms and 10%-20%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year/period the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXEFTEEHME @

(continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Purchased customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 8 years.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:
Buildings 2 to 4 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance with
the Group's policy for “investment properties”.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a maodification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
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underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of venues and equipment
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment

and printers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease madification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, at fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for "Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXEFTEEHME @

(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are
classified in the category:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, and amounts due from related companies.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equalto 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at the end of the reporting period. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the
case of financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables, deposits received and
accruals, amounts due to related companies and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

2.4 EXRGHEREME @

—fR7 % (&)

BARBESFAEMEAENRDOES
TEARBHBBERAIERZEMEER
RIE— MR EAEITRIE  FRERA LT
HREER EZNESBRREBEREGXN
BEN ZFEEEDRUTERBRE
HEE5iakkE-

B — BYRERLURESERR
WARBEIRMAERITA
HB 8B #aYst B 2818
ER12ERFEHREERE

B2 — BRERLEREERR
BEREEMNEMIE B
FEERETMEERR
BERERNSHESEEE
REREBEERE

B3R - NREAHMEREERE
RS E (I AREAL
REHIFEEREIE BHE
BEBNSHESEEER
2HRMEEEE

[k (vyap73

MEZRURIEMS  AEBEBBE
HAstBEREEREE AL AEE

RARFEEHBRHAE BB
woAEBEERBERBESEEHEBRLER
B BEERE WEHS AREERE
AT ERTAEME R RFHREE

MIETEE Rt E

THMEERVERIFOESEAR
BEFAEaNEHRER - EMRE
O P RRIR SR 2 B R 5 R is
ERHATENTETIR HEH °

FIETMaEBRITRARBERI K
WA IFRARBES AR SR
B ARREEREGERS A

AEBRNTHEEEREEZBORE
STAEMBEARIE  EWIRE KRBT
TER B S fE  FE A BB A B 7R IE K 5t
BIRTT R EMBERR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXETEEHME @&

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued) THAE @

Subsequent measurement ®BEHE

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on THEENEEFERRBREASEIN

their classification as follows: mr:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings) REER AT ENEREE (BRAEN

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings RPwBERE  TEERREREEU

are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective BRMZEREHEN A 2 FRIFALIR

interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be HEABMARE EZIER TR

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses TR - 2EAER MBI ERNT X

are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised Lfﬂiﬁﬁ&fﬁ » HI s BRI 18 m

as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process. ) B 58

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or B85 Bl A Eﬂi’zuﬂl BEIEEATER

premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of HERBRERANEXROHHR—BD

the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is HNERSM AR E - BENEH

included in finance costs in profit or loss. ABm IR AR o

Derecognition of financial liabilities ERBEA RS

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the EtMBENEREEET BUSERM

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. B ZBEERARIEER-

When an existing financial liahility is replaced by another from the ERNEMEBERS —EHBE -GN

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an A MERBEATANEMEE

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or FrERA > S B IR & B RRIR E KB

modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability BRI RRARESENR

and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the IR R E A E’Jﬁﬁum m& B iRE

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss. BERNERERBERER

Offsetting of financial instruments RHERMTE

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net M B RITA FTRATHOEEREF) LUEH

amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a ERDEEAERRIEEEEN

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts BIREERSTEAARKET BIKHE

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the TREERESMEE UNHHBRRR

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. NEHRFE

Inventories =8

Inventories, comprise goods and consumables which are stated at GFEOEERMEFER BRI

the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the TR EMENREETER B AREA

first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated SEHEEET -2 ELEN T

selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to disposal. EEBREEHERELNEMMG A
s o

RN SERISARAR 137
20201 EERE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXEFTEEHME @

(continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks
which are not restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
fora provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of the reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXEFTEEHME @

(continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract contains
a financing component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedientin [FRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXETEEHME @&

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) ER&EHWE (&)

(a) Provision of property management services (a) I1EHYEEIERTS
Revenue from the provision of property management REME=EERBFNNEIZER
services is recognised over the scheduled period on a ERECHERNES REER
straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously F BB YL B K #E K?ET%T#E'\]
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group. H 2 o

(b) Provision of value-added services (b) FEHIEERTS
The value-added services includes decoration and BERBSEEERERR
construction service, fitness service, sales assistance BB IR  HEMENARTS - BEAR
services, catering service and other value-added services. BREMIZERT KRB EERK
Revenue from decoration and construction service, fitness BERBE EBERY TIER%EE
service, engineering service quality monitoring services, EREERB RRCEZERBII
landscaping services are recognised over the scheduled m/ORIEEMBERES THRE
period of time because the customer simultaneously receives 7 7] b5 W B B2 H %%ZK% B 4% 1 AY
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group. Revenue Mo REBRRS R EMILE
from the catering service and other value-added services is AR 75 BY U 7 75 7S 12 11 48 R AR 75 B
recognised when the relevant services are rendered and the M mE A E R UWE A EER
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits EEIEHEF

provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources HAh 3R RAY U 2

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the T W AT E & B P9 32 B el L 1 B 30 o
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an THY/?H’WE%IY%U?E’J—Jﬁ%H%?A
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in TFEHESNSHHABARRAUA -
which they are incurred.

Other income HAthlg A

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective FMEWAKABERA R L REEE
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the B AN XA EMIATRESF
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial HARESTRRIRSMAZEREIRES
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. MEERTDFENNHESR -

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to A% B U AL B R IS E R TB B #E R B 1T
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the B 1R 7 58 B Be 2 48 A AV A% R 25 8 OR
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the AREE MEESEETFEFTEFE
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. o

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a RAEBRSHBERIABRBEHETE
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the PRl R R R EER R (LIRS
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities ERE)BIDENEBE-ENEERSE
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the EEETEORER AW (BRI EE
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to ERURBENIEGIREETT ) o

the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXEFTEEHME @

(continued)

The Group operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in Note 31 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected
in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The non-PRC employees are covered by other defined contribution
pension plans sponsored by the respective local governments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXEFTEEHME @

(continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company's functional currency because the Group's principal
operations are carried out in Mainland China. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group’'s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are disclosed below:

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
consumer price index) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
property sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At the
end of the reporting period, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer's actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group "would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary's functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
(such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Share-based compensation

The fair value of share options granted by the Group is estimated
using valuation techniques of the binomial model. The use
of valuation model requires management to make certain
assumptions with respect to selected model inputs. Management
estimates expected volatility based on the historical volatility of
the stock of comparable companies. Expiration date is the basis for
determining the expected life of an option. The risk-free interest
rate is based on treasury yield curve rates with a remaining term
which approximates to the expected life assumed at the date of
grant. Changes in these input variables would affect the amount of
expense associated with share-based compensation.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at
the end of the reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets
are tested for impairment annually and at other times when such
an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’'s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2021 was RMB27,411,000 (2020: RMB26,179,000).
Further details are given in note 16.

3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties carried at fair value were revalued at each
reporting date based on the appraised market value provided by
independent professional valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimation,
the Group considers information from current prices in an active
market for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.

The principal assumptions for the Group's estimation of the
fair value include those related to estimated rental values with
reference to the current market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, appropriate capitalisation rates
and expected profit margin. The carrying amounts of investment
properties at 31 December 2021 were RMB32,971,000 (2020:
RMB29,919,000). Further details, including the key assumptions
used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are
given in note 14 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details
are included in note 20 to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group's
business which includes property management service income
and value-added service income by project locations for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. As all the locations have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in the nature of property
management services, the nature of the aforementioned business
processes, the type or class of customer for the aforementioned
business and the methods used to distribute the property
management services and value-added services, all locations were
aggregated as one reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

No further geographical information is presented as the Group's
revenue from the external customers is derived solely from its
operation in Mainland China and no non-current assets of the
Group are located outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under
common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue
for the reporting period.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:
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2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETT ARETT
Revenue from contracts with customers REE LGN E 1,350,883 961,747
Revenue from other sources Tk B H 2RI W E
Gross rental income from investment REREMERKESHEN
property operating leases: KA EUA
Other lease payments, including HtBEE M
fixed payments BHEEE IR 446 270
1,351,329 962,017
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Weas ~ E At A R W a (48)
REEFRAHNNE

(a) Disaggregated revenue information:

(a) HPUHEER:

2021 2020
20214 2020&
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
Types of goods or services BRI
Property management services MEEER 1,082,123 771,917
Value-added services BERTS 268,760 189,830
Total revenue from contracts with BREHNWGELREE
customers 1,350,883 961,747
Timing of revenue recognition W5 B S0 RS
Recognised over time R—E R R AR 1,287,775 927,061
Recognised at a point in time NIRRT 63,108 34,686
Total revenue from contracts with BEREHAWmIEEE
customers 1,350,883 961,747

TRITRP 43R 5 AR R B IR
HmEH RFTRN RS BB
SAAGHNERT BBTERMER
BB RS

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were included
in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting
period and recognised from performance obligations
satisfied in previous periods:

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETT AREFIT
Revenue recognised that was RSB AGHNEEN
included in contract liabilities at [
the beginning of the reporting
period:
Property management services MEEIERT 211,504 178,410
Value-added services BERTS 21,616 15,079
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Weam ~ E UL A R Wz ()
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(b) EBHEE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5.

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Property management services

The Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals to
the right to invoice which corresponds directly with the value
to the customer of the Group's performance to date over time.
The Group bills the amount for services provided over time
and payment is due upon the issuance of a demand note by
the Group.

Value-added services

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time,
when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

EMAERERBRNEENENT
LI

HEEEIRE

AEER —REBRENEZR
MBS N R R
EBEZSRNERBETENNER
E AR - AEB I — R EFE
PR HEIRBFE HER B IRA
RAEEMELHE BT

1BERE
WmBAEBREKEERERE
BREYERMEMBTEENRE
—BRr R B — R B SR

2021 2020
20214 202045
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Other income and gains HAMUA R &

Government grants T B 11,094 8,116
Interest income FEUA 1,029 3,409
Investment income KEWA 295 344

Gain on disposal of items of HEME -BEK
property, plant and equipment R EIEE 31 25
Others Hih 135 3,245
12,584 15,139
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’ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFEERERMIEE
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRIEATGEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging: REBENGRRADREF T EABFRUTE
THBER .
2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BT 5E ARETT ARETFIT
Cost of services provided B HRFEBI A 1,132,083 799,632
Impairment of trade receivables B S EWFEIERE 23 7,578 2,605
Impairment of prepayments, FENRIE N RE R
deposits and other receivables HAth R UG IR R (A = 1,198
Impairment of due from FE LR A B Bl SR IR (E
related companies 36 3,655 -
Depreciation of items of property, ME--BERREBEEINE
plant and equipment 13 16,965 7,924
Amortisation of intangible assets W B EH 17 3,678 3,071
Depreciation of right-of-use assets A EEITE 15 3,656 2,878
Lease payments notincluded inthe Rt AREEEFEDN
measurement of lease liabilities HEN® 15 4,077 2,733
Loss on disposal of investment HEREYERE
property 3,577 -
Auditors' remuneration 12 B Em s B 2,300 2,000
Employee benefit expense BERANM: (BREEEK
(including directors’ and chief RETBASHM) :
executive's remuneration):
Wages and salaries TEMNFHE 352,280 269,053
Equity-settled share-based U REEURMD S
expense HEiftHz 2,976 341
Pension scheme contributions BEETEIEIE
and social welfare HEEF 65,194 44,451
FINANCE COSTS MM
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MR ADIIT
2021 2020
20215 20205
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHETFTT
Interest on bank borrowings RITERF]E 9,486 9,709
Interests on lease liabilities HEAGF S 489 246
9,975 9,955
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors'and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,
is as follows:
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EFRESTHAEFHM

Rz EHRAFALBRAIF383(1)
(@)~ (b)~ () R (DF AT (REES
MERIER) RO B2 IRENEEE
EFEh&eTHASHMOT

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHF T

Fees W 356 362
Other emoluments: EHABNE ¢
Salaries, allowances and e R REY RN
benefits in kind 1,617 1,572
Performance-related bonuses* KITHMGTEALr 548 617
Equity-settled share-based expense Migama B UGN 7
Bl 831 244
Pension scheme contributions BEEETEIHRA
and social welfare R 167 148
3,519 2,943

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of
the Group.

During the year, certain directors were granted shares and share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value amount of such
shares and options, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss during the current year is included in the above
directors'and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.

* RRBETHRTESARESEANR
TEANREAERFRBRENNE—]T
DEEEE -

FRETESFARESETER 2R
MmiREA R B BRES B ERRMD
RERE ERE-—IHBRNMBR
KM - BN AFEEm TP
BERRMABRENRAABESR
ALXFRENEERESTHRAS
#rE P9 o
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFEERR Mz

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EZEKMESTHRAEFHMN®@®
REMUNERATION (continued)
Certain of the directors received remuneration from the ETEENNREEZTAREMRAE
subsidiaries now comprise the Group for their appointment as ENMBARMNEEZEAZENWEB LR
directors of these subsidiaries. The remuneration of each of these UK ER 3 B o T SCEB 3R I B A B BA F5 ER
directors as recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiaries RFGCIFZEEEZEEBN -

is set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2021 5E2021F128318 LFE

Salaries,
allowances Performance- Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share-based scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration

i Migmss

2R ®EHE UROHAER  BEZHE
ik BET 1EAL i35 Hieast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥TRT ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARNETRT ARETR

Executive directors: HITES .

- Mr. Li Chunling —-TEBEE - 857 275 524 90 1,746
- Ms. Huang Xuemei -5EEyt = 440 273 307 77 1,097
Non-executive directors: FHTES:

- Mr. Ma Bao Hua —-ERERE - 80 - - - 80
- Mr. Zhu Li > Vb - 80 - - - 80
- Mr. Huang Qing Ping —BETRE - 80 - - - 80
- Mr. Xie Chen Guang —#REE = 80 = = - 80
Independent directors: BuUEx:

- Mr. Mao Ning —FELE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Li You Gen —FRIRESE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Chow Siu Hang —-BkIELE 196 - - = - 196

356 1,617 548 831 167 3,519

1 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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8.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R AR IYEE

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EFhESITHAEFHMN@
REMUNERATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2020 EHZE2020F12831HIEEE
Salaries,
allowances  Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share-based scheme Total
Fees inkind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
HE MRS
K =REH UROHARR  BEEHE
ik EWER TE4L a5 3 i ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT  ARBTT ARWETT ARETT ARBTR ARET:
Executive directors: RWTES:
- Mr. Li Chunling —BEBEE - 856 337 195 89 1477
- Ms. Huang Xuemei -&BEELT - 396 280 49 59 784
Non-executive directors: FHiTES:
- Mr. Ma Bao Hua —BRELE - 80 - - - 80
-Mr. Zhu Li e Vs - 80 - - - 80
- Mr. Huang Qing Ping —-HEFRE - 80 - - - 80
- Mr. Xie Chen Guang —BENEE - 80 - - - 80
Independent directors: BUEE:
- Mr. Mao Ning —FERE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Li You Gen —FRIRESE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Chow Siu Hang —BIkiERE 202 - - - - 202
362 1,572 617 244 148 2,943

Mr. Li Chunling is the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company. There was no arrangement under which
a director or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

FEREER/ERTITEASFENR
TEF - RNERN BEEFARSTH
AEREHXFAEREEAHMBOZHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2020: two directors). Details of those directors'’
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2020: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

9.

InEEHMES

FROoLRsSFHESEEMBES
(2020 : MBEE) - EFHMFE
N EXHWEB WA ATEE KT
ETBRAENREHEENHF =4
(2020%F : =%) BV AFFENGE B0 T ¢

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind ¥ ~ 2B R EYEF] 1,093 1,452
Performance-related bonuses KIFHTEAL 800 679
Equity-settled share-based expense Mgz B UMD A ERR
B 631 -
Pension scheme contributions BEERTBHEHR AT ER
and social welfare 267 230
2,791 2,361

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

MM F NI BENFFEERIFEE
THRAEBNRSHNESHENT !

as follows:
Number of employees
BEAH

2020
20204
Nil to HK$500,000 £ %500,000 7T - -

HKS500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,0017875%1,000,00078 7T 1
HKS$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 ¢ % 1,500,000 7T 2 -
3 3

During the year, certain directors were granted shares and share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value amount of such
shares and options, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss during the current year is included in the above
directors’and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.
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10.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules
and regulations of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands,
the Group's subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
British Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax. The Group's
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong was not liable for income tax
as it did not have any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 25%
on the taxable profits of the Group's PRC subsidiaries for the year.
Some subsidiaries are qualified as small low-profit enterprises and
thus the first RMB1,000,000 (2020: RMB1,000,000) of assessable
profits of these subsidiaries are taxed at 5% (2020: 5%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 10% (2020: 10%) for the
year.

10.
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FRiSiR

AEBBRANERRE QS FMRL
EMERERAEEESA Y REEDN
BAIREREEGMNER -RIEHEE
BENABHEBRESNRA AR
AEERHERENAEBERRES
5F M AL AL BI MY B A B BB AN A PR
B - NEBREAEMA LN EBA
BB BEBINFTSR YRR Z AT R E
E2021F12B3 1 HIEFEETERE A
EENTAERREF

hE 1 2 PSR L % A &£ E 59 T B Bt
BATRERERER BN LUIRE25%
SHEE B - ETHWB AT WBTE S /A
BAECE AMZENBARNZE
MEZRREF FPE AR®1,000,0005T
(20204F : AR#&1,000,0007T) J53%5%
(20204 : 5%) BIRRZEEFR > MR T~ IE
SRAE A B #210% (20204 1 10%) B9

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT

Current tax: BPRAFRIE -
PRC corporate income tax RE (PRSI 38,661 29,375
Deferred tax IRIERRIE (4,407) (771)
Total tax charge for the year FRMRIEST H4EER 34,254 28,604
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10.

11.

INCOME TAX (continued)

10.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax
expense at the effective income tax rate for each reporting yearis as

FRiF% (@

REREFE > xRF) REKER DM E
ANEEMAERZREZEERK
S HI BRI Al E A B A Y PR S AR B 57 22
RERMEREIAENMERNATH

follows: BRUE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBFT
Profit before tax PR AT R 129,052 98,819
At the statutory income tax rate (25%) ARSI ZE(25%) 518 32,263 24,704
Lower tax rate for specific companies 75 R F R AT E A B A ARRY
enacted by local authorities BIRIRIE (1,125) (536)
Adjustments in respect of current tax BRIBERBRIERIE A
of previous periods (11) -
Profits and losses attributable to BETPERBMENEIE
joint ventures and associates 1hE ) R 518 (95) -
Expenses not deductible for tax ENGIE e 1,337 1,201
Deductible temporary differences REEDH AN R =2
not recognised 38 -
Withholding taxes on distributable profits ~ FEIMIE A B & 2/&F B
of the subsidiaries in the PRC FENHR 676 1,062
Tax losses not recognised RIESDHVIRIERT 18 1,17 2,173
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAEEERREXGENIRIE 34,254 28,604
DIVIDENDS 1. k8
2021 2020
20215 20205
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT
Proposed final - HKD126 cents EERIA-S10RE BRI 267U
(2020: HKD92 cents) per (20204 : 923840
10 ordinary shares 27,431 20,670

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BRFIZERGSHEAEBLER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT B
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based SREABANEEDHERES A&
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of BRADFAEABLERNGEN RF
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of NE&17267,152,00008 (20204 :
267,152,000 (2020: 267,152,000). 267,152 OOOHy)jt % 0 #E FE 9 B Et
Ho
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share HRERTENERESMEISR
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2021 (2020: BEXRBANTEAREBEEFER HILE
Nil) in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share option B EMBEEHE2021F12831H L5
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per E27NEREABFNCHEIFLAR
share amounts presented. (20204 : #®) ©
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based SREARBERATBENRUTIER
on: FHE
2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARETT

Earnings gl
Profit attributable to ordinary equity SESRERRAERN
holders of the parent used in the basic BRAEBEEGRFAA
earnings per share calculation FE(E & A 88,694 67,286
Number of shares
i &E
2020
20204
Shares & 17
Weighted average number of ordinary STEESREARBAERAN
shares in issue during the year used in FAEETEBERINE
the basic earnings per share calculation FHE 267,152,000 267,152,000

BRI SEIRFEBR AT 159
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME -BERSZME

Office
equipment,
electronic
devices and Leasehold  Construction
Buildings  otherdevices  improvement in progress

WAE
i
BTHE
B  REMEE  AARE  ERIR @t
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

i3 AEBTT ARETR ARETz ARBFT ARBTR

31 December 2021 20215128318
At 1 January 2021: R201NFIB18
Cost mA 2,304 31,020 15,035 = 48,359
Accumulated depreciation and RETERAE
impairment (207) (15,605) (8,744) = (24,556)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,097 15,415 6,291 - 23,803

At1January 2021, netof accumulated 1220211818

depreciation and impairment IREHTERAE 2,097 15,415 6,291 - 23,803
Additions FE - 1,121 12,214 32,460 68,401
Disposals HE = (66) S S (66)
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB AR 34 - 25 - - 25
Depreciation provided ERTERE
during the year 6 (108) (11,497) (5,360) - (16,965)
At31 December 2021, net of R021E
accumulated depreciation 128318
NRBHTERAE 1,989 27,604 13,145 32,460 75,198
At31 December 2021: 120214
128318 :
Cost Rk 2,304 53,816 27,29 32,460 115,829
Accumulated depreciation and RETERAE
impairment (315) (26,212) (14,104) = (40,631)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,989 21,604 13,145 32,460 75,198

1 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. % -BERSZE @
Office
equipment,
electronic
devices and Leasehold
Buildings other devices  improvements Total
WA=
REBTRE
BF RHEMES HERE Bt
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
5t ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBFTT
31 December 2020 2020128315
At1January 2020: 20201 A18 ¢
Cost A 2,304 21,132 10,573 34,009
Accumulated depreciation and REtNERAE
impairment (20) (9,849) (5,514) (15,383)
Net carrying amount SREFE 2,284 11,283 5,059 18,626

At1January 2020, net of accumulated 720201818

depreciation and impairment MNRRFHTERRE 2,284 11,283 5,059 18,626
Additions RE - 7925 4191 12,116
Disposals HE - (218) (212) (430)
Acquisition of a subsidiary B A B 3,855 866 483 5,204
Transfer to investment properties BRELEYE 14 (3,789) - - (3,789)
Depreciation provided FRITERRE
during the year b (253) (4,441) (3,230) (7,924)
At 31 December 2020, net of 12020
accumulated depreciation 12R318°
MR RHTERAE 2,097 15415 6,291 23,803
At31 December 2020: 1420204
128318 :
Cost A 2,304 31,020 15,035 48,359
Accumulated depreciation and RetiTERAE
impairment (207) (15,605) (8,744) (24,556)
Net carrying amount REEE 2,097 15,415 6,291 23,803
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. EYE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
P 5T AR®BTT ARBFT
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1BZREE 29,919 25,142
Additions RE 10,557 -
Disposals HE (8,531) -
Transfer from owner-occupied KBEEMEER
properties 13 = 3,789
Net gain from a fair value RABERENF WG
adjustment 1,026 988
Carrying amount at 31 December P12B31HZ EREE 32,97 29,919

The Group's investment properties consist of eight commercial
properties and three residential properties in China, and were
revalued on 31 December 2021 based on valuations performed by
Jiangsu Jiarui Cheng Asset Appraisal & Land Real Estate Appraisal
& Surveying and Mapping Consulting Co. LTD and Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at RMB32,971,000. The Group's
chief financial officer decides, after approval from the board of
directors of the Company, to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group's properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group's chief financial officer has discussions with the valuer
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 15 to the financial statements.

There were no investment properties pledged as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

14.

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

REWE @
NREERES

TERAREAEBREYEQAEES
BE®R:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using

12021512B31 B RAABENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
i EDN EX
TER T AHZR FaHR
R BARE BARE
(E—4) E=H (FE=4%) Hst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement for BEMEARBENE
Commercial properties FEME - = 20,466 20,466
Residential properties FEYE - - 12,505 12,505
= = 32,91 32,97
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using
R2020F 12BN BRAABESE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level3) Total
N E-PN BEX
TEETS GIEE OBk
RE BARE BAHE
E—H (B (E=WR) w5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement for KEMANEENE
Commercial properties mEME - - 8,576 8,576
Residential properties FEYE - - 21,343 21,343
- - 29,919 29,919

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2020: Nil).

RER F—REFE_HKBRBELR
BEENER  FESEAREHE=
4% (20204 : 4®) o

RN ERIBAEIRAE)
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation techniques
EETR

Significant unobservable inputs

EATABRRBAE

14. REYE @)

AREERER @

TXAKREMEGEEBOGEERN
REBHAEME:

Range or weighted average
HEHMETIIH
2021 2020

20214 20205

Commercial properties Income capitalisation method Estimated rental value RMBA48-60 RMBA45-54

N _ . (per sg.m. and per month)
EESYES WABRIES % E%ﬁﬁ‘é?é (BT ARKREAR) ARBBZ0T  ARBISESLT
Capitalisation rate 1% 6%-7%
Commercial properties Comparison method Estimated unit price RMB23,600 RMB22,400
R _(RMB per sg.m) . ~-208,000 ~=210,000
B s HEGER BTFRARE)  ARMIH0E  AREDLOE
208,00075 210,0007%
Commercial properties Income capitalisation method Estimated rental value RMB108 N/A

. (persg.mand per month) o )
EESYES WABRIES % Eéﬁﬁ‘é?é (BFHRREAR) AR08 &R
Capitalisation rate 6.75% N/A
BAEE TER
Residential properties Income capitalisation method Estimated rental value RMB48-60 RMB43-61
‘ ) . (persg.m. and per month) ‘ )
EEME WABRIES & Eéﬁﬂ‘é?é (EFHAREAR) AREUBZENT ARKELEST
[Japitalisl_ation rate 7% 6%-7%
SENIES

Residential properties Comparison method Estimated unit price RMB30,094 RMB30,616
. _(RMB per sg.m) -32,672
g bt (HEOER (BTARARE)  ARE00%T ARBSIEE
67278

The fair value of commercial properties and residential properties
are determined by the income capitalisation method by taking
into account the net rental income of the properties derived from
the existing leases and/or achievable in the existing market with
due allowance for the reversionary income potential of the leases,
which have been then capitalised to determine the fair value at an
appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate, reference has
also been made to the comparable sales transactions as available in
the relevant market.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.

The fair value of the residential properties and commercial
properties are determined by using the comparison method, and
with reference to sales transactions as available in the relevant
market, comparable properties in close proximity have been
selected and adjustments have been made to account for the
difference in factors such as location and property size.

The higher the estimated unit price, the higher the fair value of the
investment properties is.

1 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

BEVPERETWERABEUAMA
BERpZEE HRERERARE
TR,/ HEREHHB LI BRNY
EETW AP LEEEZREEND]
BB ] RBFEHERL  LUBE
ENBEATCXEEARBE -BR2E
HATHISF A HEBRNEERS -

st ENEEE M Ch) B8
CEYERN R ABERBREEM (RL) ©
B-EAMERNEEEM L) BB

%ﬁz)ﬁﬁ%%ﬂ’ﬂ@fﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬂ‘ (18
M) o

TEMERBEMNENRIABELE
RALLBCEEE  LESERMHHARF
WIHER 7 BEZMANIELRY
i}ﬁi}ﬁﬂjﬁ%&%%ﬁ%%%ﬁ@%ﬁ

G BAERAS  REVEN L AE

BERS-



15. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases office buildings and fitness equipment. The lease
terms are normally two years to four years. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group.

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

15.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI s
HE
TEBEAEAREA
FEBHENAETRERBETLRE T

B —BAMEENE - —RIFR T
FEBARERTSEBUIINERERE
%H%H‘é‘:ﬁéfﬁ

() fEREEE

RER AEBEREZREE
BEREHINT

2020

20204

RMB'000

ARBF T

Carrying amount at 1 January P1B1BEZEREE 1,459 4,337
Additions NE 7,251 -
Depreciation charge TEER (3,656) (2,878)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12B31HZREE 5,054 1,459

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

(b) HEHKE

RER HEARREHKREE
LI

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT
Carrying amount at 1 January PRIATEZEREE 1,507 15,935
New leases MEE 14,829 -
Accretion of interest FRREEH EE N
recognised during the year 489 246
Payments S AIRIA (201) (3,916)
Transferred to other payables EREEMERIE = (10,758)
Carrying amount at 31 December P12B31HZEREE 16,624 1,507
Analysed into: DA
Current portion BNHEAER 6,984 1,469
Non-current portion FERNERER 73 9,640 38
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 39 HESENIBEP IR HR
to the financial statements. RMTFE3IHEE ©
The Group has applied the practical expedient to all eligible FEBRERERERARHNY
rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases of certain FRAE & EWRIEE R R ERERE
plant and equipment during the year. BAEEEETHRE K&RHE-
The Group leases certain properties from third party on KEBZHENENEEHAER
fixed periods covering eight years, of which held for rental BE=pHEEETYWE HPFE
yields and not occupied by the Group are recognised as MEBEAEBEFANYENW
investment properties (note 14). Lease liabilities represent mEREDDBREME (F5E14) ©
the corresponding liabilities of the leased assets. HERREEHEEENHEESR
/E\ o
R A ERFBARAR

2021 FERS

165



‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

15. LEASES (continued) 15. HHE @
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEEERABEAN @)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) FATHENIERMRAFEIEE SN
leases are as follows: T

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®BFT

Interests on lease liabilities HEAaENE 489 246
Depreciation charge of FRAREETERS
right-of-use assets 3,656 2,878
Expense relating to short-term B E R REEEERR
leases and low-value assets Rz Gt ASHE A
(included in cost of sales) 4,077 2,733
Total amount recognised in MBS IE AR R
profit or loss 8,222 5,857
The Group as a lessor FEBEEAHEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting RELSEHELZH AEBRFEEBE
of eight commercial properties and three residential properties in BANEEEMER=ETEYEMAR
China under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases HEEYZE (WE14) - FHEKRREERE
generally require the tenants to pay guarantee deposits and provide EXRAAZIMNERES URESR
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing NS ERCHARES AERNRF
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during AR EEW AR AREL46,0007T
the year was RMB446,000 (2020: RMB270,000). (2020%F : AR#270,0007T) ©
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable FR2021F12831H > iRIFEFE B ROl
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating SR AEER R RAABE R
leases with its tenants are as follows: WIRBEEMRUOT :

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AEBEEFT

Within one year R1ERA 2,828 646
After one year but within two years RIFBEMER 2,738 767
After two years but within three years RMFEEBRIEA 2,396 485
After three years but within four years R3FBRLERN 2,300 233
After four years but within five years PRLFEBREERN 2,103 -
After five years NG 3,855 -

16,220 2,131

1 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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16. GOODWILL 16. BHE
RMB'000
ARBTFT
At 1 January 2020 12202051 A1H
Net carrying amount REFE -
Costat 1 January 2020, net of 1220201 B1ERI A »
accumulated impairment MNERRHREE -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RENE AT 26,179
Impairment during the year FRRE -
At 31 December 2020 5220205%12H31H 26,179
At 31 December 2020 11202012H31H
Cost D% 26,179
Accumulated impairment REHRE -
Net carrying amount REFE 26,179
Costat 1 January 2021, net of 120211 B1BR A -
accumulated impairment NERRHEE 26,179
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) WEE—RENEAS (EE34) 1,232
Cost and net carrying amount at 1220214128318/
31 December 2021 PR R BRE R B 27,411
At 1 December 2021: §2021412818 -
Cost D% 27,41
Accumulated impairment REtEE =
Net carrying amount REFE 27,61
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16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations was allocated
to the following two cash-generating units ("CGUs") for the
impairment testing. The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have
been determined based on a value-in-used calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period prepared by management.

Goodwill

Principal business

G

16.

growth rate

FHRRE

HE @
B2 rRER =
EBEZCHERSHNEERRER
AMENEENTMEREEEEQ
(MREELEM) ZEREELE
LB AT U (0] 5 B8 5 AR 15 B 12 JE AR R AY5
FHYBRE VAR RERANE
REBEtEEE-

Annual
revenue Discount

rate

Terminal
growth rate

KA
HE=E

e
BT

2021
20214
MRECIER Property management
SES§i 26,179 5~10% 2.5% 17.00%
R 22 SR Property management
MEEIR 1,232 2~15% 2.5% 13.00%
2020
2020%
MRECIER Property management
MEEE 26,179 5~10% 3% 21.98%

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of
the above-mentioned CGUs. The following describes each key
assumption on which management had based its cash flow
projections of the CGUs to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Discount rate - The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Annual revenue growth rate - The predicted revenue growth rate of
the CGUs for the five years subsequent to the date of assessment is
one of the assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations.

Terminal growth rate - The terminal growth rate was estimated to
be 2.5% which has taken into consideration the prevailing industry
practice.

The management of the Group believes that any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions of the value-in-use
calculation would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the
recoverable amount of the CGUs.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the management of the Group
determined that no impairment of goodwill should be recognised
above CGUs.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BILEE
Customer
Software  relationships Total
it EFR% st
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARBTT AR®BTT AR®BTT
31 December 2021 2021512831
Costat1January 2021, netof 1202118 1HE
accumulated amortisation B bR R 5HE 80 25,897 25,977
Additions hE 100 - 100
Amortisation provided FRBHEEE
during the year 6 (64) (3,614) (3,678)
At 31 December 2021 122021412831 116 22,283 22,399
At31 December 2021: 20215128318 ¢
Cost A 364 28,908 29,272
Accumulated amortisation RHE Y (248) (6,625) (6,873)
Net carrying amount REFE 116 22,283 22,399
31 December 2020 2020512H31H
At 1 January 2020: 1R202061818 ¢
Cost A 254 - 254
Accumulated amortisation Rt (124) - (124)
Net carrying amount REFE 130 - 130
Costat1January 2020, netof  F22020F181HH
accumulated amortisation B MR R 5 130 - 130
Additions "E 10 - 10
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—REHE A - 28,908 28,908
Amortisation provided FREEEE
during the year 6 (60) (3,011) (3,071)
At 31 December 2020 120205128311 80 25,897 25,977
At 31 December 2020 and 20205128318 K&
at 1 January 2021: K201 818 ©
Cost %N 264 28,908 29172
Accumulated amortisation Rt (184) (3,011) (3,195)
Net carrying amount REVEE 80 25,897 25,977
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18. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

18. MEHEATNIKRE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARBEFT

Share of net assets EIEEEFE

3,855 2,965

The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with associates
are disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

(a) Particulars of the Group's associates

Place and year of

Name of company registration

AELE RS R (D

AEFRABKERNENEZEUERER
FEAS TRIRAE BRI U B ¥R AR Y 53 64 88 o

(a) HEEBEATMFE

IHRZRERBERAT Nanjing, PRC
2019
HERER
20194

A RIR R ER AR ERAR Nanjing, PRC
2021
PRI R
20214

EREEVMERBEREELR Nanjing, PRC
2021
FEIRR
20214

ARIRRIL AMERBERAE Nanjing, PRC
2021
HERER
20214

RINEEEEZRBEBERAT Taizhou, PRC
2021
FRE 2R N
20214

The Group's shareholdings in the associates comprise equity
shares held through two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company.

1 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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Percentage of
ownership
Registered interest
capital attributable
RMB'000 to the Group  Principal activities
HMEA  AEEEE
ARBTT BEEEZESL FEEH
10,000 34%  Security services
R
5,000 40%  Life services
£ER
500 30%  Property services
MR
2,000 35%  Property services
LUES 6]
10,200 49%  Property services
MERT

FEERBEATNREREE
BRARSMEEENB AR
BzrEmRG -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESIRERMEE 4

18. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. REEATNKE @
(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial (b) TRAAXEFLIEERBE
information of the Group's associates that are not KRV B 22 B B9 B 75 5 HEE
individually material: £

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ABEF T

Share of the associates’ (loss)/ FRELBREATN

profits for the year (&518) imF) (560) 86
Share of the associates' total L AT 2E (B8

comprehensive (loss)/income W e AR ZE (560) 86
Aggregate carrying amount of REB RS AT

the Group's investment in the KREREERLE

assaociates 3,855 2,965

19. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

o
.4
op
i
2

ENE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHF T

Share of net assets MEBEFE 4,273 2,870
The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with joint AEBHAGECENEZERIER
ventures are disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements. I FRIBAS SR I B3R R M 5364 & ©
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19. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. REEEENKRE @
(a) Particulars of the Group's joint ventures (a) FEEWSEEEFRE
Percentage of
ownership
Registered interest
Place and year of capital attributable  Principal
Name of company registration RMB'000 to the Group  activities
SE AR IZEY N A ERE(LRY
NGIE:L B R 15 ARETT BAEREZESL TEER
BN RIRAHMERB AR LS Suzhou, PRC 12,880 49%  Property services
2020
R B &R N S
20204
M RRI IR X ERFBE R AT Nanjing, PRC 5,000 51%  Property services
2020
HEIRE R ESE
20204
MR ERBERAF Nanjing, PRC 20,000 60%  Property services
2020
HEIRER MRS
20205
mEIRIEREERBER AT Nanjing, PRC 10,000 30%  Life services
2021
HEIRER HIEIR
20214
The Group's shareholdings in all the joint ventures comprise KEBRFABESERENRE
equity shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the EEBRARTAZ2ENBRATF
Company. B ERRG -
Above companies are accounted for as joint ventures of the LRRABITUARERSEREA
Group because neither the Group nor the counterparty has RO HERAEENNFHE
the right to variable returns from its involvement with these BAZ2EZSEARNEEMEE
companies. Both the shareholders do not have the ability to FAHEDEO - W E 2B R
affect the returns through their power over these companies. REBENBEBENZEATN
HEF R BRI -

(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial (b) TREAMAERSE 1 E(EH
information of the Group's joint ventures that are not ms L ARERNERMFE
individually material: #}

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARET T

Share of the joint ventures' profits DMEEERENFERN G

for the year 1,403 200
Share of the joint ventures' total MEEERESHENHEEE

comprehensive income 1,403 200
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEERGELEN

Group's investments in the joint KREZIREMRE

ventures 4,273 2,870

1 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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20. DEFERRED TAX 20. RIEFRIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FRRERBEERBEEEFNT !

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets IRIERIBEE

Impairment
provision for Unpaid
financial employee Unpaid Lease
assets benefits  financial cost liabilities Total

SREE

HERE AOESHN KEMBHE HEAR @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT AREBTR  ARBTn  ARETT  ARETR

At1 January 2020 #2020€1818 3,43 2,115 1,187 - 6,55
Deferred tax credited/ (charged) to FERPETRTA/ (AR 8

profit or loss during the year RIER 18 864 (215) (1,187) - (538)
At31 December 2020 and 120205

1 January 2021 128318

WIEIE18 4,107 1,900 - - 6,007

Deferred tax credited to profit or FREABRELRIE

loss during the year 2,997 677 - 1,008 4,682
At 31 December 2021 120214128318 7,104 2,571 - 1,008 10,689
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20. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 20. RIEFRIA (@)
Deferred tax liabilities IREMRIEAE

Fair value
Fair value adjustments
Revaluation change in assets from
of investment Withholding investment  acquisitionof  Right-of- use
properties taxes properties a subsidiary assets Total

RENE WEWBLTA

EfEENE BN OARESH ELAREEZ  GREEE i3t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ABBTR ~ ARETR  ABETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At T January 2020 P00E1B1H 1,659 1,005 - - - 2664
Deferred tax chargedto profitor R EFINRH
loss during the year BIERE - 1,062 247 - - 1309
Acquisition of a subsidiary AR AR - - - 6,547 - 6,547
At31 December 2020 and 120205
1 January 2021 128318k
WIEAIR 1,659 2,067 1 6547 - 10,520

Deferred tax charged/ (credited) ~ ERRERINR/ G A)

to profit or loss during the HEILIRE

year - 676 (114) (904) 617 275
Deferred tax credited to other SAEMEEREN

comprehensive income BIERE (314) - - - - (314)
At31 December 2021 RNE

128318 1365 2743 133 5,643 617 10,481

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and MENNENMS > & TIRIEFMBSREE
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position. REBEERMBERRETIRE - BN E
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the BIMKRE N AEBIELESRAER
Group for financial reporting purposes: 2T -

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEBEETFT

Net deferred tax assets recognised inthe  FRE B FER R EREEH

consolidated statement of financial R TEE P EE
position 10,072 6,007

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in RS IO R FESRY
the consolidated statement of financial RERIEE EFEE
position 9,864 10,520

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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20. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

21.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
Chinain respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax amounting to RMB2,743,000
(2020: RMB2,067,000) has been recognised for withholding taxes.
Itis probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future.

The Group had unutilised tax losses arising in the PRC of
approximately RMB26,268,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB23,440,000), that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the entities in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

20.

21.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

EIEFRIA (@)

RIEFPEECEMRERZE RHEARMA
T BERELERINBRESE T
RIPE B U 10%AIFEI0 RIS - 2R E
2008 FE1B1BEMLEAR2007F
1283 1HBEENRF] o {5 E Py ith
IR EEMRR AR LR
B4 AR ARBEENR X KERDY
BRHREA10% AL ZEB B Z
EERERMA MBS H2008
FE1RATHEEENEFFDIKBERE
ANTAEIR o

202112831 H  RIERIBELEEA
E12,743,0007T (20205 : AR
2,067,0007t) EFLTENRES - IR Al T8
RAK > ZEH BB O eIk HERS

B

B2021FE12B3 1B A&EEELE B
FENRBAREEENA AR
1%26,268,0007T (20205 1 AR
23,440,0007T) ° BEI1ESFEREEE > 7]
HARBINESSBSENBRRKRNE
FEH AR BEREERFRE B
HRISHEENNE LT B3 A IS
MERM GF Lo ANRIEE B
?é%ﬁm%t@%éﬂéﬁﬁ%&@wﬁﬁ%

BRAAREEFABoNERMEE

Other unlisted investments, at fair value

HiIE EHRE RO EE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
- 5,112

The above unlisted investments were wealth management
products issued by security companies in Mainland China. They
were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.

LFHIEEHREDPEAMBERD
BETHNEMER AEGNREME
WIFERBSINARERFE > W EHMIFE
TREWRBFDESBANEBES A
BmEREE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PATSERARMTEE

22. INVENTORIES 22. 76

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
Goods and consumables ERXERESR 2,678 3,054
Construction cost BEA 869 1,849
3,547 4,903

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. B FEWFRIA
2021 2020
20214 2020£
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT
Trade receivables B 5 eI 253,051 142,272
Impairment AE (22,014) (14,436)
231,037 127,836

B2 RWARIERBREYEEERE
RIBERT - AEB TR E Z IR
FTERFEERN - AEBBRERME
W IR R BE B W R A 5 B
HMPILIBEREEE AR - BHERRH
SREEETHER ISAHERHN
EEREEZ —R-BENRU LA RE
EENESRERBRAAXEFTRER
B At EsEERNEERR-
B 5 BUWRIRL A5 E o

Trade receivables arise from the provision of property management
services and value-added services. The Group's trading terms with
its customers are mainly on credit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management and credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed once a month. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

1 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the date of revenue recognition and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BrFEERRMIsE 4

B 7 UL IE (@)

PERSHR R mER B AT ENE
ZRURIRIFRE R B A ERE D7
LI

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT

Within 1 year R1ER 215,156 121,065
Over 1 year and within 2 years BEIERI2ER 11,819 5,875
Over 2 years and within 3 years HBIB2FE R 3ER 3,494 896
Over 3 years B3 E 568 -

231,037 127,836

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B REHRENHREGRERNES
LI

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHF T

At the beginning of the year R4 14,436 11,831
Impairment losses AERE 7,578 2,605
At the end of the year RERXR 22,014 14,436

An impairment analysis was performed at each reporting date,
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates were based on the aging of trade receivables for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns.
The calculation reflected the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that was available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables were written off if they are not considered
recoverable by the Group and are not subject to enforcement
activity.

REBEAREREEERETRE
DT UStERBEERE -BHEXE
REFHEUGEERANZEEF D5
HEEZEUGRIARREET - ARG
ERRAIBEMIRER S BREBER
BREAMABABEEMA BEER TR
REERNBRANFAEEERA X
Blle—RME  WAEEISEZE
W RRIE AN T U [B] B 3 £ 58 ) TR E) 0
Rl & 7 FE WA T LU 85 o
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BAESERR M

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. B5EKRFRIE (@)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on UTHEIAEEERBEEEBSHEN
the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: B RWRENEERRER
31 December 2021 2021%12831H

Over Over
Within 1yearand 2yearsand Over
lyear  within2years  within3years 3years

el fa2 iR
RER Rit2ER RI3ER 3EYNE

Expected credit loss rate BHEEREX 4£.22% 33.80% 53.49% 81.36%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REEE ARETT 224,637 17,854 7,512 3,048 253,051
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHREERE ARETT) 9,481 6,035 4,018 2,480 22,014
31 December 2020 2020512831H
QOver Qver
Within 1yearand 2yearsand QOver
Tyear  within2years  within3years 3years Total
BidE HBiEE
RIER i 2ER RH3ER 3EMLE 5t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEREX 5.07% 41.56% 68.92% 100.00%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REAE ARETT 127,527 10,054 2,885 1,806 142,272
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEERE ARETD) 6,462 4,179 1,989 1,806 14,436

1 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FANRIERERHEMEWKRIE
RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT
Prepayments on behalf of REEZRARAEEMERS
customers to utility suppliers F AR RIE 1,663 3,786
Other prepayments HMIBEIE 7,017 1,526
Deposits & 35,264 31,377
Advance to employees BET M 8,213 18,982
Other tax recoverable HeJ W EIFR 18 698 216
Other receivables Hih U rIE 26,857 8,835
Impairment allowance BEEHE (2,998) (2,998)
76,714 61,724

Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

Expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The loss
rate applied as at 31 December 2021 was 4.2% (2020: 5.0%).

HABWRIA R BIEE - A st R R EE
B -

A EEERLEARBAERILLERE
R2BAEENBEREELEMmEsTe
65 38 ZR 4K o B8 DL R IR T8 B oK ZR AR
AREBITER (0B ) 52021412831
B ERANEELEEAL2% (20204 :
5.0%) °
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 25. RERREEBYRBIEHRER

DEPOSITS

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETT ARETT
Cash and bank balances RE MIRTTAERR 539,475 566,915
Less: Pledged deposits L BIRIRER (1,344) -
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREEEY) 538,131 566,915
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents REKRIREEHEY
Denominated in RMB MAR®EHE 535,965 566,718
Denominated in HKD LA TTEHE 2,166 197
538,131 566,915

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi amounted to RMB535,965,000
(2020: RMB566,718,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021

REBEEHA MARBRBSEZKRE
EREMRBETEGRAARBEARE
535,965,0007C (20204 1 AR
566,718,0007T) c AA] BT A H At
S M 5 FP B o | B S BE B IR AR
KRiEE -EERNESERE  ~EH
ABEEENEETIHEEFNIRITHE
AREBRBKABEMEE

FHRRTHREE RS HRTERT
R KRG B - RITEFRERNEERYT
BE A REHNRT - RERRE
FEYPVREEREAANBEES



26. TRADE PAYABLES

27.

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. B FE(IRIA

BATS R AR IYEE

REHSHER > REZEARFENE
N RIANIRE DATWNT

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETT AREFTT
Within 1 year R1ER 40,825 23,370
Over 1 year HBiEeE 3,689 833
44,514 24,203
The trade payables are interest-free and are normally settled on BZERARERTHE —REEHS
terms of 10 to 15 days. 10E15H -
OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 27. HMMEGRRIE EWiRE R Est
ACCRUALS EH
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT
Receipts on behalf of community MEATEARREEER,
residents for common areas R 21,844 18,893
Receipts on behalf of community MABFERRTEER
residents for utilities e 78,016 63,820
Deposits received BugE 40,511 36,944
Advances from employees BT 8 8,689 4,679
Other tax payables HthEiR1E 18,803 13,783
Payroll and welfare payable TERESRER 77,360 55,619
Others Hith 1,779 923
247,002 194,661

Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand. The
fair values of other payables at the end of the reporting period

approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts. BEEHEREERS -

HMEN AR BRI IZEREE -
RESHER HtEARENARE
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28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28. 549817/
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBETTT
Contract liabilities EHNER 295,835 233,982
The Group receives payments from customers based on billing AEERYEHESHNREINGEE
schedules as established in the property management contracts. FFEREE L IWE MR - RUBBIRE
Payments are usually received in advance of the performance BR(EEAMESERY) RKEAEL
under the contracts which are mainly for property management U EY o
services.
The expected timing of recognition of revenue at the end of the UTFAREREARED WD ATES
reporting period is as follows: BFfE -
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
Within one year RER 294,336 233,120
More than one year Ba1F 1,499 862
29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 29. sHRIRITER
2021 2020
20215 20205
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BEAR BIEA%
(%) HBE ARETR® (%) HE ARKTR
Current BNEA
Bank loans - secured RITER—FBER 4.20-4.35 2022 209,000 4.35 2021 280,000

1 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued)  29. 5t 2 IRITERR @
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BFT ARBFT

Analysed into: PaLiiv I

Repayable within one year FER—FEANEERE 209,000 280,000

20214 K%2020512831H » ~EBE R
TEEBUTYIEEFEFRRER

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's bank borrowings
were secured or pledged by:

31 December

12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BFT AREFTT
Bank loans RITEM
- Secured by Mr. Huang Qing Ping, —HAREERKREEETEE
controlling shareholder of the FiRptEEEKR BB RA
Company and SRIg M EE B RN B 8] (—FEBEREERN
FR/A B, a company controlled by Mr. NCINE
Huang 122,000 70,000
- Secured by Mr. Huang Qing Ping, Rt —H=EFFISLE Bt E
EEERMBIRAE and pledged by EBRMDBERABER
the Group's right of receipt of property e LA 5 B B B W ER
management fee of certain properties REBPIERETYWEN
managed by the Group in future MEBIEBRNEREER 50,000 50,000
- Secured by Mr. Huang Qing Pingand his ~ —H&AFoEREZFLiuYi
wife, LiuYi, SR E £ B 5 B IR IRt EEERNDBRAR
‘AT and pledged by the Group's right R RS E BB UEL
of receipt of property management HAEEFREERET
fee of certain properties managed by MENYEEIE BT
the Group in future EER 35,000 50,000
- Secured by Mr. Huang Qing Pingand his ~ —H&AFHEREZFLiuYi
wife, Liu Yi and iR{th EE B RN A IRt EEERNDBRAR
FRAE) R - 110,000
- Secured by Mr. Shen Chun Lei, a director ~ —FShen Chun Leift 4
of the company's a subsidiary (ERBIMB AT ER) #IR 2,000 -
209,000 280,000

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values
of interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were short-
term, and made between the Group and independent third-party
financial institutions based on prevailing market interest rates.

AT EERE BTG 5t BIRITEMRE
MHARBEAEKREERE T2H
ReEEMEER kB rERRFIL
FZDEMBBREFITHEANEE
$o
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

31.

30. fg7s

2021 2020
20214 2020&
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET TFAET
Authorised: EE -
2,000,000,000 (2020: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,0000% (20204 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 2,000,000,0004%)
SR0.01BTHEER 20,000 20,000
2020
2020%
RMB'000
AR®BTT
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER :
267,152,000 (2020: 267,152,000) 267,152,0005% (20204 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 267,152,0000%)
FRE0.01B TR EAR 2,387 2,387

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who have contributed to the Group and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company's directors
and other employees of the Group. There is no general requirement
on the minimum period for which granted option must be held or
the performance targets which must be achieved before granted
option can be exercised, under the terms of the Scheme. The
Scheme became effective on 6 January 2021 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 3 years from that
date.

The maximum number of shares may be issued pursuant to the
exercise of all share options which may be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes in aggregate, not
exceeding 2% (equivalent to 5,343,040 shares) of the total number
of shares in issue upon the adoption. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue for the time being. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders'
approvalin a general meeting.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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31.

BT

EATEBEE—IBEKRESTS (Tt
2 EERARERSEHERZS
BB A TIRESEI AR WS E
2EANLTAFRASATBE Z:TE
HNEBERSEATOERAATEER
AEENEHMEE - HEABNRBEREYE
EBREDTITEMEFEEREER
RGN BERNE TRERZ
Z—MRIRTE - ZFHEIN2021FE1B6HE
Mo BRIERBITHEEEEST  TRIE B
Z AR ER N -

5

MR L 5T 8 R (0] Ho A BB B 51 8 7J
FERHZ A BREEIT M AL
TZzERERNHBE ST FRBBERM
HERR BT RO BERI2% HBER
5,343,0408 B 17) o FE(RI 218 8BRS
REBRENDZFINSGERS
BATHTHRMDLERERERE %
TERRBRMDEN% o EfE— T HEH
BEZELRNEREANRRAE L
BISRE#



31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates
under the Option or any other share option schemes of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HKS5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders'
approvalin advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HKS1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after grant date and ends on a date which is not later than five years
from the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board,
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business day;
and (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders' meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

31.
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REBRENEATREEDHEL
AMNEAEMEBERESS  AEAE
EAREERBITHRAENETERETY
REZBZHMBARDEMBRE 9
REBUIFFATESFAHMIME LI
W ERI2ER BB ARE EEZR
BR B8 1L IR 1T B 5 B ) AR S A A B
BARHBEABREBBELFRN
R B E TR BY0.1%IAEE (%
AABRMIEE L BIANERSE) B
BSEBET MANSREIRRREAR
G LEFRSAMAER HRFE

REBRENZEQA N EL A ES
HATEARASIMLGENEBEGHA
TUR RN - PRIX L BB IR IERV T HR R
HEFgET WNIRHBMAEAG
RIENEREREZQ B BPESSF/
HEARZEtEIZIAE UREERE)
#1bo

BRENTEERESET HHAR
BRUTEENRSE () RHBERE
B (RREXR) RBMXAESERE
RETIRBYBRAD W TE ;5 K (i) BERH
BRI A EE XA NKME A RE
i‘%g%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂ%ﬁqﬁ’:ﬂ&ﬁﬂ% 5 R (iii) B 15
[EfIEK

BT ARETRHAARRREHRN
RERNE LIRFEREF] -

UTRERFEBETNERTEZEBR
&

Average Number of
exercise price options
BRTH R tE
1IEE %8
HKD per share ‘000
BT T15
At 1 January 2021 20211 A1H NA
B -
Granted during the year FREH 4.722 1,600
At 31 December 2021 120214128318 4.722 1,600

No share options were exercised during 2021 (2020: Nil).

PR20215  BIEBREEITE (2020
Fi8|)o
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RERRHESTE @

TXEIFRERITERBERENTT
EERATES

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the year are as follows:

Exercise price
per share
BRITEE
HKD

AT

31 December 2021 Number of options

Exercise period

2021F12A31A R EHRE 171EHA

1,600,000 4.722 2021/7/2~2026/5/18

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
RMB2,618,000 (RMB1.637 each) (2020:Nil),which was recognised
as a share option expense during the year ended 31 December
2021.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
year was estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

201F7H2HE
20265%5818H

ERNERBERENAABEAAR
#2,618,0007c (B ARHE1.6375%)
(20204F : &%) » REE2021512831
BIEEERAABRERS -

FARHUREEENEREZ AR
BEDREHARRA ZBAREMG
B W at P IR BB IR IE Z AR R R AR ©
RS FT AR A A B

2021
20214

Dividend yield (%) fi% S 7 22 (%) 2.08
Expected volatility (%) TEERRZ 1R (%) 50
Risk-free interest rate (%) = R R (%) 0.78
Expected life of options (year) B ETERAEH (B 5
Weighted average share price (HKS per share) MNETHRE (BET) 4.73

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of comparable listed
companies in the same industry.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 1,600,000
share options outstanding under the share option scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
1,600,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company, an additional
share capital of HK$16,000 and a share premium of approximately
RMB6,258,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 1,600,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 0.6% of the Company's shares in issue
as at that date.
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31.

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 26 October 2021, a director of the Company signed an
agreement with ten senior executives of the Company, under which
the Mr. Huang Qing Ping agreed to sell 640,000 shares (the "Target
shares") of the Company to these executives at the price of HK$3.00
per share. The fair value of the Target shares is measured at the
market price at the grant day which was the closing stock price of
the Company at the same day, equalling HK$3.68 per share. On 30
November 2021, the transfer of the shares was completed.

Fair value
(market price)
per share

FiRRMH

AREE
(B> 1E)

HKS
BT

Target shares BizkH 3.68

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(a) Mergerreserve
The merger reserve of the Group represents the issued
capital of the then holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group and the capital contributions from the
equity holders of certain subsidiaries now comprising the
Group before the completion of the reorganisation.

(b)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC,
the Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits
after tax, as determined under the Chinese Accounting
Standards, to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of its registered capital. Subject to
certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations
and in the articles of association of the Group, the statutory
surplus reserve may be used either to offset losses, or to be
converted to increase share capital, provided that the balance
after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which it is created and is not distributable
as cash dividends.

(c)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the
par value of the shares issued and the consideration received.
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R2021FE108260  ZAT—REEHA
EAT+EEHRTHAERT HE
B ZBEFLEEREBAZETHRA
EHERATO64L0,000018081H (TEERR
731) - BERASRERN3.008 T B1iZ
BOMNARBEDEBHBHENTE
2 BARATEANRMDUKTESR
BE1D3.683% T o 1R20214E11 8308 > I8

31.

PEBREETH
Transfer price Number of
per share shares Cost of the transaction
SRRHH
BaRE RHEE RBHE

HKS HKS'000 HKS'000
BT THET THET
3.00 640,000 435 358

32. &

REEERBEEE AEANEES
BRESH2IINHBREZ EAR
EEBE-

(a) EfHi#EE
REENEGHEBIEEATHA
AEERFETRENERITER
ABEHEBRTRAEREEBRE
BETRENETHNELAR RIS
BAREE-

EERRHEE
RIBEPEA B E R PEA A
iR B BVEBERMR > K&
B 7R PRI R ABF] A9 0% BUE
R UL RETE G5
ZAEE BEERB RS EES
HEE B A50%7% Lk o Z2AHR P E
ERRAEBAMERZ WA PR
ETREBER EERRERE
BJ FR S 5 £ 85 18 BN B 4 25 1R 0 R
o BEERBERFELFON
REEFEMERBI25%  FHET
SREAERILBEHUINIEMA
B AR ERRERED K

(b)

Be{ni&EE
RPEEEEETRONEESR
BB EZERELE

(c)
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33. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB7,251,000 (2020:
Nil) and RMB14,829,000 (2020: Nil), respectively, in respect
of lease arrangements for buildings and equipment.

(b)

33. RERTRERMF

(a) TEFREXRH
FER > AEEEMEBFTREZEE
EZHNERREERESEE
BZEBREAREDNA AR
7,251,0007% (20204 : ) R AR
#14,829,0007T (20204 : #®) o

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEEFHELENEREE
2021 202145
Interest- Due to
Lease  bearing bank related
liabilities borrowings companies
FE £ R B
HEaE ERTER AGIE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR#BFT AR#BFT ARETT
At 1January 2021 1202151818 1,507 280,000 16,074
New leases SRR 14,829 - -
Interest expense FEHZ 489 - -
Cash flows from financing activities BB EEIPIRIRENE (201) (71,000) =
Cash flows from non-financing FREETHMERENE
activities = = 1,047
At 31 December 2021 720214128318 16,624 209,000 17,121
2020 20204
Interest- Dueto
Lease bearing bank related
liabilities borrowings companies
& +F R Bt
HEER REITER NSIERE!
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT AREFTT
At 1January 2020 1202051818 15,935 50,000 30,159
Interest expense FEFHZ 246 - -
Cash flows from financing activities A EBFIEIRERE (3,916) 230,000 250,228
Offset other receivables L H E RIS - - (264,313)
Reclassification EWntE (10,758) - -
At 31 December 2020 F2202012831H 1,507 280,000 16,074

1 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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33. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF . RERETREBRMEE @

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c)

HERERLEER

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of AFAREREXRNVEERERE
cash flows is as follows: BEEINH ¢

2021
20214
RMB'000
AR¥F T
Within operating activities KREEEN 4,077
Within financing activities REEEA 201
4,278

34. XHBEH

R2021F1831H AEEB AT —
LB = 5 A IR B TR N SR I IR BX
MERFEERAT (TR ERMIRTR -
FafE  MNmhRAYESESRAL
B)) IS 1% Em o WIEEIE I IEARE
ERERAENEHTENYESEER
MIZMEENEEN - RUWER
B EBEFSENSHEERES -

BB PN SR 9 IR 3K 5 UL s B BBV BT 8 B B
EhGEZANEEBENT

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 31 January 2021, the Group acquired a 51% interest in 2B
IRIMIRIKMERBBRAE ("FBINERIFIRIK", original name: &P
INTEFR R EEIRBRAE) from an independent third party of
the Company without consideration. The acquisition was made as
part of the Group's strategy to expand its market share of property
management operation in local market. At acquisition date, the
amount of net assets is near to zero.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of ZB N ER I
IRIK as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition

UL FA TSR
HAREE

RMB'000
AREFT T

Property, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalents

DEE s KR 1 13

RERFEEEY

476

Other payables, deposits received and accruals HMENRIE  BliZe R ETE A (476)
Totalidentifiable net assets at fair value BAREBEFENR S E S EREE 13

Non-controlling interests

Gain on bargain purchase recognised in
otherincome and gains in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

FEERE D

Tj\ fianr=) Eﬁ%‘%ﬁéﬁﬁl”&)\&
W e ESR YR B IR B W

Satisfied by cash

DARE Y

RN ERIBAEIRAE) 189

20201 EERE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the acquisition of ZB N ERIIREK is as follows:

EHBaH @

BRAWESMNERIRKNBEE KRS
FEVMRAFEINOT

RMB'000
ARBTIT

Cash consideration RENE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

BWBRERIEEEEY) 476

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect 78 BIURBE AR ISR IISIRAVIR & K

of the acquisition of ZB M $R I IR Bk

REFBEYRAFE

476

Since the acquisition, ZB N ERIHIREK has contributed RMB2,103,000
in total to the Group's revenue and loss of RMB286,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2027 would have been RMB1,351,417 and
RMB94,660,000 respectively.

On 9 April 2021, the Group acquired a 100% interest in 7 )1 B8 22 5%
MYERFZEBIRAE ("BRZLRAM") from an independent third party
of the Company. The acquisition was made as part of the Group's
strategy to expand its local market share of property management
service in Lin'an. The purchase consideration for the acquisition
was in the form of cash.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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B UK B LA » FR PN SR I IR ER AR 8 22021
FNANHILEFERAERNREE
EAE L AR®E2,103,000c AL S &
M EEE B AR K286,0007T°

HWEHEREVET EE20215F128
BTHEEE  ZAERNKRE R AERN
wmAE DR A AR1,351,417,0007T
T NER#94,660,0007T ©

R2021E4898  KEBBAAT —
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 34, ¥BSH @
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BR % SR il B RN W E BN # A EE &
as at the date of acquisition were as follows: BEZANEBENT
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
B U R B 22
HaREE
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREZEEY 5,096
Trade receivables B2 rIE 1,310
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE(TTRIE ~ 12  e HHE Y sk 18 113
Trade payables B EARIA (100)
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HMENFIE BliZe R Es & A (109)
Totalidentifiable net assets at fair value BANEBESENHANEEFELRLE 6,310
Goodwill on acquisition (note 16) U agmE (M95E16) 1,232
Satisfied by cash MIREZ A 7,542
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BRNEELRMNRERREEE
of the acquisition of B&Z SR is as follows: MIRAGRREDITAT -
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash consideration HWERE (7,542)
Consideration to be paid subsequent to ST A B M RRIEN 20214
31 December 2021 included other payables 12831BEBZAHRE 716
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BUWEIRES RIREEEY 5,096
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in BRIV ERLERMNIREE R
respect of the acquisition of BR %2 il REFEYRL P (1,730)
The fair values of the amounts of trade receivables and BIEBARENREMNRE - R hE
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are RMB1,310,000 MERRENAREBES A ARE
and RMB113,000, respectively, and it is expected that the full 1,310,000t /2 AR #5113,00050 > B8
contractual amounts can be collected. HREAMIER] 2 8r[o -

RN ERIBAEIRAE) 191
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 34. EHBEH @

Since the acquisition, BRZ M1 has contributed RMB5,572,000
in total to the Group's revenue and profit of RMB54,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would have been RMB1,355,753,000 and
RMB96,557,000 respectively.

On 30 August 2021, the Group acquired a 51% interest in JT& &
MEBIRBRAB (WIEAH") from an independent third
party of the Company at a cash consideration of RMB500,000. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to expand its
market share of property management operation in local market.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of ;T &k & %5
as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

BUREE LI BRZ MM B E 2021412
B3I HLEEERAEBRNKRESERS
HARMS5,572,000c @iz EmrE
EhE A A B #854,0007T ©

HWEHEREYET BE2021F128
BSNHIEFE  AEENK G KA EBD
wmA DR A AR ¥1,355,753,0007T
AR #96,557,0007T ©

p220214F 88300 AEB B AANE] —
LEUB=FWB IHRBYEEE
BRRAT (DILErkHR) 8951 % 37
TR ERARME500,00070 - WHEEIE
TERAEEBAER EMHIHEIY)
FEEEDZTHMENEEN D

TLER R UL EE B ARV RIS B B A K
BEZANEENT

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

KUK B 52

HAREE

RMB'000

ARETIT

Property, plant and equipment (note 13) MIZE -~ R B R st (F9EE13) 12

Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 27

Trade receivables B2 riIE 804

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERTRIE ~ 12 K HAt AR U IE 1,527

Contract liabilities SHEMR (78)

Other payables, deposits received and accruals HMENHIE BliZE R Es & A (2,243)

Totalidentifiable net assets at fair value BANEESENTHAEEFEREE 49

Non-controlling interests FEER (24)
Expenses on acquisition recognised in other RireEmRNEMAZ RSN

expenses in the consolidated statement of e 1553
profit or loss 475
Satisfied by cash IRESZ 500
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the acquisition of T &k & #B is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. EHEH @

ERWBIRAMNREERRESE
WRAFEBEDTWMT -

RMB'000
ARET T

Cash consideration ReERE (500)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BUNEIRERIREEEY 27
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in BRIV TEHRRMNIRE &

respect of the acquisition of ;T &k & %5 REHFE/Y ML PR (473)

The fair values of the amounts of trade receivables and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are RMB804,000
and RMB1,527,000, respectively, and it is expected that the full
contractualamounts can be collected.

Since the acquisition, JTEX & #F has contributed RMB264,000
in total to the Group's revenue and loss of RMB1,160,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would have been RMB1,351,731,000 and
RMB95,070,000 respectively.

On 11 October 2021, the Group acquired a 100% interest in &
BRFEEVEEERAREELE ("EHEBF") from an
independent third party of the Company at a cash consideration
of RMB1,000,000. The acquisition was made as part of the Group's
strategy to expand its market share of property management
operation in local market.

BSBWHRENREMRE - BERE
HERMRENRAABEDNAARE
804,000t /2 AR #&1,527,00070 > E78
FREAMIER] 2 8r[al -

B URBELAZR » ST ER R A AR B 20214612
B3 HEEEDAERNKREERS
HAR®E264,0007T K [B) 4r & im F) & R
BB AR 11,160,000 °

MaHERFIET BE20215F128
BNHIEFE  KEENW G R AERD
AR A ARYE,351,731,0007T
AR 195,070,0007T °

R2021F10811H xEBBEXR
S—42BUIE=FNBEEHEFTRE
EYEEEBEARESELADT (MEHE
F)BI00%EH  RBEsREBEAARLE
1,000,000 BEE BT EAARER
BAENEMTENYEETEERD
S EERI BRI — 0 o
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 34. EHFEH®@

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of fE$1EF
as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

BHEFRWEARNTENEER
BEZARNEBENT

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

B U R B 22

HAREE

RMB'000

AREBF T

Cash and cash equivalents HRERIREEEY 968

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE(ITRIB ~ i K B YRR IE 2,715

Trade payables B S RIE (210)

Contract liabilities SHEMR (1,127)

Other payables, deposits received and accruals HMENHIE BliZE R Es & A (1,341)

Totalidentifiable net assets at fair value BANEESENHAEESEREE 1,005
Gain on bargain purchase recognised in RiraEmR N EMIEA K
otherincome and gains in the consolidated W e FE SR AV R B UL S U e

statement of profit or loss (5)

Satisfied by cash MIBEZ 1,000

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the acquisition of 312 is as follows:

ERBBEREFNREERIBETEFE
YIRAFRBEDUWMT -

RMB'000
AREFT

Cash consideration HERE (1,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BWERERIREEEY 968
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in BRABERGEFHNIRE R

respect of the acquisition of EF1EF HEZBYIR 3% (32)

The fair value of the amounts of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables is RMB2,715,000, and it is expected that the full
contractual amounts can be collected.

Since the acquisition, ##312=F has contributed RMB1,424,000
in total to the Group's revenue and loss of RMB288,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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34.

35.

36.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 34.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would have been RMB1,352,569,000 and
RMB94,952,000 respectively.

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of the Group's goodwill at the
beginning and end of the reporting period is presented below:
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EHSH@®

HMEHERENET BZE2021F128
JTHIEEE  AERNKRE R AERBN
wmAE DR A AR®1,352,569,0007T
AR #94,952,0007T ©

AEERRSPIORMARKREENY
BREAIWMT :

RMB'000

Gross carrying amount IRE4E(E

At 1 January 2021 202151818 26,179
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—REE AR 1,232
At 31 December 2021 522021412H31H 27,411
COMMITMENTS 35. Kk

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

FEBREREARBUTERKE !

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHT T
Contracted, but not paid: [EHESKHEESSZNS
Investment in joint ventures and REEhEERBERTNKE
assaociates 16,789 -
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. FABARS

(1) Significant related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related
companies during the year:

(1) EXHBERS
RERRBEBABDETUTRS !

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARET T

Advances to related companies Bl NN 652,164 241,294
Recovery of advance to related companies  Ug[El&E BEHEA T BB 657,152 1,881
Advance from related companies IR B R A BIRVE R = 766,699
Repayment of advance from related BERBRB AT

companies B3 - 516,471

RN ERIBAEIRAE) 195
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

36. FABEA AR5 @)

(1) Significant related party transactions (continued) (1) EXRABAERS @)
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBETTT
Rental fees to companies controlled by EIPAN/NSTE2L 0=
Mr. Huang Qing Ping, controlling =ETREESN
shareholder of the Company NEZNHEEER 4,567 4,048
Security service fees to an associate m—EBE AR
RL AR E 297,151 216,013
Purchase material REEA L
Companies controlled by BETREESRRN
Mr. Huang Qing Ping NS] 1,345 2,026
Others Hith - 250
Property management services income MEERIRFBUA
Companies controlled by BRFREERN
Mr. Huang Qing Ping NG| 62,279 57,251
Joint ventures and associates of TR B R AT
Yincheng International Holding (EBRFRE
Co., Ltd., a company controlled by HAE) NEEhE
Mr. Huang Qing Ping 3 d—W/NE| 2,526 -
Value-added services income: @R EARFEWA :
Companies controlled by HF AR EERS
Mr. Huang Qing Ping NS 17,849 17,756
Joint ventures and associates BERERKE
N 504 -
Joint ventures and associates of SRIF B PRIE AR A IR
Yincheng International Holding RENEELER
Co., Ltd. =N 2,228 -

(2)

These transactions were carried out in accordance with the
terms and conditions mutually agreed by the companies

involved.

Other transactions with related companies (2)

The Group's controlling shareholder, Mr. Huang Qing Ping
and IRIMMEELEEBRAE], a company controlled by Mr.
Huang Qing Ping, has guaranteed the Group 's bank loans
of up to RMB207,000,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:

RMB280,000,000).
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36.

(3) Outstanding balances with related companies

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

FAE S X5 @
(3) BB ABBRMLEEER

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
20215 20205
12831H 12H31H
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBFT
Due from related companies: FEUS BRI A B FRIE -
Balances relating to non-operating B S B BRI RR
activities
Companies controlled by HEBTELEEFINAT
Mr. Huang Qing Ping 1,756 7,484
Balances relating to operating RS R H B4R
activities
Companies controlled by HEBFRLEEFINAT
Mr. Huang Qing Ping 100,283 86,623
Associates HrE AT 52 1177
Joint ventures GERE 421 99
Joint ventures and associates of RIMEIPR A B PR A BIRY
Yincheng International Holding BELERBERT
Co, Ltd 4,492 -
105,254 87,899
Impairment loss recognised ERERRESE (3,655) -
103,355 95,383
Due to related companies: P& {3 R Bk A B)FRIE
Balances relating to non-operating B S R B BRR A R
activities
Companies controlled by HEBFIEEFINAR
Mr. Huang Qing Ping 2,623 7,611
Balances relating to operating B ERERRR AR
activities
Companies controlled by HEBFREERINAR
Mr. Huang Qing Ping 1,185 8,463
Associates = YN=] 3,481 -
Joint ventures aErE 3,232 -
14,498 8463
17,121 16,074
The balances with the above related companies were 4 4

unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed repayment terms.

B3 & R RA B A B RO AL BR A R OR
BB REREEENR
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BATSERRMISE
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. FAMGARS @
(4) Compensation of key management personnel of the (4) HEETEESIEASHM :
Group:
Year ended 31 December
HE12RA31EHLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT
Short-term employee benefits AR EER 4,414 4,682
Pension scheme contributions BEEETEIMHR 434 378
Equity settled share-based payment M m4EBE UKD A ERD
expense Bz 1,462 244
Total compensation paid to key THTFEFEEEAEN
management personnel AR ER 6,310 5,304

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note
8 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items of property
management services income above also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2021

Financial assets

37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMITAESE

BAESIRERMEE 4

REBREHRZESHIANKREEN

T
2021412831H

THEE

Financial assets included in prepayments,

StATRNTRIE  # s R Bt B U IR RY

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost

BRI

5
SMEE
RMB'000
IN-L RS0

deposits and other receivables TRMEE 67,336
Trade receivables B Z RIS 231,037
Due from related companies FEUN B B A B) 3118 103,355
Pledged deposits B ER 1,344
Cash and cash equivalents RERAEEEY 538,131

941,203
Financial liabilities ERAR

Financial

liabilities at

amortised

cost

B A

SHER

EREE

RMB'000

ARBT T

Trade payables B2 EARIA 44,514
Financial liabilities included in other payables, STARMEA IR BEWRE K

deposits received and accruals FEStERNEmMEE 150,839
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHERITER 209,000
Due to related companies FEATRAM A BIRIE 17,121
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of P —REI BT /B A Bl SR AR AR SRR IE

a subsidiary 5,900

427,374

RN ERIBAEIRAE) 199
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 37. £RITH 534 (@

31 December 2020

2020%12831H

Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
R IE A A
STER
TRMEE
RMB'000
ARHEFTT
Financial assets included in prepayments, STATE(IRUIE ~ o e E A AE W IE g
deposits and other receivables TRBEE 49,034
Trade receivables B 5 EWIE 127,836
Due from related companies FE UK BE Bk Bl 7R IE 95,383
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBREEEY 566,915
839,168
Financial liabilities EREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R EH A A
STEN
TRMEE
RMB'000
ARETT
Trade payables B2 EARIA 24,203
Financial liabilities included in other payables, STAHEMBEMRIE BlZE K
deposits received and accruals FEEstERNEMEE 125,259
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHERITEM 280,000
Due to related companies FES AR A B RIB 16,074
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of FET— R BB A Bl FFIE AR AL SR AR IE
a subsidiary 13,900
459,436

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

AREFT

Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAnBEFAEGN
EREE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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38. @Eﬁlﬂﬂ’ﬂ’&ﬁfﬁﬁ&’&ﬁ:ﬁﬁ

[=N]

RIRmEREAABEGEMEENS
MIAN AEEERTANKEER
AREENMT :

Carrying amounts Fair values
fREE RREE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 20205 20215 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®BT T PNawl \RETT

5,112 -

5,112

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, the fair values of pledged deposits, amounts due from
related companies, trade receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables, deposits received
and accruals, amounts due to related companies, interest-
bearing bank borrowings and amounts due to a non-controlling
shareholder approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the chief finance
officer is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
corporate finance team reports directly to the chief financial officer
and the board of directors. At the reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the board of directors twice a year for annual financial
reporting.

During the reporting period, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or
out of Level 3 for both financial assets and liabilities.

EEECHERERFEEEEY ER
BERRAEE BB AT RIE
B EWRIE StATRARIE BT R
HEWRBENE/MEE - B 5B IW
B ST AEAMAE IR s EWIR S K
StRMENEREE BB QM
B 5t RIRITERREN — R IFERR
RRENAREBERHKREERE
ERANRZETANIBHBRERE

AEENADMESFIBAYFRES
B EEETERMIARAEBESEN
HRKREF - RERMEBBREZEAY
MEREFTER - NEBSEH A

WREBAREENEZHABIE- 4
ERMBARELZRME-SFRFE
MBREHEFEHEHERFRER
HETT R 55w ©

REBESHE cREERAEFE—EA
F_EzETEAABENEES IR
BEEANBLE=E-

RN ERIBAEIRAE) 201
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38. TMTANAREBERANEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) [E 4 (4&)
Fair value hierarchy RAEERBR
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TERRPErEFBTHMTIAZAREE
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: FTER&K

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using

K2020F 12831 BEBUT RN A nBEFE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERE BATER EATIUER

miszHRE AR AR
E—E EZB (E=B) 85t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBETRT ARETT ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement for MU TEBETH
BEUEAREESS

Financial assets at FVTPL BARBESALERN
THEE - 5112 - 5112

2 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2021



39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank borrowings, and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables, amounts due to related companies and amounts due
from related companies which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group has not
used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging purposes to
keep the Group's exposure to these risks to a minimum. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings set out in note 29. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk,
and it obtains all bank borrowings with a fixed rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, the
fair values of pledged deposits, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, and amounts due from related companies
included in the statement of financial position represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, all cash and cash equivalents were
deposited in high-credit-quality financial institutions without
significant credit risk.

39.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics, such as instrument
types and credit risk ratings for the purpose of determining
significant increases in credit risk and calculation of
impairment. To manage risk arising from trade receivables,
the Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made only to counterparties with an appropriate credit history
and management performs ongoing credit evaluations of
the Group's counterparties. The credit period granted to the
customers is generally one to three months and the credit
quality of these customers is assessed, taking into account
their financial position, past experience and other factors. The
Group also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount
of trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a large number of counterparties and customers.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECLs prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
The expected credit losses also incorporate forward-looking
information based on key economic variables such as the
consumer price index.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
and

o it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment
for the period beginning on 1 January 2019 of whether a
financial instrument has a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk
of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument. The Group classifies its other receivables and
amounts due from related companies into Stage 1, Stage 2
and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage1 When other receivables and amounts due from
related companies are first recognised, the Group
recognises an allowance based on 12 months'
ECLs.

Stage2 When other receivables and amounts due from
related companies have shown a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the Group
records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs.

Stage3 When other receivables and amounts due from
related companies are considered credit-impaired,
the Group records an allowance for the lifetime
ECLs.

Management makes periodic collective assessments for
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables and amounts due from related companies
as well as individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables and amounts due from related companies
based on historical settlement records and past experience.
The Group has classified financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and amounts
due from related companies in Stage 1 and continuously
monitors their credit risk. The Company used the expected
credit loss rate of 4.2% as at 31 December 2021, considering
the default probability and recovery probability, to estimate
the impairment of financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables. The Company used the
expected credit loss rate of 4.03%, considering the default
probability and recovery probability, to estimate the
impairment of amounts due from related companies.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2021. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial
guarantee contracts.

As at 31 December 2021

12-month
ECLs

12{8 B 7R
ZE5E

Stage 1
M
RMB'000
ARETFR

Trade receivables* B 5 EWFUE =
Financialassets includedin st ATERFIE - BE K
prepayments, deposits HipEsIEn

and other receivables SRBEE
- Normal** —EE* 67,336
Due from related FEW B A B 78

companies 103,355
Pledged deposits [REGRETEEA 1,344
Cashand cash equivalents  HE&RIFEEEY) 538,131

39. HEEKREEBIZEREBR @)

(b) EEEE &

Stage 2
FIREE
RMB'000

AEBFR

REEBRRFERD R
TRREBEAEESEEBRRIRIE

EEERBRSEERR  BRIEE
EBRBRRAREHEREBHME
B TRIHFEER2021F128
SIEMABHERKRERD KD
HM-FT2YSHEASHEENER
HBERVHFEFREANEER

22021512831H

Lifetime ECLs

2HRBEEFER
Simplified
Stage 3 approach Total
MR 1A% st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBTR ARBTR

231,037 231,037

- - 67,336

- - 103,355
- - 1,364
- - 538,131

710,166

231,037 941,203
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R AR IYEE

39. EEMEEEEREER @&

(b)

EERE @)

REEBRRERD R (@)

720205 12831H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12181 5 858
(B=t5t! LHRREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—PREE £ MEE EEy BlERZE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTR AREBTn ARBTR ARETR
Trade receivables* 8B 5 e Ia - - - 127,836 127,836
Financial assets includedin 5t ATBIRIE &R
prepayments, deposits HAh IR IER
and other receivables EHEE
- Normal** —IER** 49,034 - - - 49,034
Due from related FEW Rl A BB
companies 95,383 - - - 95,383
Cashand cash equivalents  H&RIRELEY) 566,915 - - - 566,915
711,332 - - IEs 839,168

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in notes 23 to the financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

**%

HRAEBEXBBERESEN
FEW B 5 8RR > ABRR R B AR Y
SR B R AR M £ 230 4R 8R ©

StATRRIE AR IR R
ThEENESMEENESEERN
M ARBHAR RS TER) > Bl
BRI B PR LR Z T R
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. MEBERMEEEEREE @

POLICIES (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) FWENEEZRERE
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between FEENBERRBBEERRIR
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of TRREFREREEREGY
interest-bearing bank borrowings. Cash flows are closely ZENFE AERTFERYIE
monitored on an ongoing basis. RIEREBEMR
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as AEERREARZ SRR
at the end of the reporting period, based on contractual NHFENEMEBENIRHER
undiscounted payments, is as follows: mE
Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months Over 1 year Total
BEX 3{EA LA 3Z12{88 1E0E st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR¥TR ARETR ARETR ARET:
31 December 2021 20215128318
Interest-bearing bank borrowings s EIRITER - 54,724 163,897 - 218,621
Lease liabilities AEaE = = 7,573 10,638 18,211
Trade payables BRENHIE 44,514 - - - 44,514
Due to anon-controlling shareholder ~ FEf—IEERKE
eV 5,900 = = - 5,900
Other payables HtEARIE 150,839 - - - 150,839
Due to related companies e ARIZUA 17,121 - - - 17,121
218,374 54,72 171,470 10,638 455,206
Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months QOver 1year Total
BEX 3EAMUA 3E128A TEME 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETR ARBTR ARET:
31 December 2020 20205128318
Interest-bearing bank borrowings S ERITER - 3,045 283,116 - 286,161
Lease liabilities HEBE - - 1,537 41 1,578
Trade payables BRENTIE 24,203 - - - 24,203
Due to a non-controlling EA—RIEERRE
shareholder EgE| 13,900 - - - 13,900
Other payables HENIEB 125,259 - - - 125,259
Due to related companies FEREBASTE 16,074 - - - 16,074
179,436 3065 284653 N 467175

2 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. RS IEEEREE @)
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Capital management (d) BEAREE
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management AEBBEAEENFTEZEERS
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going REAEEFELCE L ETFER
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to HNEALEENAE UZFHZE
support its business and maximise shareholders' value. Bl EREEERAI
The Group manages its capital structure and makes FEEGRBEER INESEECE
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. BRAERHERRE REFTH
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may BAEEARE AEEHFTHIK
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to FFRENKE - REEAREDR
shareholders orissue new shares. WEITHRIEL AR
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is rEBRAEAEGER RMEFRF
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group BERRUE A RERBERZE )
includes, within net debt, interest-bearing bank borrowings, REEZEE R - REBNEHFEE
amounts due to related companies and lease liabilities, FFASTERITER BB A
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity BMERETEEERREERES
attributable to owners of the parent. ZBEY-
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were RREARNERSERAOT :
as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T

Interest-bearing bank borrowings st RIRTTER 209,000 280,000
Due to related companies F& 1T BRI G B1 7R 1B 17,121 16,074
Lease liabilities HEaE 16,624 1,507
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RBERIREEEY (538,131) (566,915)
Net debt B35 (295,386) (269,334)
Equity attributable to owners of ISYNIE 2PNy F
the parent 242,782 173,427
Gearing ratio EARBMEX N/AF3E N/AZ 3 FA
40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 40. BHEHREIR
There is no significant subsequent event undertaken by the FR2021FE12831HE » AR B W MmIETT
Company after 31 December 2021, ERERBEEE
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41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

TRBEHRHBRRE

KRB PRREMROY BN ERER

L

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ABET T
CURRENT ASSETS RHEE
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 2,165 195
Due from related parties e BB 75 1B 66,980 93,683
Total current assets MENEEMRE 69,145 93,878
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBARNKEE 3,317 341
Total non-current assets ERBEEFE 3,317 341
CURRENT LIABILITIES RHEE
Due to related parties e RE R 5 1B 6,192 6,861
Total current liabilities RENEELEEE 6,192 6,861
NET CURRENT ASSETS RHEEFE 62,953 87,017
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEEERTSHEE
LIABILITIES 66,270 87,358
NET ASSETS BEFE 66,270 87,358
EQUITY Uiy
Equity attributable to owners of BATHERA AR GED
the parent
Share capital & 2,387 2,387
Reserves #E 63,883 84,971
TOTAL EQUITY WETRAEEE 66,270 87,358

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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42.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BiRsmRmEE 4

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 1. TRBHFERRER @
COMPANY (continued)
Note: MIEE
Exchange
Share Share  fluctuation Other Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
ER
A ROEE  ORBDEE  HtEE  REET Gl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETE ARETR
(note 30) (note 32)
(ffst30)  (M9EE32)
Balance at 1 January 2020 1202051 A1 BRAERR 2,387 105,707 - - (1,640) 106,454
Loss for the year FREE - - - - (3,052) (3,052)
Exchange differences on translation BEBNEBNERER - - (6,149) - - (6,149)
Total comprehensive loss for the year — FERZHEE5ELEEE - - (6,149) - (3,052) (9,201)
Final 2019 dividend declared CDERAE019ERE - (10,236) - - - (10236)
Equity-settled share-based payment ~ WEREEURMNAEERS

(note 31) (BfzE31) - - - 341 - 341
At 31 December 2020 and #2020E128318 %

1 January 2021 0051818 2381 95471 (6,149) 341 (6692) 87,358
Loss for the year ERNEE - - - - (2,106) (2,1006)
Exchange differences on translation BEBIERNERER - - (1,456) - - (1,456)
Total comprehensive loss fortheyear ~ FERREEEE - - (1,456) - (2,106) (3,562)
Final 2020 dividend declared BEERKE020EKE - (20,502) - - - (20,502)
Equity-settled share-based payment ~ WEGEEURMAERN

(note 31) I3 (fF5E31) - - - 2,976 - 2,976
Total st 2387 74969 (7,605) 3317 (6798) 66270
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42, #EFEERR

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 30 March 2022.

BRI EN2022F3830HEESE
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

FRER BRI

Particulars of the properties of the Group held for investment purposes as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

20215128310 AEBFFRENYESFBNT

No. Location Land lease term Usage
R UE T ithFHER BE
1. 2/F, Building 25 Sports Facility 1, No. 81 Baima Road, From 20 March 2017 to Residential
Pukou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 19 March 2057 E
mRTAOE B B8 SR25EE B R -2/8 201738208
F205743819H
2. 2/F, Building 25 Sports Facility 2, No. 81 Baima Road, From 20 March 2017 to Residential
Pukou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 19 March 2057 F=
ERTAEARR &K1 5825EE B R 12-2/E 201783852083
F2057%3819H
3. 5/F, Building 25 Sports Facility 5, No. 81 Baima Road, From 20 March 2017 to Commercial
Pukou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 19 March 2057 S
ERmEOR E 5 Re 15251888 A 5 Hi5-5/E 2017438200 E
F2057%F3819H
4. 5/F, Building 25 Sports Facility 1, No. 81 Baima Road, From 20 March 2017 to Commercial
Pukou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 19 March 2057 [EES
AR mE LR E 5 RE 1 552518 X (LIR8540 11 -5/8 201738206
F205743819H
5. 5/F, Building 25 Sports Facility 2, No. 81 Baima Road, From 20 March 2017 to Commercial
Pukou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 19 March 2057 [EES
AR E 8 M 5 288 1 352518 S 1L IR B4R 12 -5/ 20178352083
F2057%3819H
6. LG1-2/F and Room 103, Building 4, Qianhuaxi Garden, From 31 August 2016 to Residential
No. 10 Qingshuiting Road East, Moling Street, 29 July 2080 FE
Jiangning District, Nan %ng the PRC* 20165F8H31H#E
F‘ﬁ?FE/Imln__nﬁB*mL/mk B8 1055k T1E 250418 £20804F 78298
103=-a—E -a-E
7. Room 2101, Building 2, No. 268 Jixingmen Main Street, From 21 April 2020 to Commercial
Gulou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 30 June 2058 [EES
R a B E & B P A 2685521821012 2020F 48215
£2058%F6H30H
8. Room 2102, Building 2, No. 268 Jixingmen Main Street, From 21 April 2020 to Commercial
Gulou District, NanJm the PRC* 30 June 2058 [EES
ﬁ?\FEEH%E%%F%ﬁ]zbssﬁzmgz1 02= 2020482157
F2058%6H30H
9. 2 car parking spaces in the basement of No. 268 Jixingmen  From 21 April 2020 to Commercial
Main Street, Gulou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 30 June 2058 [EES
R Fﬁiﬂiln__n%%F'ﬁﬂ:ﬁﬂéssmi{ﬂTTﬁE%Z@Eu 2020548215
F2058%F6H30H
10. Building 55, Wenbo Garden, 2 Wenbo Road, Moling Street, From 1 November 20217 to 31 Commercial
Jiangning District, Nanjing, the PRC* October 2028 [EES
IEEm R IERREEHBIER2EXEIE550E  2021F1181HE

F2028%10H31H

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings
when used herein:

RAEFHER BFXESBEN TIEERRERREBUT RS

"AGM" means the annual general meeting to be held by the Company on Wednesday, 1 June 2022
MRRBERE] 5 RABRI2022F681H (BH=) RIT2RRBFARE
“Articles” or means the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)

"Articles of Association”
MR ST =2 4mA) 5 AABBAEMETRME] R ES])

"Audit Committee” means the audit committee under the Board

BZEE8) S EEETENEZZEY

“Board"” means the board of Directors

EEg) S 5Fg

"Board Committees” means collectively the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, and the "Board Committee” means any of them

E£%&89) 5 BEZZEE REZEGAFNEEGNGRE MIEEEZEG IEEREN—EZE
&

=

“Board Diversity Policy”  means the board diversity policy as adopted by the Company
EEEMEZ TR 15 RABIFFRMNESTERE L TEBER

“CG Code” means the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
MEZEERTA 5 EARBIF B+ P Pr &Y R FE EAST R
“China” or "PRC" means the People's Republic of China, which for the sole purpose of this annual report, shall

exclude Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China and Taiwan

MR 5 hEARAME ERAFRMS > FEEEE PEARAEMERPIFHIITHE K&
“Company” means Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd., a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an

exempted company with limited liability on 3 April 2019 and the Shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

/NSl 5 IRAEERBAERAT > —EIR2019F4B3BEHREFEEMAINEREE B
8] RO RSP Tak £

“Director(s)" means the director(s) of the Company
&%) = KRB EE
“Dividend Policy” means the dividend policy as adopted by the Company
Mg SER) & A B PRI IR S BUER
"GFA" means gross floor area
MEEmE 8 BE@E
“Group” or"Yincheng Life means the Company and its subsidiaries
Service"
M50 15 RRABREWBAE
MER I 4 JE AR5
“Hong Kong" means the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
r&48) = hE NRHAMBEEBFHTHE

RN SERISARAR 213
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DEFINITIONS

“Hong Kong dollars”,
”HKD" OrHHKSN
A7)

“Inside Information Policy”

MEH B EER]
“Jincheng Jiaye"
MR IESE)

“Jincheng Jiaye Group”

MR LR

“Listing"
rEm

“Listing Date”
rE B
“Listing Rules"
FEmRA
“Memorandum" or

"Memorandum of
Association”

TR M3

M4B 8= 72 K4
“Model Code”
MR ZE<T Al
“Nanjing Mahui"

MEREE]

"Nomination Committee”

NEhZEEE)

“Nomination Policy”

MR

“Prospectus”
MER=E

"Remuneration
Committee”

FNEEE)

“RMB"
FAR®E)

means
5

means

means
B

means
=]

means

means
B

means
B

means
=]

means

means
B

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBEEEBET

the internal policy and procedures in relation to the handling of inside information as
adopted by the Company
KA ERIENTHENARBERREF

Nanjing Jincheng Jiaye Sales and Consultancy Co., Ltd.*, a company incorporated under
the laws of the PRC with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Yincheng Real Estate
FRRNEXSHREARAE —BREPEEREMAIINERAT > Bkt
EEBEHA

Jincheng Jiaye and its subsidiaries

R EE AW E AT

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BRI PEERSZ P EAR £ TS

the date on which dealings in the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange first
commence, being 6 November 2019

R BRNE PR EREE 2 H RI2019F1186H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

X PREE S L RA EABRHMEST s R U A M5 B L

the memorandum of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)

RRBAABERAM EREES])

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EHARRIM R+ PR L EIT AZEFEITESF XS HIRETR]

Nanjing Mahui Real Estate Co., Ltd.*, a company established under the laws of the PRC
with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Yincheng International
FAREGEXARAF —HARETENARENUNEREEAE I A RIBLERIE
EE2ERB AR

the nomination committee under the Board

EXETENRREZED

the nomination policy as adopted by the Company

AT PERAABIEE B BR

the prospectus of the Company dated 25 October 2019
AT BEAZR2019F10825BBKR =R

the remuneration committee under the Board
EEg NENFTMEE S

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

PEEZEEBARKE



“Securities Dealing Code”

525 TR
SEQ"
85 REIERP

"Shareholder(s)"
MY ER )

"Share(s)"

AR

I

“Share Option Scheme'
MRE RSt &)

"sqm.”

MF75 K]

“Stock Exchange”
TH§ X Ffr )

“Yincheng Group”
MR A )

"Yincheng Business
Management"

MR E

"Yincheng International”

M3R 350 B R

"Yincheng International
Holding Group”
MR 45 B PR I AR S

"Yincheng Kangyang"

MR E

“Yincheng Property
Services"

MR M4 2 AR 75

means
B

means
B

means
=]

means

means

DEFINITIONS
Bx

the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors as adopted by the
Company

FABRMNHNESEE AL ERBZFHTH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BREDIEBESF R ERG) K RFHES] MR U E M7 TUE R

holder(s) of the Share(s)
RIpEE A

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company, which are traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange

AABRATEREEEBTHNEER  HLUBETRZ RINHRPT R L™

a share option scheme of the Company with terms complying with Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules which was conditionally approved and adopted by the then shareholders of
the Company on 25 January 2021

AT B EFRET EHRAFETE WER2021F1 8258 B AR E
S IR SR A IR L A R A

square metre

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEAMERZMBRAE

Yincheng International Holding Group and Yincheng Real Estate Group

$R 70 B PR 422 P B L e SR B th R

Nanjing Yincheng Business Management Co., Ltd.*, a company established under the
laws of the PRC with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yincheng Real
Estate

MOUREEEEARAR —MREBPBEIEERINEREET AR LA REME
NWEEWEAR

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on 8 January 2018 and the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1902)
IRMEIRIER B R AT —RIR2018F 1 B8E TS SEMMUNERREERA
8] RO IR BRI Tk £ (B 5 RS 1 1902)

Yincheng International and its subsidiaries
R B PR  H B A E)

Nanjing Yincheng Kangyang Elderly Healthcare Services Co., Ltd.*, a company
established under the laws of the PRC with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yincheng Real Estate

FRIRNEEEERFARAT —EREFENERRINBREE AT WA IR
HENEEWBAE

Nanjing Yincheng Property Services Co., Ltd.*, a company incorporated under the laws
of the PRC with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
ARIRBYIERFAERAS > —ERBEFENEREMBRIULNBRAT > BAAFRIME
EE2EMRB AR

RN SERISARAR
20201 EERE
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DEFINITIONS

"Yincheng Real Estate”
MR A3t 22 )

"Yincheng Real Estate
Group”
MR At A2 SE 1)

“Yuangu Ecological
Agriculture”
MRFREBEE)

Note:

In this annual report, English names of the PRC entities marked "*" are translations
of their Chinese names for identification purpose only. If there is any inconsistency
between the Chinese names and their English translations, the Chinese names shall

prevail.

means

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.

Annual Report 2021

Yincheng Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.*, a joint stock company incorporated under the laws
of the PRC with limited liability
IRt EEBRNBRAR —BREBREEZREMRLRNBRAT

Yincheng Real Estate and its subsidiaries
SR K H B A B

Nanjing Yuangu Ecological Agriculture Co., Ltd.*, a company incorporated under the laws
of the PRC with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Yincheng Real Estate
ARERBRERREBRAT —HIREFEAREMMIUNAG WHRAMERSE
A

PISE -

RAEFHR RE T NPEABEREAXREAEPXRE
B9RES  EHAR MR BR AR ER A ERK
& BLARCRERE
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YINCHENG LIFE SERVICE CO., LTD. P
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BEER
MR | XBAREHMNE
Paper | Supporting responsible forestry
Ew%:gg FSC™ C176382
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